
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Governance Services on 01432 260201or e-
mail governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the 
meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Thursday 19 March 2015 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 260635 
Email: ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee 
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor JG Jarvis 
Vice-Chairman Councillor EMK Chave 
   
 Councillor CNH Attwood  
 Councillor WLS Bowen  
 Councillor PGH Cutter  
 Councillor MAF Hubbard  
 Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
 Councillor PJ McCaull  
 Councillor NP Nenadich  
 Councillor DB Wilcox  

 
    

 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  19 MARCH 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 
place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

7 - 10 

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2015. 
 

 

5.   EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 

11 - 22 

 To provide a progress report on the delivery of external audit’s 
responsibilities and to provide a summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that may be of relevance.  
 

 

6.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014-15 
 

23 - 38 

 To present the external audit plan 2014-15. 
 

 

7.   INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK 2014-15 
 

39 - 58 

 To present to the Audit and Governance Committee the key areas of the 
auditor risk assessment in order to make enquiries of the Committee under 
auditing standards. 
 

 

8.   INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE (SWAP) 
 

59 - 76 

 To provide an update on the progress of internal audit work and to bring to 
Committee’s attention any key internal control issues arising from work 
recently completed.  
 

 

9.   INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2015-16 (SWAP) 
 

77 - 82 

 To seek the Committee’s approval of the Internal Audit Charter for the period 
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. 
 

 

10.   INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015-16 (SWAP) 
 

83 - 92 

 To seek the Committee’s approval of the Internal Audit plan for the period 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016. 
 

 

11.   ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY 
 

93 - 106 

 To present to the Audit and Governance Committee, the revised Anti-Fraud, 
Bribery and Corruption Policy, for approval.  
 

 

12.   CONTRACTS AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURES RULES 
 

107 - 158 

 To refresh the contracts and financial procedure rules within the council’s 
constitution. 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  19 MARCH 2015 
 

 

 
13.   BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

 
159 - 186 

 To provide Audit & Governance with an updated position on the projected 
outturn for 2014/15. 
 

 

14.   ENERGY FROM WASTE LOAN UPDATE 
 

187 - 196 

 To brief the Audit and Governance Committee on the status of the Energy 
from Waste (EfW) loan arrangement commenced on execution of the waste 
PFI contract variation in May 2014, following approval to proceed with the 
variation by Cabinet in December 2013. 
 

 

15.   FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

197 - 202 

 To agree the future work programme for the Audit and Governance 
Committee for 2015-16. 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 

Public Transport Links 
 
• The Shire Hall is a few minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the 

town centre of Hereford. 

5



RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 
 
Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 
The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 
 

 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit 
and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point in the Shire Hall car park. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 

The Chairman or an attendee at the meeting must take the signing in sheet so it can be 
checked when everyone is at the assembly point. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Audit and Governance Committee 
held at The Council Chamber, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX on Wednesday 28 January 2015 at 10.30 am 
  

Present: Councillor JG Jarvis (Chairman) 
Councillor EMK Chave (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: WLS Bowen, PGH Cutter, EPJ Harvey, NP Nenadich and DB Wilcox 
 
  
In attenda: Councillors   
  
Officers:   
39. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies were received from Councillors MAF Hubbard, Brig P Jones and CNH Attwood. 
 
Apologies were also received from Bill Norman, Assistant Director Governance. 
 
 

40. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
Councillor EPJ Harvey attended as substitute for Councillor Hubbard. 
 

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

42. MINUTES   
 
The Vice Chairman queried when Grant Thornton would be able to report on outstanding 
matters; it was agreed to seek clarification from Grant Thornton. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2014 be confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

43. UPDATE FROM PIDA WORKING GROUP   
 
The committee was advised that, given the need to prioritise resourcing of a General 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee call-in, the working group meeting planned for January had 
been postponed. The working group had met in December and the working group chairman 
reported that: 
 

• The meeting in December focused on how new data had been presented rather than 
the data itself; 

• Data had been requested by the Working Group on complaints; this was now included 
in the annual report of the Monitoring Officer appearing elsewhere on the committee’s 
agenda today; 

• The group would  look to form recommendations for the future work programme for 
the committee; 

• Further dates for the PIDA working group were to be confirmed. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



 

44. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN UPDATE   
 
Peter Robinson, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) introduced the report and reminded the 
committee that a different approach had been taken this year, focussing on an action 
based approach. 
 
The purpose of the report was to give the committee confidence that agreed actions 
were being delivered to ensure that concerns identified in the statement were resolved 
and do not reappear next year. 
 
A member queried whether historic concerns about the robustness of contract 
management remained unresolved. 
 
The chief financial officer advised that the potential weaknesses identified in the annual 
governance statement related to 2013/14; improvements had been made since then and 
the actions currently being implemented were designed to ensure improvements in 
consistency of approach continued.   
 
 At this point the Chief Executive was welcomed to the meeting by the Chairman. 
 
The Chairman asked the Chief Executive what position the authority was in in terms of 
reviewing staffing levels in key positions. 
 
The chief executive recognised that this is an important area for members in managing 
resources. The last 24 months has seen a reduction in staff of 20%, however, with a staff 
figure of 1,050 the council remained the largest employer in the county. 
 
Over the past four years the council has had to identify budget reductions of over £50m 
with another £10m next year on a net budget of £146m.  This would inevitably result in 
pressures on staff and service delivery. The belief is that resources are being managed 
in the most efficient manner. 
 
The chief executive noted the outcome of last year’s staff survey, highlighting 
 

• Significant encouragement from staff 
• Improvements still to be made 
• More requirements being made on individual staff  
• Ambassadors for the authority  
• Staff willing to work extra hours 

 
Overall, the staff survey was a remarkable response from staff given the current 
economic climate. 
 
As with all authorities, Herefordshire is having to manage with less and this obviously 
presents challenges. 
 
Continuous improvement teams had been established last September, and more than 60 
members of staff had volunteered to participate. These teams have now been embedded 
in directorates.  
 
The chairman queried morale levels across the authority. 
 
The chief executive stated that being in a challenging financial position, in some cases 
alongside poor service performance can and does affect staff morale. However, the 
authority had moved to a position of financial stability and services were demonstrably 
improving.  Although there was still room for improvement, there was evidence that staff 
feel they can and are making a difference. 

8



 

The vice chairman suggested that staff survey results should be presented on an annual 
basis and could be used as a tool to address operational/delivery issues. The chief 
executive confirmed that he would be willing to present the staff survey report on an 
annual basis. 
 
 A member raised concerns that the shortfall in funding for social care can and does 
affect morale and in turn can result in losing staff. 
 
The Chief Executive stated that reduction in funding is a problem that all authorities face 
and does present challenges to staff across a number of services.  It has to be accepted 
that as an authority we are not equipped financially to achieve all we like to. 
 
 A member made the point that the authority must offer competitive packages to attract 
and retain social workers.  
 
The chief executive   stated that although some social workers had left the authority 
some were returning to the authority which was encouraging. Seeking to attain 
excellence in everything we do would in turn attract good people. 
 
 A member recognised that there had been a significant reduction of resources with 
change agenda still on going and queried whether, in the medium term, the authority 
would be looking to make savings in budgets. 
 
The chief executive stated that the authority should focus on achieving rather than just 
surviving. Although staff levels had been reduced by 20% there had been an 
improvement in services. There were no plans for further significant corporate 
restructuring, although there were plans to replace some senior management interim 
roles with permanent appointments.   The authority should demonstrate that it is using all 
resources in the most efficient way possible.  The Authority has achieved a great deal in 
a short time and has much to be proud of. 
 
The point was made that the authority was focused on joined up public sector working 
within Herefordshire; however, in the chief executive’s opinion a combined authority 
model would not benefit the county.  
 
In response to a concern raised that online only services may exclude certain service 
users, the Chief Executive made the point that although the authority would continue to 
provide a service to residents unable to access services on line; however the authority 
had to address the changing world, e.g. digital 24/7, self-service, and delivering in 
innovative ways. Change should be viewed as an opportunity and should be embraced 
rather than feared. 
 
The Chief Executive noted the importance of participation in the Marches Local 
Enterprise Partnership.   
 
It was noted that the next draft annual governance statement would be scheduled for 
consideration by the committee in July. 
 
The governance manager confirmed that a working group, reporting to the Audit & 
Governance Committee, had been established to identify areas for governance 
improvement. The first meeting was scheduled in mid-February. In addition a review of 
finance and contracts procedure rules had been undertaken and would report to the next 
committee. 
 
 
 
 

9



 

45. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER   
 
The governance manager presented members with the monitoring officer’s annual report 
and drew attention to the fact that the correct figure for data breaches was 64 not 74. 
 
It was noted that the report related to the municipal year 2013/14 and, included a range 
of data not previously reported therefore did not contain trend data; future annual reports 
would do so against the baseline set in this report. 
 
 A short discussion was had around freedom of information requests and to ensure that 
the authority was publishing all it could to reduce the number of requests to be 
resourced.  It was confirmed that the general principle being followed was that if 
information could be published, it should be. 
  
 A member sought clarification regarding the two enquiries which had been upheld by 
the local government ombudsman; it was agreed that the service areas concerned and 
level of reparation required would be confirmed in writing to the member. 
 
 A brief discussion on the forward programme was had with the following 
recommendations for inclusion: 
 

• A briefing on the LEP assurance framework 
• Forward programme should always be included as the last item on the agenda 

on all Audit and Governance Committee meetings 
• Schedule consideration of the results of the annual staff survey should be 

available every January 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified CHAIRMAN 

10



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

 Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

  3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

P
h

il 
Jo

n
es

 
D

ire
ct

or
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

12
1 

23
2 

52
32

 
E

  
P

hi
l.w

.jo
ne

s@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

T
er

ry
 T

ob
in

 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

er
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

 1
21

 2
32

  5
27

6 
 

E
  

T
er

ry
.p

.to
bi

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

S
ar

ah
 G

o
o

d
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

12
1 

23
2 

53
34

 
E

  
S

ar
ah

.l.
go

od
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

11



Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 re

la
te

 o
nl

y 
to

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tte

nt
io

n,
 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
be

lie
ve

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

s p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 It
 is

 n
ot

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
re

co
rd

 o
f a

ll 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 m

at
te

rs
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

, a
nd

 in
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

he
ld

 re
sp

on
sib

le
 to

 y
ou

 fo
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

al
l o

f t
he

 ri
sk

s w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
yo

ur
 b

us
in

es
s o

r a
ny

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 y

ou
r i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s. 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

so
le

ly
 fo

r y
ou

r b
en

ef
it 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
qu

ot
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
 w

ith
ou

t o
ur

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

ct
in

g,
 

or
 re

fr
ai

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t, 
as

 th
is 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 n

ot
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

no
r i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r p
ur

po
se

. 

. 

12



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
3 3 

C
on

te
nt

s 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 

P
ag

e 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

4 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
at

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

5 

E
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

 

  G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

7 

  L
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
ss

ue
s 

8 

 
 

13



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
4 4 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

 T
hi

s 
pa

pe
r 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ith

 a
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ou

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 y
ou

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
.  

T
he

 p
ap

er
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 n
at

io
na

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 y

ou
. 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 c

an
 fi

nd
 fu

rt
he

r u
se

fu
l m

at
er

ia
l o

n 
ou

r 
w

eb
si

te
 w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k,
 w

he
re

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 

se
ct

io
n 

de
di

ca
te

d 
to

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r (
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ra
nt

-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k/

en
/S

er
vi

ce
s/

P
ub

lic
-S

ec
to

r/
).

 H
er

e 
yo

u 
ca

n 
do

w
nl

oa
d 

co
pi

es
 

of
 o

ur
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

   

•
A

ll 
ab

oa
rd

? 
ou

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
 2

01
5 

•
S

tr
on

ge
r f

ut
ur

es
: d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

en
si

on
 s

ch
em

e 

•
R

is
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e:
 th

e 
ev

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
su

m
m

ar
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 fo
ur

th
 y

ea
r 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

of
 E

ng
lis

h 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
  

•
20

20
 V

is
io

n,
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y 
fu

tu
re

 fo
r E

ng
lis

h 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t  

•
W

he
re

 g
ro

w
th

 h
ap

pe
ns

, o
n 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 d
yn

am
is

m
 a

cr
os

s 
E

ng
la

nd
 

 If 
yo

u 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 fu
rt

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 a

ny
 it

em
s 

in
 th

is
 b

rie
fin

g,
 o

r 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 re

gi
st

er
 w

ith
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
to

 re
ce

iv
e 

re
gu

la
r e

m
ai

l u
pd

at
es

 
on

 is
su

es
 th

at
 a

re
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t t
o 

yo
u,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t e

ith
er

 y
ou

r 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
or

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 

14



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
5 5 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
 

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e 

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

20
14

-1
5 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

W
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 is

su
e 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

iv
e 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

20
14

-1
5 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
Y

es
 

O
ur

 fe
e 

le
tte

r w
as

 s
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

I A
pr

il 
20

14
. 

O
ur

 d
et

ai
le

d 
au

di
t p

la
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

In
te

ri
m

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

  
O

ur
 in

te
rim

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
vi

si
t i

nc
lu

de
s:

 
•

up
da

tin
g 

ou
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
co

nt
ro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
•

up
da

tin
g 

ou
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s 
•

re
vi

ew
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 c
or

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

sy
st

em
s 

•
ea

rly
 w

or
k 

on
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

is
su

es
 

•
ea

rly
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
te

st
in

g 
•

pr
op

os
ed

 V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y-

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

N
o 

m
aj

or
 is

su
es

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 fr

om
 in

te
rim

 to
 d

at
e.

 

20
14

-1
5 

fi
n

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 

In
cl

ud
in

g:
 

•
au

di
t o

f t
he

 2
01

4-
15

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

•
pr

op
os

ed
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 

•
pr

op
os

ed
 V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

  

Ju
ly

-A
ug

us
t 2

01
5 

N
ot

 y
et

 
st

ar
te

d 
M

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
fix

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

an
d 

di
sc

us
s 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 fo

r 2
01

4/
15

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ea

rly
. 

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

re
d.

 

T
ra

in
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r o
ffi

ce
rs

. 

15



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
6 6 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e 

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

T
he

 s
co

pe
 o

f o
ur

 w
or

k 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
20

14
/1

5 
V

fM
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 c

om
pr

is
es

 th
e 

tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

: 
•

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
. T

he
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ro
bu

st
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l  

po
si

tio
n 

th
at

 e
na

bl
es

 it
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
 

•
T

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ho
w

 it
 s

ec
ur

es
 e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 T

he
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

in
 ti

gh
te

r b
ud

ge
ts

, f
or

 
ex

am
pl

e 
by

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

os
t r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
. 

 

M
ar

ch
-J

ul
y 

20
15

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

m
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

 a
nd

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

sh
ar

ed
. 

16



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
7 7 

A
ll 

A
bo

ar
d?

 - 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Re
vi

ew
 2

01
5 

 

G
ra

n
t T

h
o

rn
to

n
  

 O
ur

 fo
ur

th
 a

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k/
en

/P
ub

lic
at

io
ns

/2
01

5/
Lo

ca
l-

G
ov

er
nm

en
t-

G
ov

er
na

nc
e-

re
vi

ew
-2

01
5-

A
ll-

ab
oa

rd
1/

. 

 W
e 

no
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 fa

ce
d 

by
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
in

te
ns

ify
in

g 
as

 a
us

te
rit

y 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 c
om

bi
ne

 w
ith

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
pr

es
su

re
s 

an
d 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l c
ha

ng
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
hr

ea
t t

o 
th

e 
lo

ng
 -

te
rm

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 to

 s
om

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

ev
er

 m
or

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 im

po
rt

an
t. 

 A
ga

in
st

 th
is

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

w
e 

ha
ve

 fo
cu

se
d 

th
is

 y
ea

r's
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

n 
th

re
e 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s:
 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 –

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
ar

ea
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 th

is
 y

ea
r's

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

su
rv

ey
 

Is
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
is

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

sc
ru

tin
y 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 in
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 o

th
er

s 
– 

th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ur
ge

nt
 n

ee
d 

fo
r s

cr
ut

in
y 

to
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

go
od

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 a
rr

ay
 o

f p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 in

vo
lv

ed
. B

ou
nd

ar
y 

is
su

es
   

no
tw

ith
st

an
di

ng
, b

y 
's

hi
ni

ng
 a

 li
gh

t' 
on

 c
on

tr
ac

te
d-

ou
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 jo
in

t o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 o

r 
ve

nt
ur

es
, s

cr
ut

in
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

ca
n 

br
in

g 
a 

ne
w

 le
ve

l o
f t

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y 
to

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f 

st
ak

eh
o

ld
er

 r
el

at
io

n
s 

– 
de

sp
ite

 th
e 

w
or

k 
th

at
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
do

in
g 

w
ith

  
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
n 

'c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n'
, a

lm
os

t a
 th

ird
 o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 to
 o

ur
 s

ur
ve

y 
di

d 
no

t t
hi

nk
 th

ei
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

ac
tiv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
es

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 in

 d
es

ig
ni

ng
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

W
e 

co
nc

lu
de

 th
at

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

co
re

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

s 
ar

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

an
y 

ot
he

r a
ge

nc
ie

s 
. T

hi
s 

im
pl

ie
s 

a 
gr

ea
te

r r
ol

e 
fo

r s
cr

ut
in

y 
an

d 
a 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 lo
ca

l p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r B
od

ie
s'

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 fo
r s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s.

 
 H

ar
d 

co
pi

es
 o

f o
ur

 r
ep

or
t a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 y
ou

r 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
or

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
. 

17



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
8 8 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

om
m

iss
io

n 
in

to
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

in
an

ce
  

L
o

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
su

es
 

 T
he

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
 o

n 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
in

an
ce

 w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 2

01
4 

to
 e

xa
m

in
e 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
re

fo
rm

ed
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r l

oc
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. I

t p
ub

lis
he

d 
its

 fi
na

l r
ep

or
t, 

F
in

an
ci

ng
 E

ng
lis

h 
D

ev
ol

ut
io

n,
 o

n 
18

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
. 

T
he

 r
ep

or
t n

ot
es

 th
at

 th
e 

co
re

 o
f t

he
 C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 p
ro

po
si

tio
n 

is
 th

e 
de

vo
lu

tio
n 

of
 p

ow
er

s,
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
ta

xe
s 

to
 s

ub
-n

at
io

na
l e

nt
iti

es
 o

ve
r 

a 
10

 y
ea

r 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

y 
es

tim
at

e 
th

at
 th

is
 c

ou
ld

 le
ad

 to
 o

ve
r 

£2
00

 b
ill

io
n 

in
 p

ub
lic

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 b
ei

ng
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
at

 a
 s

ub
-n

at
io

na
l l

ev
el

. T
he

 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
is

 th
at

 c
ou

nc
ils

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

ou
ld

 w
or

k 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 in
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. T
he

y 
se

e 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

s 
be

co
m

in
g 

se
lf 

su
ffi

ci
en

t. 
 

T
he

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 a

 'v
ar

ia
bl

e 
sp

ee
d'

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 re
fo

rm
 w

ith
 'P

io
ne

er
s'

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
nd

 w
is

hi
ng

 to
 re

fo
rm

 a
t a

 fa
st

er
 p

ac
e.

 R
ef

or
m

s 
ad

vo
ca

te
d 

fo
r a

ll 
au

th
or

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
•

A
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

xt
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 

•
F

re
ed

om
 to

 s
et

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

an
d 

co
un

ci
l t

ax
 d

is
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 fu
ll 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 r
at

es
 g

ro
w

th
 

•
M

ul
ti-

ye
ar

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 
•

T
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 ra

is
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
ev

en
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
la

xa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ru
le

s 
on

 fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

   
'P

io
ne

er
' a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
im

pl
em

en
t: 

•
S

in
gl

e 
pl

ac
ed

-b
as

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r a
ll 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

•
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f f

un
di

ng
 e

qu
al

is
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 s
ub

-n
at

io
na

l a
re

a 
•

F
ur

th
er

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

re
fo

rm
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 v

ar
y 

co
un

ci
l t

ax
 b

an
ds

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 re

va
lu

at
io

ns
 

•
N

ew
ly

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
an

d 
ne

w
 ta

xe
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

st
am

p 
du

ty
, a

irp
or

t t
ax

es
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

m
 ta

xe
s 

•
T

he
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t o

f L
oc

al
 P

ub
lic

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

s 
to

 o
ve

rs
ee

 v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pl

ac
ed

-b
as

e 
bu

dg
et

. 

18



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
9 9 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
in

to
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f 

Ro
th

er
ha

m
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

L
o

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
su

es
 

 O
n 

4 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

 th
e 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
 fo

r C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
E

ric
 P

ic
kl

es
 a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 L

ou
is

e 
C

as
ey

’s
 r

ep
or

t .
 H

er
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

f f
un

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 ta

xi
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
hi

re
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

st
at

es
:  

 "R
ot

he
rh

am
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 fi
t f

or
 p

ur
po

se
. I

t i
s 

fa
ili

ng
 in

 it
s 

le
ga

l o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
w

ay
 in

 w
hi

ch
 it

 e
xe

rc
is

es
 it

s 
fu

nc
tio

ns
. I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, i
t i

s 
fa

ili
ng

 in
 it

s 
du

tie
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 h

ar
m

."
 

 It 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
rio

us
 fa

ili
ng

s:
 

•
a 

co
un

ci
l i

n 
de

ni
al

 a
bo

ut
 s

er
io

us
 a

nd
 o

n-
go

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 fa
ilu

re
s 

•
an

 a
rc

ha
ic

 c
ul

tu
re

 o
f s

ex
is

m
, b

ul
ly

in
g 

an
d 

di
sc

om
fo

rt
 a

ro
un

d 
ra

ce
 

•
fa

ilu
re

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 p

as
t w

ea
kn

es
se

s,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 in

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

•
w

ea
k 

an
d 

in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

ax
i l

ic
en

si
ng

 w
hi

ch
 le

av
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

t r
is

k 
•

in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

po
lit

ic
al

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

•
no

 s
ha

re
d 

vi
si

on
, a

 p
ar

tia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 a

nd
 in

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
lia

is
on

s 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

•
cu

ltu
re

 o
f c

ov
er

in
g 

up
 u

nc
om

fo
rt

ab
le

 tr
ut

hs
, s

ile
nc

in
g 

w
hi

st
le

-b
lo

w
er

s 
an

d 
•

pa
yi

ng
 o

ff 
st

af
f r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 d

iff
ic

ul
t i

ss
ue

s 
 T

he
 r

ep
or

t h
as

 h
ad

 w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

pr
es

s 
co

ve
ra

ge
 a

nd
 in

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

H
ou

se
 o

f C
om

m
on

s 
th

e 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

 o
f S

ta
te

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 th

at
 h

e 
is

 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ex

er
ci

si
ng

 h
is

 p
ow

er
s 

of
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 R
ot

he
rh

am
.  

   

19



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
10

 
10

 

C
ou

nc
ils

 fe
ar

 sc
ho

ol
 p

la
ce

 ti
pp

in
g 

po
in

t 

L
o

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
su

es
 

 Ju
st

 a
he

ad
 o

f t
he

 1
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s 

fo
r t

he
ir 

ch
ild

 fo
r S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

5 
th

e 
LG

A
 

w
ar

ne
d 

th
at

 th
e 

£1
2 

bi
lli

on
 c

os
t o

f c
re

at
in

g 
pl

ac
es

 fo
r t

he
 9

00
,0

00
 e

xt
ra

 p
up

ils
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

at
 E

ng
la

nd
's

 s
ch

oo
ls

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 d

ec
ad

e 
co

ul
d 

pu
sh

 s
ch

oo
ls

 to
 b

re
ak

in
g 

po
in

t. 
W

hi
ls

t t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t h

as
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 £
7.

35
 b

ill
io

n 
to

 c
re

at
e 

ex
tr

a 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s 

th
e 

LG
A

 c
la

im
s 

th
at

 th
is

 
st

ill
 c

re
at

es
 a

 b
ac

kl
og

. 
 T

he
 L

G
A

 is
 c

al
lin

g 
on

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

o 
fu

lly
-f

un
d 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f a

ll 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s,

 n
ow

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

, a
nd

 to
 g

iv
e 

co
un

ci
ls

 th
e 

po
w

er
s 

to
 

op
en

 n
ew

 s
ch

oo
ls

 w
ith

ou
t b

ur
ea

uc
ra

tic
 b

ur
de

ns
 s

o 
th

ey
 c

an
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 lo

ca
l n

ee
d.

 T
he

 L
G

A
's

 ‘I
nv

es
tin

g 
in

 o
ur

 n
at

io
n'

s 
fu

tu
re

' c
am

pa
ig

n 
ou

tli
ne

s 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
hi

ch
 it

 c
la

im
s 

w
ou

ld
 s

av
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ur
se

 £
11

 b
ill

io
n,

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y'
s 

ho
us

in
g 

cr
is

is
, e

ns
ur

e 
ev

er
y 

ch
ild

 h
ad

 a
 p

la
ce

 a
t a

 g
oo

d 
sc

ho
ol

, r
ed

uc
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
po

th
ol

e 
ba

ck
lo

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
na

tio
n'

s 
he

al
th

.  
  

20



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 

©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n'
 a

re
 

to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
wo

rld
wi

de
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
  

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

21



22



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
Pl

an
 

fo
r H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

 Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

10
 M

ar
ch

  2
01

5 

P
h

il 
Jo

n
es

 
D

ire
ct

or
 

T
 

01
21

 2
32

 5
23

2 
 

E
  

ph
il.

w
.jo

ne
s@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

T
er

ry
 T

o
b

in
 

S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

 
T

 
01

21
 2

32
 5

27
6 

 
E

  
te

rr
y.

p.
to

bi
n@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

S
ar

ah
 G

o
o

d
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
T

 
01

21
 2

32
 5

33
4 

E
   

sa
ra

h.
l.g

oo
d@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

23



Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f 

th
is 

re
po

rt
 r

el
at

e 
on

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 o

ur
 a

tte
nt

io
n,

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
yo

u 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
es

s. 
 I

t 
is 

no
t 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
al

l t
he

 r
el

ev
an

t 
m

at
te

rs
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 c

ha
ng

e,
 a

nd
 in

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 w
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
he

ld
 re

sp
on

sib
le

 to
 y

ou
 fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
al

l o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ny

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 y

ou
r i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s. 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 s

ol
el

y 
fo

r 
yo

ur
 b

en
ef

it 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

qu
ot

ed
 i

n 
w

ho
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

ou
r 

pr
io

r 
w

rit
te

n 
co

ns
en

t. 
W

e 
do

 n
ot

 a
cc

ep
t a

ny
 re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 fo

r a
ny

 lo
ss

 o
cc

as
io

ne
d 

to
 a

ny
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 a
ct

in
g,

 
or

 r
ef

ra
in

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is 

of
 t

he
 c

on
te

nt
 o

f 
th

is 
re

po
rt

, a
s 

th
is 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 n

ot
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

no
r i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r p
ur

po
se

. 

24



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

C
on

te
nt

s 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 
 

1.
U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 y
ou

r b
us

in
es

s 
4 

2.
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 re
le

va
nt

 to
 y

ou
r b

us
in

es
s a

nd
 th

e 
au

di
t 

5 

3.
O

ur
 a

ud
it 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
6 

4.
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 ri
sk

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  7
 

5.
O

th
er

 ri
sk

s  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  8

 

6.
V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
 

7.
R

es
ul

ts
 o

f i
nt

er
im

 w
or

k 
 

   
 1

0 

8.
K

ey
 d

at
es

 
12

 

9.
Fe

es
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

13
 

10
.

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ud
it 

m
at

te
rs

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
14

 

 
 

25



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 y

ou
r b

us
in

es
s 

C
h

al
le

n
g

es
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 

1.
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
n

 
&

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

re
ss

u
re

s 
 

•
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 c
en

tr
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
un

di
ng

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

se
t a

 2
01

4/
15

 r
ev

en
ue

 
bu

dg
et

 a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
am

ou
nt

in
g 

to
 £

33
 m

ill
io

n 
to

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

20
17

.  

2.
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

•
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
of

 a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
; a

n 
ar

ea
 w

hi
ch

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t s

in
gl

e 
ar

ea
 o

f 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
os

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
e 

ag
en

da
 f

ac
ed

 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

 

3.
 S

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 

•
C

ha
ng

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 O

fs
te

d 
ar

ou
nd

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 b
ut

 it
 is

 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
th

at
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

is
 s

til
l r

eq
ui

re
d.

 

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 a

nd
 it

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
ns

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ep
or

t o
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 in

 th
e 

A
ut

um
n 

•
T

hr
ou

gh
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 k

ey
 

of
fic

er
s 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

t r
ev

ie
w

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 th
is

 
ar

ea
. 

•
T

hr
ou

gh
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 k

ey
 

of
fic

er
s 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

t r
ev

ie
w

, 
w

e 
w

ill
 m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 th
is

 
ar

ea
. 

 

In
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ou
r a

ud
it 

w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 a
nd

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is 
fa

ci
ng

.  
W

e 
se

t o
ut

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 b
el

ow
. 

4.
 C

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti

ve
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 th

e 
N

H
S

 

•
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f n
ew

 w
or

ki
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

B
et

te
r 

C
ar

e 
F

un
d 

•
N

H
S

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ca
re

 o
ve

rlo
ad

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

-e
m

er
ge

nc
e 

of
 b

ed
-

bl
oc

ki
ng

 li
nk

ed
 to

 a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 
ca

re
 c

ap
ac

ity
. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 m

ee
t w

ith
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 m
em

be
rs

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 fa

ci
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

26



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 y
ou

r b
us

in
es

s a
nd

 th
e 

au
di

t 
In

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ou

r a
ud

it 
w

e 
al

so
 c

on
sid

er
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f k

ey
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f n

at
io

na
l a

ud
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
s s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
('t

he
 c

od
e')

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

. 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

1.
F

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g

 

�
C

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 

�
C

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

 la
nd

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

n 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

ts
 

 

2.
 L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 

�
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
in

an
ce

 
se

ttl
em

en
t  

 

 

3.
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

�
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t (

A
G

S
) 

�
E

xp
la

na
to

ry
 f

or
ew

or
d 

 

4.
 B

et
te

r 
C

ar
e 

F
u

n
d

 

�
B

et
te

r 
C

ar
e 

F
un

d 
(B

C
F

) 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

po
ol

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
ro

m
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

15
 

5.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

�
M

an
ag

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ith
 le

ss
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

�
P

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t s

av
in

gs
 

pl
an

s 

6.
 O

th
er

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

�
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
su

bm
it 

a 
W

ho
le

 o
f 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ck

 
on

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 a
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
 

�
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
pl

et
es

 g
ra

nt
 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

on
 w

hi
ch

 
au

di
t c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 

W
e 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 

�
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

IP
F

A
 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 o

ur
 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

te
st

in
g 

 

�
sc

ho
ol

s 
ar

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

co
rr

ec
tly

 a
nd

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
la

te
st

 g
ui

da
nc

e 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

th
e 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
A

G
S

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
A

G
S

  a
nd

 
th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

to
 

co
ns

id
er

 w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 a
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 o
ur

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 k

ee
p 

a 
w

at
ch

in
g 

br
ie

f 
on

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

  t
he

 B
et

te
r 

C
ar

e 
F

un
d.

 

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il'
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

20
14

/1
5 

bu
dg

et
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 s

av
in

gs
 p

la
n 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 

of
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ili
en

ce
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f o
ur

 V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

W
G

A
 p

ac
k 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 c

er
tif

y 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 s
ub

si
dy

 c
la

im
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 
P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r 

A
ud

it 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 L
td

. T
hi

s 
co

m
pa

ny
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 g
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
15

. 

 

27



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

D
ev

is
e 

au
d

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

(p
la

n
n

ed
 c

o
n

tr
o

l r
el

ia
n

ce
?

) 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

G
lo

b
al

 a
u

d
it

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

E
n

su
re

s 
co

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

IS
A

s)
 

C
re

at
es

 a
n

d
 t

ai
lo

rs
  

au
d

it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
S

to
re

s 
au

d
it

 
ev

id
en

ce
 

D
o

cu
m

en
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
  

an
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

en
tit

y 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 
fo

cu
s 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 

E
va

lu
at

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

’s
 r

es
ul

ts
 

In
he

re
nt

  
ris

ks
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t  

ris
ks

 

O
th

er
 

ris
ks

 

M
at

er
ia

l 
ba

la
nc

es
 

Y
es

 
N

o 

�
T

es
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

 
�

T
es

ts
 o

f d
et

ai
l 

�
T

es
t o

f d
et

ai
l 

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

C
on

cl
ud

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 

G
en

er
al

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

ID
E

A
 

E
xt

ra
ct

 
yo

ur
 d

at
a 

R
ep

or
t o

ut
pu

t 
to

 te
am

s 

A
na

ly
se

 d
at

a 
us

in
g 

re
le

va
nt

 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 t
o

 
o

b
ta

in
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 

as
su

ra
n

ce
 th

at
 t

h
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

as
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
re

 f
re

e 
fr

o
m

 m
at

er
ia

l  
m

is
st

at
em

en
t a

n
d

 
p

re
p

ar
ed

 in
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
la  

re
sp

ec
ts

 
w

it
h

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 u
si

n
g

 o
u

r 
g

lo
b

al
 m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

g
y 

an
d

 a
u

d
it

 s
o

ft
w

ar
e 

N
ot

e:
 

a.
 A

n 
ite

m
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

m
at

er
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
if,

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 o

m
is

si
on

 o
r 

no
n-

di
sc

lo
su

re
, t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

w
ou

ld
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 s
ho

w
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 
fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

28



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 ri

sk
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
'S

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
isk

s o
fte

n 
re

la
te

 to
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
on

-r
ou

tin
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 ju
dg

m
en

ta
l m

at
te

rs
. N

on
-r

ou
tin

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 u

nu
su

al
, e

ith
er

 d
ue

 to
 si

ze
 o

r 
na

tu
re

, a
nd

 th
at

 th
er

ef
or

e 
oc

cu
r i

nf
re

qu
en

tly
. J

ud
gm

en
ta

l m
at

te
rs

 m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is 

sig
ni

fic
an

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y' 
(I

SA
 3

15
). 

 

In
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
w

e 
ou

tli
ne

 th
e 

sig
ni

fic
an

t r
isk

s o
f m

at
er

ia
l m

iss
ta

te
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 tw
o 

pr
es

um
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

isk
s w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ll 

au
di

ts
 

un
de

r a
ud

iti
ng

 st
an

da
rd

s (
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 –
 IS

A
s)

  w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

st
ed

 b
el

ow
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t r
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 
S

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 

T
he

 r
ev

en
ue

 c
yc

le
 in

cl
ud

es
 

fr
au

du
le

nt
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

U
nd

er
 IS

A
 2

40
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
re

su
m

ed
 ri

sk
 th

at
 r

ev
en

ue
 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
pr

op
er

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
re

ve
nu

e.
   

 T
hi

s 
pr

es
um

pt
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 r
eb

ut
te

d 
if 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

co
nc

lu
de

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ris

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t 
du

e 
to

 fr
au

d 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 r
ev

en
ue

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n.

 

H
av

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

e 
ris

k 
fa

ct
or

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 IS

A
24

0 
an

d 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 r

ev
en

ue
 

st
re

am
s 

at
  H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 c
an

 b
e 

re
bu

tte
d,

 b
ec

au
se

: 
 •

th
er

e 
is

 li
ttl

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

to
 m

an
ip

ul
at

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 
•

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 m

an
ip

ul
at

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 a
re

 v
er

y 
lim

ite
d 

•
th

e 
cu

ltu
re

 a
nd

 e
th

ic
al

 fr
am

ew
or

ks
 o

f l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s 

of
 fr

au
d 

ar
e 

se
en

 a
s 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

. 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

ve
r-

rid
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

U
nd

er
 IS

A
 2

40
 th

e 
pr

es
um

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
ve

r-
rid

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
is

 p
re

se
nt

 in
 a

ll 
en

tit
ie

s.
 

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

: 

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

, j
ud

gm
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

�
T

es
tin

g 
of

 jo
ur

na
l e

nt
rie

s 

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f u
nu

su
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t l
ev

el
 r

is
k 

O
n 

th
e 

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
15

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

e 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

th
ei

r 
le

dg
er

, w
hi

ch
 in

vo
lv

es
 d

at
a 

tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 o
ne

 le
dg

er
 to

 
an

ot
he

r  
 

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

: 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
da

ta
 tr

an
sf

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

da
ta

 tr
an

sf
er

 w
as

 
ac

cu
ra

te
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
e 

29



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

O
th

er
 ri

sk
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 

Th
e 

au
di

to
r s

ho
ul

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 th

e 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
en

tit
y's

 c
on

tr
ol

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
le

va
nt

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, o

ve
r t

ho
se

 ri
sk

s f
or

 w
hi

ch
, i

n 
th

e 
au

di
to

r's
 ju

dg
m

en
t, 

it 
is 

no
t p

os
sib

le
 o

r p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
ks

 o
f m

at
er

ia
l m

iss
ta

te
m

en
t a

t t
he

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
le

ve
l t

o 
an

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
y 

lo
w

 le
ve

l w
ith

 a
ud

it 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

on
ly

 fr
om

 su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 (I

SA
 3

15
). 

 

In
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
w

e 
ou

tli
ne

 th
e 

ot
he

r r
isk

s o
f m

at
er

ia
l m

iss
ta

te
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 o

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g.

 

 O
th

er
 r

is
ks

 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 
A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

C
re

di
to

rs
 u

nd
er

st
at

ed
 o

r 
no

t r
ec

or
de

d 
in

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t p

er
io

d 
(O

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

 u
nd

er
st

at
ed

) 
W

o
rk

 p
la

n
n

ed
 

•
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

 s
ys

te
m

 in
te

rf
ac

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 

•
cu

t o
ff 

te
st

in
g 

of
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

or
de

rs
 a

nd
 g

oo
ds

 re
ce

iv
ed

 n
ot

es
(b

ot
h 

be
fo

re
 a

nd
 a

fte
r 

ye
ar

 e
nd

) 

•
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ru
al

s 
pr

oc
es

s 

•
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 c

re
di

to
r b

al
an

ce
s 

at
 3

1/
3/

15
 

 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
 re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

ac
cr

ua
ls

 u
nd

er
st

at
ed

 
(R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
es

 n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

) 
W

o
rk

 p
la

n
n

ed
 

•
pa

yr
ol

l r
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

pa
yr

ol
l s

ys
te

m
 c

an
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 to
 th

e 
le

dg
er

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

•
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
in

 A
pr

il 
an

d 
M

ay
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pa
yr

ol
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 is

 
re

co
rd

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t y

ea
r.

 

•
re

vi
ew

in
g 

m
on

th
ly

 tr
en

d 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
ot

al
 p

ay
ro

ll 

W
el

fa
re

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
W

el
fa

re
 b

en
ef

it 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 im
pr

op
er

ly
 c

om
pu

te
d 

W
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 te
st

in
g 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fit
 s

ub
si

dy
 c

la
im

 

30



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

Va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

Th
e 

C
od

e 
re

qu
ire

s u
s t

o 
iss

ue
 a

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

on
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s p
ut

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s i

n 
its

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

. T
hi

s i
s k

no
w

n 
as

 th
e 

V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 (V

fM
) c

on
cl

us
io

n.
  

O
ur

 V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
iss

io
n:

 

  

W
e 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s o

f r
isk

 to
 o

ur
 V

fM
 

co
nc

lu
sio

n.
 W

e 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

th
at

 w
e 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 re

vi
ew

s o
f t

he
: 

•
re

as
on

ab
le

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ad
op

te
d 

fo
r 2

01
4/

15
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

tin
g 

•
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f i
n 

ye
ar

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 

20
14

/1
5 

bu
dg

et
 

•
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

•
le

ve
l o

f r
es

er
ve

s a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s r
es

er
ve

s s
tr

at
eg

y 

•
C

ou
nc

il’
s p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 k

ey
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 ta

rg
et

s. 

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f o
ur

 V
fM

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s a
ris

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 
in

 o
ur

 A
ud

it 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 re

po
rt

 a
nd

 in
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r. 

 
  

V
fM

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
F

o
cu

s 
o

f 
th

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 

Th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

ha
s p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r s
ec

ur
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

sil
ie

nc
e 

Th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

ha
s r

ob
us

t s
ys

te
m

s a
nd

 
pr

oc
es

se
s t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 ri

sk
s a

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 e
ff

ec
tiv

el
y,

 a
nd

 to
 se

cu
re

 a
 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 it

 to
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

 fo
re

se
ea

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
 

Th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

ha
s p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

ho
w

 
it 

se
cu

re
s e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 

Th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

is 
pr

io
rit

isi
ng

 it
s 

re
so

ur
ce

s w
ith

in
 ti

gh
te

r b
ud

ge
ts

, f
or

 
ex

am
pl

e 
by

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

os
t r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
by

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 

31



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

Re
su

lts
 o

f 
in

te
rim

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

Th
e 

fin
di

ng
s o

f o
ur

 in
te

rim
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k,
 a

nd
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f o

ur
 fi

nd
in

gs
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

ud
it 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, a
re

 su
m

m
ar

ise
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
: 

 

W
o

rk
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

In
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

 
W

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f  

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it'
s 

ov
er

al
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
th

ei
r w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ke
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 d
at

e.
 

 

W
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

as
 p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 
in

te
rim

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 t

he
 I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

is
 

cr
ed

ib
le

, 
en

jo
ys

 a
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l s
ta

tu
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
s 

a 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 a
nd

 d
is

ci
pl

in
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
its

 w
or

k.
 

W
al

kt
h

ro
u

g
h

 te
st

in
g

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
al

kt
hr

ou
gh

 te
st

s 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

in
 a

re
as

 
w

he
re

 w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 th
at

  t
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

O
ur

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

ny
 is

su
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

is
h 

to
 b

rin
g 

to
 y

ou
r 

at
te

nt
io

n.
 In

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 o
ur

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g.
  

O
ur

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

ny
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ou

r 
au

di
t a

pp
ro

ac
h.

  

E
n

ti
ty

 l
ev

el
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

co
nt

ro
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

•
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f i

nt
eg

rit
y 

an
d 

et
hi

ca
l v

al
ue

s 

•
C

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

•
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

by
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

•
M

an
ag

em
en

t's
 p

hi
lo

so
ph

y 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

st
yl

e 

•
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l s
tr

uc
tu

re
 

•
A

ss
ig

nm
en

t o
f a

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 

•
H

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

 

O
ur

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

no
 m

at
er

ia
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
lik

el
y 

to
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

  

 

32



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

Re
su

lts
 o

f 
in

te
rim

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

co
nt

'd
 

  
W

o
rk

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

Jo
u

rn
al

 e
n

tr
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

ou
r 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 te
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t o

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

 

N
o 

is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 d

at
e.

 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
te

st
in

g 
on

 jo
ur

na
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
ou

r 
in

te
rim

 a
nd

 y
ea

r 
en

d 
au

di
t v

is
its

. 

E
ar

ly
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

so
m

e 
ea

rly
 te

st
in

g 
on

 p
ay

ro
ll 

an
d 

op
er

at
in

g 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 c
ov

er
in

g 
m

on
th

s 
1-

9.
 

N
o 

is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 d

at
e.

  W
e 

w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
te

st
in

g 
at

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

, 

33



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 c

y
c

le
 

K
ey

 d
at

es
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/ 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
  

D
eb

ri
ef

 
In

te
ri

m
 a

u
d

it
  

vi
si

t 
F

in
al

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 
V

is
it

 

Ja
n

 –
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
Ju

ly
 –

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

01
5 

S
ep

t 
20

15
 

S
ep

t 
20

15
 

K
e

y
 p

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it

 

20
14

-2
01

5 

D
a

te
 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
20

15
 

P
la

nn
in

g 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
- 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

In
te

rim
 s

ite
 v

is
it 

19
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 to
 A

ud
it 

&
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Ju
ly

-A
u

g
u

st
 2

01
5 

Y
ea

r 
en

d 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

L
at

e 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

5 
(t

b
c)

 
A

ud
it 

fin
di

ng
s 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
m

ee
tin

g 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

5 
(t

b
c)

 
R

ep
or

t a
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s 
to

 A
ud

it 
&

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

B
y 

30
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
5 

S
ig

n 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

pi
ni

on
 

34



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

F
e

e
s
 

£ 

C
ou

nc
il a

ud
it 

16
4,

80
3 

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ica
tio

n 
 

6,
42

0 

To
ta

l f
ee

s 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 V
A

T)
 

17
1,

22
3 

Fe
es

 a
nd

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 

O
u

r 
fe

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

�
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le

s t
o 

al
l f

ig
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
ar

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

ag
re

ed
 d

at
es

 a
nd

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 u
po

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

t l
ist

 

�
Th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, h
av

e 
no

t c
ha

ng
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 

�
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
af

f t
o 

he
lp

 u
s l

oc
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xp

la
na

tio
ns

 

In
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 e
th

ic
s
 

W
e 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fa
ct

s o
r m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ou
r i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e 

as
 a

ud
ito

rs
 th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
or

 w
ish

 to
 d

ra
w

 to
 y

ou
r a

tte
nt

io
n.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
's 

E
th

ic
al

 
St

an
da

rd
s a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

w
e 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
at

em
en

ts
. 

Fu
ll 

de
ta

ils
 o

f a
ll 

fe
es

 c
ha

rg
ed

 fo
r a

ud
it 

an
d 

no
n-

au
di

t s
er

vi
ce

s w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 re
po

rt
 a

t t
he

 
co

nc
lu

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t. 

W
e 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
po

lic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 
Bo

ar
d'

s E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

  

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
F

ee
s 

£ 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
 re

tu
rn

 
4,

20
0 

G
ra

n
t 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

�
O

ur
 fe

es
 fo

r g
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

co
ve

r o
nl

y 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 su
bs

id
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 w
hi

ch
 fa

lls
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r A
ud

it 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 L
im

ite
d,

 
as

 th
e 

su
cc

es
so

r t
o 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

iss
io

n 
in

 th
is 

ar
ea

.  

�
Fe

es
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f o
th

er
 g

ra
nt

 w
or

k,
 su

ch
 a

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 re

po
rt

s, 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

un
de

r '
Fe

es
 

fo
r o

th
er

 se
rv

ic
es

.' 

 

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Fe
es

 fo
r o

th
er

 se
rv

ic
es

 re
fle

ct
 th

os
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 is
su

in
g 

ou
r A

ud
it 

Pl
an

. A
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 

ou
r A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 R
ep

or
t a

nd
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r. 

 

35



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

| 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ud
it 

m
at

te
rs

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 

O
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 p
la

n
 

A
u

d
it

 
p

la
n

 
A

u
d

it
 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

R
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t/t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ü
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t. 
F

or
m

, t
im

in
g 

an
d 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 g
en

er
al

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

ü
 

V
ie

w
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

 o
f t

he
 e

nt
ity

's
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

po
rt

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, s
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 a

nd
 is

su
e 

ar
is

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 w

rit
te

n 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ou
gh

t 

ü
 

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
  r

el
ev

an
t e

th
ic

al
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
,  

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
  

be
 th

ou
gh

t t
o 

be
ar

 o
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.  

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f n

on
-a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 a
nd

 
ne

tw
or

k 
fir

m
s,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

  f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d.
   

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 th
re

at
s 

to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

ü
  

ü
 

M
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t 

ü
 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
or

 s
us

pi
ci

on
 o

f f
ra

ud
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
ot

he
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
ü

 

N
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
ü

 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

au
di

to
r's

 re
po

rt
, o

r 
em

ph
as

is
 o

f m
at

te
r 

ü
 

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 

ü
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

ü
 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 

ü
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
  (

IS
A

) 
26

0,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

IS
A

s,
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

m
at

te
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
w

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

op
po

si
te

.  
 

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n,

 o
ut

lin
es

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

w
hi

le
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
  a

nd
 

w
ill

 p
re

se
nt

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
as

 to
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

so
lv

ed
. 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
or

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

fin
di

ng
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t o

n 
a 

tim
el

y 
ba

si
s,

 e
ith

er
 in

fo
rm

al
ly

 o
r 

vi
a 

a 
re

po
rt

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f t

he
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
of

 
A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (

w
w

w
.a

ud
it-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
ito

rs
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, t
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
ap

po
in

tin
g 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
. A

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 b
ro

ad
 re

m
it 

co
ve

rin
g 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 m

at
te

rs
.  

O
ur

 a
nn

ua
l w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 s

et
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

('t
he

 
C

od
e'

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 n

at
io

na
lly

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 a

nd
 lo

ca
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
or

k.
 O

ur
 w

or
k 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ke
y 

ris
ks

 w
he

n 
re

ac
hi

ng
 o

ur
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
C

od
e.

  

It 
is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

nd
uc

t o
f i

ts
 b

us
in

es
s,

 a
nd

 th
at

 p
ub

lic
 m

on
ey

 is
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rly
 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r.
  W

e 
ha

ve
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 fu
lfi

lli
ng

 th
es

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
  

36



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n'
 a

re
 

to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
wo

rld
wi

de
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
  

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

37



38



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

In
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t r

isk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t  
fo

r H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 

20
14

/1
5 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

P
h

il 
Jo

n
es

  
D

ir
ec

to
r 

T
 

01
21

 2
32

  5
23

2 
E

  
ph

il.
w

.jo
ne

s@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

T
er

ry
 T

o
b

in
 

A
u

d
it

 M
an

ag
er

 
T

 
01

21
 2

32
  5

27
6 

E
  

te
rr

y.
p.

to
bi

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

S
ar

ah
 G

o
o

d
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

T
 

01
21

 2
32

53
34

 
E

  
sa

ra
h.

l.g
oo

d@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

39



Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 re

la
te

 o
nl

y 
to

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tte

nt
io

n,
 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
be

lie
ve

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

s p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 It
 is

 n
ot

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
re

co
rd

 o
f a

ll 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 m

at
te

rs
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

, a
nd

 in
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

he
ld

 re
sp

on
sib

le
 to

 y
ou

 fo
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

al
l o

f t
he

 ri
sk

s w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
yo

ur
 b

us
in

es
s o

r a
ny

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 y

ou
r i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s. 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

so
le

ly
 fo

r y
ou

r b
en

ef
it 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
qu

ot
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
 w

ith
ou

t o
ur

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

ct
in

g,
 

or
 re

fr
ai

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t, 
as

 th
is 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 n

ot
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

no
r i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r p
ur

po
se

. 

. 

40



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

3 3 

C
on

te
nt

s 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 
P

a
g

e
 

Pu
rp

os
e 

4 

Fr
au

d 
5 

Fr
au

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
6 

- 8
 

La
w

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
9 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
10

-1
1 

 

G
oi

ng
 C

on
ce

rn
 

12
 

G
oi

ng
 C

on
ce

rn
 C

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

 
13

  

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

E
st

im
at

es
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

-1
7 

R
el

at
ed

 P
ar

tie
s  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
8-

19
 

41



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

4 4 

Pu
rp

os
e 

 T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tw
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

au
di

to
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, 

as
 't

ho
se

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e'

. T
he

 r
ep

or
t c

ov
er

s 
so

m
e 

im
po

rt
an

t a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ito
r 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

he
re

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
qu

iri
es

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 u

nd
er

 a
ud

iti
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
.  

   
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
U

nd
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

 (I
S

A
(U

K
&

I)
) a

ud
ito

rs
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. I
S

A
(U

K
&

I)
 e

m
ph

as
is

e 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

w
o-

w
ay

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
sp

ec
ify

 
m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
. 

 T
hi

s 
tw

o-
w

ay
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
as

si
st

s 
bo

th
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
an

d 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 in

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 m

at
te

rs
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
co

ns
tr

uc
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p.

 It
 a

ls
o 

en
ab

le
s 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

au
di

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 fu

lfi
lli

ng
 it

s 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

an
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
's

 
ov

er
si

gh
t o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

 
•

fr
au

d 
•

la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
•

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n.
  

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 o

n 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

se
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
sp

on
se

 w
e 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

T
he

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 th

es
e 

re
sp

on
se

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

its
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

m
m

en
ts

 it
 w

is
he

s 
to

 m
ak

e.
  

 

42



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

5 5 

Fr
au

d 

Is
su

e 

M
at

te
rs

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 to
 f

ra
u

d
 

 IS
A

(U
K

&
I)

24
0 

co
ve

rs
 a

ud
ito

rs
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 fr
au

d 
in

 a
n 

au
di

t o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 T

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 re

st
s 

w
ith

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
w

ith
 t

he
 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, n

ee
ds

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

st
ro

ng
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

fr
au

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

de
te

rr
en

ce
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
 c

ul
tu

re
 o

f 
ho

ne
st

 a
nd

 e
th

ic
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
. A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f i
ts

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
, t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 o

ve
rr

id
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

an
d 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
 A

s 
au

di
to

r,
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 fr
ee

 fr
om

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
a t

em
en

t d
ue

 
to

 fr
au

d 
or

 e
rr

or
. W

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

ce
pt

ic
is

m
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
rid

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

s.
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ris

ks
 o

f f
ra

ud
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 fr

au
d 

ris
ks

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
  

 •
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 fr
au

d 
•

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
an

d 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 ri

sk
s 

of
 fr

au
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 
•

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
its

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

an
d 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 ri
sk

s 
of

 fr
au

d 
•

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 e

th
ic

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

.  
  W

e 
ne

ed
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

ho
w

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
ve

rs
ee

s 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
qu

iri
es

 o
f b

ot
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
to

 th
ei

r 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

ct
ua

l, 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

or
 a

lle
ge

d 
fr

au
d.

 T
he

se
 a

re
as

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

et
 o

ut
 

in
 th

e 
fr

au
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t q

ue
st

io
ns

 b
el

ow
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 r

es
po

ns
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

 

43



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

6 6 

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

H
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d?

 
W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oc

es
s?

 

T
he

 r
is

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t o
f  

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 d
ue

 to
 u

nd
et

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d 

is
 lo

w
. 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

be
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l, 

cl
ea

r 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 b

ot
h 

pr
ev

en
t a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
. 

H
av

e 
an

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fr

au
d 

ris
ks

, o
r 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 
fr

au
d,

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

w
ha

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
 to

 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

es
e 

ris
ks

? 

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 n
o 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

or
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s 
of

 fr
au

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
nc

e 
A

pr
il 

20
14

. 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
tu

rn
ed

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 S
ur

ve
y 

  

D
o 

yo
u 

su
sp

ec
t f

ra
ud

 m
ay

 b
e 

oc
cu

rr
in

g,
 e

ith
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l o
r 

w
ith

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
? 

-
H

av
e 

yo
u 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fr

au
d 

ris
ks

? 
-

D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

t 
ris

k 
of

 fr
au

d?
 

-
A

re
 th

er
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
he

re
 

fr
au

d 
is

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 o

cc
ur

? 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 s

us
pe

ct
 fr

au
d 

is
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 H

ow
ev

er
, e

vi
de

nc
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l F
ra

ud
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

am
on

gs
t o

th
er

s,
 s

ug
ge

st
s 

th
at

 fr
au

d 
is

 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 in
 a

ll 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 v
ar

yi
ng

 d
eg

re
es

, s
o 

it 
is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

at
 s

om
e 

fr
au

d 
is

 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

at
 H

er
ef

or
d.

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 fr

au
d 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
 p

la
ce

. 

T
he

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

ra
ud

 ri
sk

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
ke

y 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
th

e 
w

or
k 

it 
co

m
pl

et
es

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 A
nt

i-F
ra

ud
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 fi

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
is

 m
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

re
co

rd
 fr

au
d 

ris
ks

 w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
on

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
. T

he
re

 a
re

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 a
re

 in
he

re
nt

ly
 a

t 
ris

k 
su

ch
 a

s:
 

-
C

ou
nc

il 
ta

x;
 a

nd
 

-
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 te
am

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

 d
iv

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 in
ve

st
ig

at
es

 a
ny

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
ra

ud
 is

su
es

. 

44



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

7 7 

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

A
re

 y
ou

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

-
T

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l 
co

nt
ro

l; 
-

In
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

se
gr

eg
at

io
n 

du
tie

s;
 

-
E

xi
st

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
 

If 
no

t w
he

re
 a

re
 th

e 
ris

k 
ar

ea
s?

 
W

ha
t o

th
er

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 h
el

p 
pr

ev
en

t, 
de

te
r o

r 
de

te
ct

 fr
au

d?
 

Y
es

  
In

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l A

ss
ur

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t i

ss
ue

d 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

14
 fo

r t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

its
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

co
nc

lu
de

d:
 W

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fi

nd
in

gs
 fo

r t
he

 k
ey

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
ud

its
, h

ow
ev

er
 w

e 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

so
m

e 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 s
eg

re
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
at

 S
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

ly
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

  c
on

tr
ol

 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 S
o 

ye
s 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

ho
w

ev
er

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
di

d 
no

t i
de

nt
ify

 a
ny

 
fr

au
du

le
nt

 a
ct

iv
ity

. A
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s.

  
T

he
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

se
em

 to
 s

te
m

 fr
om

 la
ck

 o
f g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 p
oo

r 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
ny

 in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 c
om

m
it 

fr
au

d.
  

 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

ab
ou

t y
ou

r 
vi

ew
s 

on
 b

us
in

es
s 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
nd

 e
th

ic
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
? 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
st

af
f t

o 
re

po
rt

 th
ei

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 

ab
ou

t f
ra

ud
? 

W
ha

t c
on

ce
rn

s 
ar

e 
st

af
f e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 r

ep
or

t a
bo

ut
 fr

au
d?

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

an
 A

nt
i-F

ra
ud

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
a 

W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 

w
hi

ch
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 fo
llo

w
 w

he
n 

st
af

f n
ee

d 
to

 ra
is

e 
an

y 
fr

au
d 

co
nc

er
ns

 
T

he
se

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

st
af

f v
ia

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
in

tr
an

et
.  

   

F
ro

m
 a

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e,

 w
ha

t a
re

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
hi

gh
-r

is
k 

po
st

s?
 

- 
H

ow
 a

re
 th

e 
ris

ks
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
es

e 
po

st
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

? 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 h

ig
h-

 r
is

k 
po

st
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 

   

45



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

8 8 

Fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 o

r 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 g
iv

e 
ris

e 
to

 ri
sk

s 
of

 fr
au

d?
 

- 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 fr

au
d 

re
la

te
d 

to
 re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
y 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 

W
e 

ar
e 

no
t a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 in

 2
01

4-
15

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 g
iv

e 
ris

e 
to

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 

fr
au

d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
fu

ll 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 o
f a

ny
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 th
at

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
s.

 M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ny

 r
el

ev
an

t i
nt

er
es

ts
 a

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
gs

  

  

W
ha

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 re
po

rt
 fr

au
d 

is
su

es
 to

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
? 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

ith
 u

pd
at

es
 o

f t
he

ir 
w

or
k 

on
 fr

au
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
de

te
ct

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fr

au
ds

 a
nd

 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

ta
ke

n.
 

   

46



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

9 9 

La
w

s a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

Is
su

e 

M
at

te
rs

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 to
 la

w
s 

an
d

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

 IS
A

(U
K

&
I)

25
0 

re
qu

ire
s 

us
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

  o
f l

aw
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 in

 a
n 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, i

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

re
 c

on
du

ct
e d

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
th

at
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.  
 A

s 
au

di
to

r,
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 fr
ee

 fr
om

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t d
ue

 to
 

fr
au

d 
or

 e
rr

or
, t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ga

l a
nd

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k.
 A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f o
ur

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

in
qu

iri
es

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
s 

to
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
en

tit
y 

is
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
W

he
re

 w
e 

be
co

m
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
or

 s
us

pe
ct

ed
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 g
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 n
on

-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 R

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t q

ue
st

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

et
 o

ut
 b

el
ow

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fr

om
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

47



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

10
 

10
 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
law

s a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

H
ow

 d
oe

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

? 
T

he
 r

ol
e 

of
 th

e 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r i

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
as

 'r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
fo

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l b
re

ac
h 

of
 a

 le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

or
 C

ab
in

et
'. 

T
he

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r i
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
 te

am
 o

f L
eg

al
 a

nd
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

R
es

ili
en

ce
 T

ea
m

. T
og

et
he

r 
th

ey
 a

dv
is

e 
hi

m
 o

f a
ny

 
m

at
te

rs
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

. 

T
he

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r s
ee

s 
al

l r
ep

or
ts

 to
 th

e 
O

ffi
ce

r L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

T
ea

m
 a

nd
 a

ll 
re

po
rt

s 
to

 M
em

be
rs

. 

A
ll 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
le

ga
l i

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 s
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
ris

k 
se

ct
io

n.
 

T
he

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

of
fic

er
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
t 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 le

ga
l a

nd
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

    

H
ow

 is
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
? 

T
he

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r (
or

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e)

 a
tte

nd
s 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
gs

 w
he

n 
le

ga
l i

ss
ue

s 
ar

is
e 

an
d 

ad
vi

se
s 

m
em

be
rs

 o
n 

an
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

. 

   

48



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

11
 

11
 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
law

s a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

H
av

e 
th

er
e 

be
en

 a
ny

 in
st

an
ce

s 
of

  n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

or
 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
 a

nd
 r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
si

nc
e 

1 
A

pr
il 

20
14

, o
r 

ea
rli

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

20
14

/1
5 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

? 

 T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
au

di
ts

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t s

in
ce

 th
e 

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
14

 w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
‘P

ar
tia

l’ 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

– 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 fo

ur
 s

ch
oo

ls
. O

ne
 fu

rt
he

r s
ch

oo
l w

as
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘N
o’

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
.  

 F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

au
di

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
fo

ur
 a

ud
its

 -
  L

eg
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 

In
co

m
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n,

 G
yp

sy
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

se
rv

ic
e,

 a
nd

 D
at

a 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n.
 T

he
se

 
au

di
ts

  w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
‘L

im
ite

d’
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 a
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

er
, 

on
e 

fu
rt

he
r a

ud
it 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘L
im

ite
d’

 H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 

pr
og

re
ss

. F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

w
or

k 
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 a
gr

ee
d 

ac
tio

ns
.  

 In
 a

ll 
ca

se
s 

st
ea

dy
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

is
su

es
. H

ow
ev

er
 I 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 th
e 

G
yp

sy
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
ill

 h
ad

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f a

ct
io

ns
 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

– 
al

l a
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

an
d 

a 
ne

w
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 a
gr

ee
d.

  

Is
 th

er
e 

an
y 

ac
tu

al
 o

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

iti
ga

tio
n 

or
 c

la
im

s 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

? 
T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
ca

se
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

a 
cl

ai
m

 fr
om

 a
 c

ar
e 

ho
m

e 
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
on

-g
oi

ng
 d

is
pu

te
 w

ith
 a

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

ro
un

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
du

e 
to

 a
nd

 
fr

om
 th

em
 a

t t
he

 c
lo

se
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t. 
  

 Le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

(a
nd

 o
th

er
 

C
ou

nc
ils

) 
by

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ar

ch
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 L

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s.

 

 

49



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

12
 

12
 

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 

Is
su

e 

M
at

te
rs

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 to
 g

o
in

g
 c

o
n

ce
rn

 

 IS
A

(U
K

&
I)

57
0 

co
ve

rs
 a

ud
ito

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

au
di

t o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 m

an
ag

em
en

t's
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 T
he

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
is

 a
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l p
rin

ci
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. U

nd
er

 th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

en
tit

ie
s 

ar
e 

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 in
 b

us
in

es
s 

fo
r t

he
 fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 th
e 

en
tit

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 
re

al
is

e 
its

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
its

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

no
rm

al
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 b
us

in
es

s.
 

 T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

re
qu

ire
s 

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 o
n 

a 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

ba
si

s.
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 n

ot
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
fu

tu
re

 tr
ad

in
g 

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
ie

s 
as

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 e

nt
iti

es
, c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f 
th

e 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

. 
 A

s 
au

di
to

r,
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r c
on

si
de

rin
g 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 o

f u
se

 o
f t

he
 g

oi
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

at
er

ia
l u

nc
er

ta
in

tie
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

to
 

be
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. W

e 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.  

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

et
 o

ut
 b

el
ow

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t h

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

its
  r

es
po

ns
e.

. 
 

50



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

13
 

13
 

G
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
ns

  

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

A
re

 th
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
r 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l f

or
ec

as
ts

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
go

in
g 

co
nc

er
n?

 

T
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

ha
ng

es
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 g
ra

nt
 

se
ttl

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
et

tle
m

en
t. 

T
he

 p
la

n 
is

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

H
av

e 
th

er
e 

be
en

 a
ny

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

ss
ue

s 
ra

is
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 c
as

t d
ou

bt
s 

on
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 m

ad
e?

 (
E

xa
m

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
r s

ig
ni

fic
an

t w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 s

ys
te

m
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

co
nt

ro
l) 

N
o 

D
oe

s 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 o

r 
po

or
 

or
 d

et
er

io
ra

tin
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

be
tte

r p
ay

m
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
co

de
? 

If 
so

, w
ha

t a
ct

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 ta
ke

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
? 

N
o 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ta

ff 
in

 p
os

t, 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

t s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

 le
ve

l, 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
? 

If 
no

t, 
w

ha
t a

ct
io

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 ta

ke
n 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
th

os
e 

sk
ill

s 
 

Y
es

 

51



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

14
 

14
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

E
st

im
at

es
 

Is
su

e 

 Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ne
ed

 to
 a

pp
ly

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

ei
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 a
re

 u
se

d 
w

he
n 

it 
is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 m
ea

su
re

 p
re

ci
se

ly
 a

 fi
gu

re
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. I
S

A
 (

U
K

&
I)

 5
40

 s
et

s 
ou

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
ud

iti
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

. T
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
is

 to
 g

ai
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 a

re
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
an

d 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
ar

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
. 

 U
nd

er
 th

is
 s

ta
nd

ar
d,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

ris
ks

 o
f m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t f

or
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

es
 b

y 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

ho
w

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

, e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
n 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

e 
 W

e 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ll 

es
tim

at
es

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

us
in

g 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
ir 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n.

 
 T

he
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 w

e 
co

nd
uc

t o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

e 
w

ill
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
: 

 -
T

he
 e

st
im

at
e 

is
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
 

-
E

st
im

at
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

 

52



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

15
 

15
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

E
st

im
at

es
 

E
st

im
at

e 
M

et
ho

d/
m

od
el

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
es

tim
at

e 
C

on
tr

ol
s 

us
ed

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

es
tim

at
es

 
W

he
th

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t h

av
e 

us
ed

 a
n 

ex
pe

rt
 

U
nd

er
ly

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

; 
-A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

de
gr

ee
 o

f 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
-c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

es
tim

at
e 

H
as

 th
er

e 
be

en
 a

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
? 

Pr
op

er
ty

 P
la

nt
 

an
d 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

E
st

im
at

e 

V
al

ua
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 a

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 

va
lu

er
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 R
IC

S 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f 5
 y

ea
r v

al
ua

tio
ns

 w
ith

 
in

te
rim

 re
vi

ew
s. 

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

Pr
op

er
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
re

 S
m

al
lh

ol
di

ng
s, 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 <
 £

5k
 

an
d 

th
ey

 w
ill

 a
lso

 d
o 

th
e 

im
pa

irm
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 a
t t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
 a

s t
he

ir 
lo

ca
l 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
is 

ne
ed

ed
. 

Th
er

e 
is 

a 
ro

lli
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

 
of

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

an
ce

 te
am

 is
su

es
 te

rm
s 

of
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t c
ov

er
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
iss

ue
s f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

Th
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 
va

lu
er

s a
re

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

R
IC

S.
 

V
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 R
IC

S 
gu

id
an

ce
- 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 e

xp
er

t 

N
o 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f 

fin
an

ci
al

 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 

C
ou

nc
il 

va
lu

es
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

ns
tr

um
en

ts
 a

t 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 o

f t
he

ir 
ex

te
rn

al
 tr

ea
su

ry
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 

Ta
ke

 a
dv

ic
e 

fr
om

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

ls 
Y

es
 

Ta
ke

 a
dv

ic
e 

fr
om

 tr
ea

su
ry

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
N

o 

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

fin
an

ce
 te

am
 a

pp
or

tio
n 

ce
nt

ra
l 

su
pp

or
t c

os
ts

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

fix
ed

 b
as

es
  

A
ll 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
 c

os
t 

ce
nt

re
s a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

m
os

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
ba

sis
 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ac
tiv

ity
 

N
o 

A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t b
as

es
 a

re
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 e
qu

ita
bl

e 
 

N
o 

53



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

16
 

16
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

E
st

im
at

es
 

E
st

im
at

e 
M

et
ho

d/
m

od
el

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
es

tim
at

e 
C

on
tr

ol
s 

us
ed

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

es
tim

at
es

 
W

he
th

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t h

av
e 

us
ed

 a
n 

ex
pe

rt
 

U
nd

er
ly

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

; 
-A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

de
gr

ee
 o

f 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
-c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

es
tim

at
e 

H
as

 th
er

e 
be

en
 a

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
? 

Pr
ov

isi
on

s 
fo

r 
lia

bi
lit

y 
Pr

ov
isi

on
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
w

he
re

 a
n 

ev
en

t 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
th

at
 g

iv
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

le
ga

l o
r c

on
st

ru
ct

iv
e 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
th

at
 

pr
ob

ab
ly

 re
qu

ire
s s

et
tle

m
en

t b
y 

a 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f e
co

no
m

ic
 b

en
ef

its
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

an
d 

a 
re

lia
bl

e 
es

tim
at

e 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
of

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 th

e 
ob

lig
at

io
n.

 
Pr

ov
isi

on
s 

ar
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

as
 a

n 
ex

pe
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

er
vi

ce
 li

ne
 in

 th
e 

C
I&

E
S 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
be

co
m

es
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

ob
lig

at
io

n,
 

ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 re

le
va

nt
 ri

sk
s a

nd
 

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
ie

s  

C
ha

rg
ed

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l b
ec

om
es

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 

th
e 

ob
lig

at
io

n 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f i

ns
ur

an
ce

 
pr

ov
isi

on
 w

as
 re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 
20

14
/1

5 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
ls 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
br

ok
er

 

E
st

im
at

ed
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f e
ac

h 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
 is

 
pe

rio
di

ca
lly

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
br

ok
er

  

N
o 

A
cc

ru
al

s 
A

ct
iv

ity
 is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r i
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r t
ha

t i
t t

ak
es

 p
la

ce
, n

ot
 

w
he

n 
m

on
ey

 is
 p

ai
d 

or
 re

ce
iv

ed
  

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

ac
cr

ua
ls 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
cl

os
ed

ow
n 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

  

N
o 

A
cc

ru
al

s f
or

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
kn

ow
n 

va
lu

es
. W

he
re

 a
cc

ru
al

s h
av

e 
ha

d 
to

 b
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
se

d 
 

N
o 

54



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

17
 

17
 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

E
st

im
at

es
 

E
st

im
at

e 
M

et
ho

d/
m

od
el

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
es

tim
at

e 
C

on
tr

ol
s 

us
ed

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

es
tim

at
es

 
W

he
th

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t h

av
e 

us
ed

 a
n 

ex
pe

rt
 

U
nd

er
ly

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

; 
-A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

de
gr

ee
 o

f 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
-c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

es
tim

at
e 

H
as

 th
er

e 
be

en
 a

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
? 

PF
I 

PF
I a

nd
 si

m
ila

r s
ch

em
es

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

re
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, w
he

re
 

th
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r m

ak
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

or
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

as
se

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
as

se
s 

to
 th

e 
PF

I c
on

tr
ac

to
r. 

A
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is 

de
em

ed
 to

 c
on

tr
ol

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

un
de

r i
ts

 
PF

I s
ch

em
es

, i
t c

ar
rie

s t
he

 a
ss

et
s u

se
d 

un
de

r t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 o

n 
its

 b
al

an
ce

 
sh

ee
t a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

Th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f t
he

se
 

as
se

ts
 a

t f
ai

r v
al

ue
 (b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
st

 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
, p

la
nt

 a
nd

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t) 

is 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f a

 li
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r a

m
ou

nt
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
op

er
at

or
 to

 p
ay

 fo
r 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t 

Th
e 

m
od

el
s f

or
 th

e 
PF

I 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 to
 

pr
od

uc
e 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 
A

ss
et

s a
re

 v
al

ue
d 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 P

PE
 a

ss
et

s. 

U
se

 o
f m

od
el

 fo
r 

ca
lc

ul
at

in
g 

PF
I p

ay
m

en
t 

el
em

en
ts

 

V
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 R
IC

S 
gu

id
an

ce
- 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 e

xp
er

ts
 

N
o 

D
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

am
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

N
on

-te
ac

hi
ng

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

sio
ns

 
Sh

em
e,

 a
dm

in
ist

er
ed

 b
y 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 

R
el

y 
on

 th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
ns

 
sc

he
m

e 
R

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
ex

pe
rt

ise
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ie
s o

f t
he

 p
en

sio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

N
o 

55



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

18
 

18
 

Re
la

te
d 

Pa
rt

ie
s  

Is
su

e 

 F
or

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s,
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 (
th

e 
co

de
) 

re
qu

ire
s 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 IA
S

24
: R

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

. T
he

 C
od

e 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

to
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t b
od

ie
s:

 
 -

E
nt

iti
es

 th
at

 d
ire

ct
ly

, o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 th

ro
ug

h 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

rie
s,

 c
on

tr
ol

, o
r 

ar
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

(i.
e 

su
bs

id
ia

rie
s)

 
-

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

 
-

Jo
in

t v
en

tu
re

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
 v

en
tu

re
r 

  
-

A
n 

en
tit

y 
th

at
 h

as
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
at

 g
iv

es
 it

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nf
lu

en
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
-

K
ey

 o
ffi

ce
rs

, a
nd

 c
lo

se
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 fa
m

ily
 o

f k
ey

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 
-

P
os

t-
em

pl
oy

m
en

t b
en

ef
it 

pl
an

 (
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
) f

or
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 o
r 

of
 a

ny
 e

nt
ity

 th
at

 is
 a

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
 T

he
 C

od
e 

no
te

s 
th

at
, i

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y,
 r

eg
ar

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ha
d 

to
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f m
at

er
ia

lit
y,

 w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

to
 b

e 
ju

dg
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

vi
ew

po
in

t o
f b

ot
h 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

y.
 

 IS
A

 (
U

K
&

I)
 5

50
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

us
 to

 re
vi

ew
 y

ou
r 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

y 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 
co

nt
ro

ls
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
su

ch
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
. W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t t
es

tin
g 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
y 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

yo
u 

m
ak

e 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
. 

 

56



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|  
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
|  

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

19
 

19
 

Re
la

te
d 

Pa
rt

ie
s C

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

  

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

p
o

n
se

 

W
ho

 a
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
ie

s?
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 v
ia

 v
irt

ue
 o

f-
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

ig
ht

 h
av

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l e

ith
er

 to
 b

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

or
 in

flu
en

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
pa

rt
y 

or
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ex

er
t c

on
tr

ol
 o

r 
in

flu
en

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pa
rt

y.
 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

di
sc

lo
se

s 
its

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

he
ad

in
gs

: 

1)
C

en
tr

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 

2)
M

em
be

rs
 

3)
O

ffi
ce

rs
 

4)
O

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 b

od
ie

s 
(I

nc
lu

di
ng

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il,
 W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
T

ru
st

, 2
G

et
he

r a
nd

 th
e 

C
lin

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
) 

5)
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t l
on

g-
te

rm
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 (I
nc

lu
di

ng
 A

m
ey

 W
ye

 V
al

le
y,

 B
al

fo
ur

 B
ea

tty
 

F
O

S
C

A
 U

K
) 

6)
O

th
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
H

oo
pl

e,
 H

A
LO

 L
ei

su
re

 T
ru

st
, H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
H

ou
si

ng
 L

td
, H

er
ef

or
d 

F
ut

ur
es

 a
nd

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

E
ne

rg
y)

 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 id

en
tif

y,
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r,
 a

nd
 

di
sc

lo
se

, r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

? 
A

 n
um

be
r o

f a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f a
 r

el
at

ed
 

pa
rt

y 
an

d 
re

po
rt

ed
 v

al
ue

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

-
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f a
 R

eg
is

te
r 

of
 In

te
re

st
s 

fo
r M

em
be

rs
 

-
A

nn
ua

l r
et

ur
n 

fr
om

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

s/
of

fic
er

s 

-
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
n-

ye
ar

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 k

no
w

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

fr
om

 p
rio

r 
ye

ar
 o

r 
kn

ow
n 

hi
st

or
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

de
bt

or
s 

an
d 

cr
ed

ito
rs

 a
na

ly
si

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

m
an

ua
l 

ac
cr

ua
ls

 r
ec

or
ds

. 

57



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n'
 a

re
 

to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
wo

rld
wi

de
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
  

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

58



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING DATE:  19 March 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: PROGRESS REPORT ON 2014-15 INTERNAL 
AUDIT PLAN 

REPORT BY: INTERNAL AUDIT – SOUTH WEST AUDIT 
PARTNERSHIP 

 
 

 

Alternative Options 

1 This report is for information and therefore alternative options are not applicable. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure compliance with good practice as set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). 

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this Internal Audit Report is to update Members on  the progress of internal 
audit work and to bring to their attention any key internal control issues arising from work 
recently completed.  
 
The attached reports (Appendices A & B) are a summary of the activity completed at 20th 
February 2015 for the 2014/15 audit plan.  

Recommendation 

That subject to any comments the Committee wishes to make the report be noted. 8 

AGENDA ITEM 8

59



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

Key Considerations 

3 See Appendix A 

Community Impact 

4 The report does not impact on this area.   

Equality and Human Rights 

5 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

6 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

7 There are no legal implications.  

Risk Management 

8 There is a risk that the level of work required to give an opinion on the Council’s 
systems of Internal Control is not achieved. This is mitigated by the regular active 
management and monitoring of progress against the agreed internal audit plan. 

Consultees 

9 The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) was consulted in the drafting of this 
report.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – SWAP Plan Progress Report 2014/15 

Appendix B – 2014/15 Annual Plan Progress 

Appendix C -  High Priority Service Recommendations  

Appendix D – Audit Framework Definitions 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

60



Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A
 

   
       

                              

  H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
  Re

po
rt

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

Pl
an

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
20

14
-1

5 
up

 to
 2

0th
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
14

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 §

 R
is

k 
§ 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

nv
es

tig
at

io
ns

 §
 C

on
su

lt
an

cy
 

 

61



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

                  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Su

m
m

ar
y:

 
 

 
Ro

le
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 1

 
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
Ac

tiv
ity

  
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
W

or
k 

Pl
an

 2
01

4/
15

: 
 

 

 
Re

po
rt

 o
n 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 F

in
di

ng
s 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
s 

2-
4 

 
 

A
ud

it 
Pl

an
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

s 
5-

6 
  

 
 

 
Fu

tu
re

 P
la

nn
ed

 W
or

k 
} 

 
 

Co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

 
 

} 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

s 
7-

8 
 A

PP
EN

D
IC

ES
: 

 
 

 
 

 
20

14
-1

5 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

‘B
’ 

 
H

ig
h 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

  
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
‘C

’  
 

A
ud

it 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

D
ef

in
iti

on
s 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

‘D
’ 

Co
nt

en
ts

 

Th
e 

co
nt

ac
ts

 a
t S

W
A

P 
in

 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
is

 re
po

rt
 a

re
: 

 G
er

ry
 C

ox
 

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Te

l: 
01

93
5 

38
59

06
 

ge
rr

y.
co

x@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
  Ia

n 
Ba

ke
r 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f Q

ua
lit

y 
Te

l: 
07

91
76

28
77

4 
ia

n.
ba

ke
r@

so
ut

hw
es

ta
ud

it.
co

.u
k 

  Ja
cq

ui
 G

oo
di

ng
  

As
si

st
an

t D
ire

ct
or

  
Te

l: 
01

43
2 

26
04

26
 o

r 0
78

72
50

06
75

 
Ja

cq
ui

.g
oo

di
ng

@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
  

  
 

62



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

 Su
m

m
ar

y 
Pa

ge
 1

 

O
ur

 a
ud

it
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 s

pl
it

 
be

tw
ee

n:
 

 
· 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

ud
it

 
· 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

he
m

es
 

· 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
A

ud
it

 
· 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l A

ud
it

 
· 

IT
 A

ud
it

 
· 

G
ra

nt
s 

· 
O

th
er

 R
ev

ie
w

s 
 

Ro
le

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it

 
 Th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t 

Au
di

t 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
Li

m
ite

d 
(S

W
A

P)
.  

SW
AP

 is
 a

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

.  
SW

A
P 

ha
s 

ad
op

te
d 

an
d 

w
or

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

of
 

th
e 

In
st

it
ut

e 
of

 I
nt

er
na

l 
Au

di
to

rs
, 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 

Au
di

t 
St

an
da

rd
s 

(P
SI

AS
), 

an
d 

al
so

 f
ol

lo
w

s 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

fo
r 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
.  

Th
e 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

is
 

al
so

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 t

he
 In

te
rn

al
 A

u d
it 

Ch
ar

te
r 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Au
di

t 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 a
t 

its
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
3rd

 Ju
ne

 2
01

4.
 

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

op
in

io
n 

on
 t

he
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

by
 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
its

 e
ff

ec
tiv

en
es

s.
  P

ri
m

ar
ily

 th
e 

w
or

k 
in

cl
ud

es
: 

· 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
ud

it 
Re

vi
ew

s 
· 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

he
m

es
 

· 
Cr

os
s 

Cu
tt

in
g 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Au
di

ts
 

· 
An

nu
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f K

ey
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ys

te
m

 C
on

tr
ol

s 
· 

IT
 A

ud
its

 
· 

G
ra

nt
s 

· 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 o
r 

U
np

la
nn

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
w

or
k 

is
 la

rg
el

y 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

an
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Pl

an
.  

Th
is

 is
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
Ch

ie
f F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ff
ic

er
) 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Te

am
.  

Th
is

 y
ea

r’
s 

(2
01

4/
15

) P
la

n 
w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

is
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

23
rd

 Ju
ne

 2
01

4.
 

Au
di

t 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 a

re
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

is
 P

la
n 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, 

co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 ri

sk
.  

 

63



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

  
 Th

es
e 

ar
e 

ac
ti

on
s 

th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 h
ig

h 
pr

io
ri

ty
 

or
 c

or
po

ra
te

 ri
sk

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 “
V

er
y 

H
ig

h”
 

or
 “

H
ig

h”
 a

nd
 th

at
 w

e 
be

lie
ve

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

br
ou

gh
t t

o 
th

e 
at

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

ud
it

 
Co

m
m

it
te

e  
‘ 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 B
 is

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
fo

r 
20

14
/1

5 
– 

a 
lis

t 
of

 a
ll 

au
di

ts
 a

s 
ag

re
ed

 in
 t

he
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it
 

Pl
an

 2
01

4/
15

.  
It 

is
 im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

st
at

us
 o

f a
ud

its
 a

s 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

lp
s 

th
em

 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

its
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

s 
ag

re
ed

.  

 W
he

re
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 a
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 ‘
Co

m
pl

et
ed

’ 
an

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 ‘

Pa
rt

ia
l’ 

or
 ‘

N
o 

As
su

ra
nc

e’
, 

I 
w

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ta

il 
to

 in
fo

rm
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  S
in

ce
 m

y 
la

st
 r

ep
or

t P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
nd

 
fo

ur
 s

ch
oo

l a
ud

its
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 ‘P
ar

tia
l’ 

an
d 

on
e 

sc
ho

ol
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘N
o 

As
su

ra
nc

e’
 a

nd
 I 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

A
ud

it
or

’s
 O

pi
ni

on
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
· 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t  

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 t

hi
s 

au
di

t 
w

as
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
ro

bu
st

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

sy
st

em
s,

 s
o 

th
at

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d;

 a
nd

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

st
af

f 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t r
ul

es
. 

 Th
e 

re
vi

ew
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

sp
lit

 in
to

 t
w

o 
m

ai
n 

el
em

en
ts

: r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

of
 t

he
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

te
am

 i
n 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
ac

tiv
it

y,
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 re
co

rd
s 

fo
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

.

 Th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 s
ta

ff
 w

as
 f

ou
nd

 t
o 

be
 l

ar
ge

ly
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y,

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
m

in
or

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 I 

w
as

 a
ls

o 
ab

le
 t

o 
co

nf
ir

m
 t

ha
t t

he
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

te
am

 a
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 e

qu
ip

pe
d 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 w
id

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 e
ac

h 
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
of

fic
er

 a
s 

a 
po

in
t 

of
 

co
nt

ac
t. 

Pr
og

re
ss

 in
 m

ak
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 is

 o
ng

oi
ng

, a
nd

 s
ta

ff
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

a 
cl

ea
r 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 u
pc

om
in

g 
is

su
es

. T
he

 t
ea

m
 is

 a
ls

o 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 jo
in

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 

in
iti

at
iv

es
.  

 Re
po

rt
 o

n 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 F
in

di
ng

s/
Ri

sk
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 2

 

64



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 3

 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 
or

 c
or

po
ra

te
 ri

sk
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 “

V
er

y 
H

ig
h”

 
or

 “
H

ig
h”

 a
nd

 th
at

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it
 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

‘ 
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 t
ea

m
 is

 o
nl

y 
ab

le
 t

o 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
. T

he
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f s
am

pl
ed

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 m

an
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

s 
do

 n
ot

 h
ol

d 
do

cu
m

en
ta

ti
on

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
w

ar
d 

de
ci

si
on

 a
nd

 in
 s

om
e 

ca
se

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
 d

oc
um

en
ta

ti
on

 w
as

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
  

 D
ec

is
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

t 
re

te
nt

io
n 

by
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
s 

is
 o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 t
ea

m
, 

bu
t 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 t

he
 t

ra
in

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ol
le

d 
ou

t 
is

 a
 t

im
el

y 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

iti
at

iv
e.

 
 Co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
, I

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l’s
 p

ri
or

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 t
he

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 w

he
re

 a
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

is
 o

r 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
O

nc
e 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
ga

ps
 i

n 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 r
ec

or
ds

, 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 i

n 
m

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 in
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
ca

n 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 A
 

ne
w

 e
-t

en
de

ri
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

as
si

st
 in

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 r

eg
is

te
r.

 
O

nc
e 

th
is

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
, m

on
ito

ri
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

as
si

st
 in

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 a
ny

 t
ra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s,

 t
o 

fe
ed

 in
 t

o 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
in

iti
at

iv
e.

 
  Re

po
rt

 o
n 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 F

in
di

ng
s/

Ri
sk

 
 

65



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 4

 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 
or

 c
or

po
ra

te
 ri

sk
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 “

V
er

y 
H

ig
h”

 
or

 “
H

ig
h”

 a
nd

 th
at

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it
 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

‘ 
 

· 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
m

an
ag

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
su

m
s 

of
 p

ub
lic

 m
on

ey
 a

nd
 c

on
se

qu
en

tly
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d.
  

H
av

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
gu

ar
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
th

ef
t 

by
 s

ta
ff

, c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 a
nd

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 is

 a
ls

o 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 2
3 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
th

at
 m

ak
e 

up
 th

e 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l V

al
ue

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
(S

FV
S)

.  
A 

sc
ho

ol
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 it
 h

as
 a

 r
ob

us
t s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
 it

se
lf 

ag
ai

ns
t f

ra
ud

ul
en

t 
or

 im
pr

op
er

 u
se

 o
f p

ub
lic

 m
on

ey
 

an
d 

as
se

ts
; a

nd
 t

he
se

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
bo

th
 p

re
ve

nt
 m

al
pr

ac
tic

e,
 a

nd
 e

na
bl

e 
pr

om
pt

 d
et

ec
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 
it 

no
ne

th
el

es
s 

oc
cu

r.
 

 Th
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
of

 F
ra

ud
 t

he
m

ed
 a

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
ed

 s
ix

 s
ch

oo
ls

. T
hi

s 
is

 o
nl

y 
a 

sm
al

l s
am

pl
e 

of
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 t

he
 

fin
di

ng
s 

be
lo

w
 d

o 
no

t 
su

gg
es

t 
th

at
 a

ll 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

ve
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o 
pr

ev
en

t 
fr

au
d.

 It
 is

 a
ls

o 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
no

te
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
as

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f f

ra
ud

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s.

  
 Th

es
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
 t

he
 c

on
te

xt
 o

f 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 t

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 d

o 
no

t 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 p
ri

or
ity

 o
f p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
go

od
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fo
r a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n.
  

 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 k
ey

 f
in

di
ng

s 
th

at
 w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 t

o 
be

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
. 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
is

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s.
 

a)
 

N
ot

 a
ll 

of
 t

he
 g

ov
er

no
rs

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff
 w

ith
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

ha
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 d
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

of
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 in
te

re
st

s 

b)
 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 la
ck

 o
f a

ut
ho

ri
sa

tio
n 

an
d 

se
gr

eg
at

io
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 in

 o
ne

 c
as

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f p
as

sw
or

d 
sh

ar
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
c)

 
Th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Po

lic
y 

w
as

 n
ot

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

nd
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

up
da

ti
ng

 in
 m

an
y 

ar
ea

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

f r
au

d 
an

d 
th

ef
t  

d)
 

In
du

ct
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r f
in

an
ce

 g
ov

er
no

rs
  w

as
 n

ot
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

t a
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s 

 

  

66



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

               In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 5

 
 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 
or

 c
or

po
ra

te
 ri

sk
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 “

V
er

y 
H

ig
h”

 
or

 “
H

ig
h”

 a
nd

 th
at

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it
 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

‘ 
 

e)
 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 s

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ba

nk
in

g 
of

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

of
fic

ia
l a

nd
 

un
of

fic
ia

l f
un

ds
 a

nd
 in

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s 

no
 c

le
ar

 a
ud

it 
tr

ai
l o

f o
f i

nc
om

e 
fr

om
 re

ce
ip

t t
o 

ba
nk

in
g 

f)
 

U
no

ff
ic

ia
l f

un
ds

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 a

ud
it

ed
 f

or
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 y

ea
rs

 a
t 

so
m

e 
sc

ho
ol

s;
 a

re
 n

ot
 r

ec
on

ci
le

d 
on

 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

; a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
w

as
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r a

ll 
pa

ym
en

ts
 m

ad
e

 
g)

 
Th

er
e 

w
as

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 m
ix

in
g 

of
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

an
d 

un
of

fic
ia

l 
fu

nd
s 

ho
w

ev
er

 t
hi

s 
w

as
 d

ue
 t

o 
la

ck
 o

f 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

in
 o

ne
 c

as
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
 m

an
ag

ea
bl

e 
ba

nk
in

g 
op

ti
on

 
h)

 
Re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
im

pr
es

t a
cc

ou
nt

 (p
et

ty
 c

as
h)

 n
ot

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
 

 
Ea

ch
 s

ch
oo

l 
w

as
 v

er
y 

re
ce

pt
iv

e 
to

 t
he

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
al

l 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 a
n 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
tim

et
ab

le
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

 N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

or
po

ra
te

 ri
sk

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
si

nc
e 

m
y 

la
st

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
20

14
/1

5  
pl

an
. 

        

67



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

ud
it

 A
ss

ig
nm

en
ts

 
in

 th
e 

Pe
ri

od
 

 
Th

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 A

nn
ua

l 
Pl

an
 f

or
 2

01
4/

15
 (

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 B
) 

hi
gh

lig
ht

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 t

o 
da

te
. 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 e
ac

h 
re

vi
ew

, 
an

 o
ve

ra
ll 

co
nt

ro
l 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
is

 o
ff

er
ed

. 
 F

or
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 C
on

tr
ol

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

D
ef

in
iti

on
s,

 C
at

eg
or

is
at

io
n 

of
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 R

is
k 

Le
ve

ls
, p

le
as

e 
re

fe
r t

o 
A

pp
en

di
x 

‘C
’. 

As
 c

an
 b

e 
se

en
 fr

om
 A

pp
en

di
x 

‘B
’, 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
au

di
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
to

 d
at

e:
  

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l: 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 1
 re

vi
ew

 (P
ar

tia
l) 

 

· 
D

ra
ft

, 1
 re

vi
ew

 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 3

 re
vi

ew
s 

· 
In

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t,
 4

re
vi

ew
s 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n:
 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 6
 re

vi
ew

s 
– 

(2
 R

ea
so

na
bl

e,
 4

 N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

) 
· 

D
ra

ft
, 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 1

 re
vi

ew
s 

· 
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
, 1

 r
ev

ie
w

 
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p 
Re

vi
ew

s:
 (N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
) 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 4
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

· 
D

ra
ft

, 1
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
Sc

ho
ol

 T
he

m
es

 –
: P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 F
ra

ud
 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

  6
 re

vi
ew

s 
(1

 R
ea

so
na

bl
e,

 4
 P

ar
tia

l, 
1 

N
o)

   
· 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

6 
re

vi
ew

s 

 A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 6

 

68



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

                 
 

 
 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

ud
it

 A
ss

ig
nm

en
ts

 
in

 th
e 

Pe
ri

od
 

 
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l: 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 4
 re

vi
ew

s 
(1

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l, 

3 
Re

as
on

ab
le

) 
 

· 
D

ra
ft

 R
ep

or
t, 

1 
re

vi
ew

 
· 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s,

 4
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

 IC
T 

Re
vi

ew
s:

 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

  1
 re

vi
ew

 (S
ub

st
an

tia
l)

 
· 

D
ra

ft
, 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 2

 re
vi

ew
s 

G
ra

nt
s:

 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 4
 C

la
im

s,
  

· 
D

ra
ft

, 1
 C

la
im

 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l r

ev
ie

w
s 

 
· 

Co
m

pl
et

e 
 1

 re
vi

ew
 (N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
) 

A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 7

 

69



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

      
 

      
 

   
 

Sp
ec

ia
l R

ev
ie

w
s 

U
np

la
nn

ed
 w

or
k,

 s
pe

ci
al

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
on

 a
 r

es
po

ns
iv

e 
ba

si
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 t
he

 C
hi

ef
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l O
ff

ic
er

 (S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ff

ic
er

).
 

 N
o 

re
vi

ew
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

si
nc

e 
m

y 
la

st
 u

pd
at

e.
 

  

W
e 

ke
ep

 o
ur

 a
ud

it
 p

la
ns

 u
nd

er
 

re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
, s

o 
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
au

di
tin

g 
th

e 
ri

gh
t t

hi
ng

s 
at

 th
e 

ri
gh

t t
im

e.
 

 

Fu
tu

re
 P

la
nn

ed
 W

or
k 

 
 As

 n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 r

is
ks

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

Ch
ie

f 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l O

ff
ic

er
.  

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 s
in

ce
 m

y 
la

st
 r

ep
or

t. 
Fi

ve
 a

ud
its

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
m

ov
ed

 –
 R

eg
is

tr
ar

 a
nd

 C
or

on
er

s,
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Pa
ya

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
 u

p,
 P

ay
ro

ll 
fo

llo
w

 u
p,

 H
ar

dw
ar

e 
As

se
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

Pe
er

 C
ha

lle
ng

e/
Be

ne
fit

s 
Re

al
is

at
io

n,
 

Sa
fe

r 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 f

or
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
k:

 

Co
lw

al
l S

ch
oo

l, 
Tr

ou
bl

ed
 F

am
ili

es
, T

ra
ns

po
rt

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
di

ng
, A

gr
es

so
 u

pg
ra

de
, E

xp
en

se
s 

Se
lf 

Se
rv

e.
  

 Co
nc

lu
si

on
 

G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 2

01
4/

15
 p

la
n.

   
Fo

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
Pa

rt
ia

l A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

an
d 

on
e 

re
vi

ew
 N

o 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

bu
t w

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

or
po

ra
te

 ri
sk

s 
fr

om
 th

es
e.

   

Th
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 t

he
m

e 
re

vi
ew

 –
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 fr
au

d 
w

as
 t

o 
gi

ve
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 t
ha

t 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

ve
 a

de
qu

at
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
 a

ga
in

st
 f

ra
ud

ul
en

t 
or

 i
m

pr
op

er
 u

se
 o

f 
pu

bl
ic

 m
on

ey
 a

nd
 a

ss
et

s 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

so
m

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 f
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
it 

w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
cr

os
s 

m
or

e 
Sc

ho
ol

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
or

k 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 i

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 b

ut
 I 

ha
ve

 r
ep

or
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

s i
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fi

nd
in

gs
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 d

at
e.

 

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 8

 

70



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
PS

IA
S 

an
d 

th
e 

CI
PF

A 
Co

de
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

           
 

  
 

             In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
4-

20
15

 
Pa

ge
 9

 

W
e 

ke
ep

 o
ur

 a
ud

it
 p

la
ns

 u
nd

er
 

re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
, s

o 
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
au

di
tin

g 
th

e 
ri

gh
t t

hi
ng

s 
at

 th
e 

ri
gh

t t
im

e.
 

 

Co
nc

lu
si

on
  

 Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l a

ud
its

 t
ha

t h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
in

di
ng

s.
 

 Th
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

re
vi

ew
 

re
po

rt
ed

 
in

 
m

y 
la

st
 

up
da

te
 

is
 

no
w

 
at

 
Fi

na
l 

re
po

rt
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

, p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

to
 d

ef
in

e 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f s
im

ila
r s

itu
at

io
ns

 o
cc

ur
ri

ng
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

 I w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

up
da

te
 M

em
be

rs
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

g a
in

st
 t

he
 p

la
n 

an
d 

al
th

ou
gh

 h
op

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
he

 f
ul

l a
nn

ua
l 

pl
an

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 in

ev
ita

bl
y 

be
 s

om
e 

ca
rr

y 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 y

ea
r.

 

 

71



72



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e 
C

o
un

ci
l 2

01
4-

15
 A

ud
it 

P
la

n 

5
4

3
2

1
G

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 F

ra
ud

 &
 

Co
rr

up
ti

on
 E

xp
en

se
 F

ra
ud

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
6

0
1

5
0

0

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

 M
em

be
rs

 E
xp

en
se

s
1

 C
om

pl
et

ed
Re

as
on

ab
le

3
0

0
3

0
0

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

H
ou

si
ng

 - 
H

om
e 

Po
in

t
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-o

pi
ni

on
 

_
_

_
_

_
_

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

Fr
au

d 
&

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

Su
rv

ey
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
_

_
_

_
_

_

G
ra

nt
 C

er
ti

fic
at

io
n

G
re

en
 D

ea
l P

io
ne

er
 P

la
ce

s 
G

ra
nt

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

4
0

0
0

4
0

G
ra

nt
 C

er
ti

fic
at

io
n

H
C 

A
do

pt
io

n 
Re

fo
rm

 G
ra

nt
1

 C
om

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
_

_
_

_
_

_

G
ra

nt
 C

er
ti

fic
at

io
n

Ca
re

 B
ill

 g
ra

nt
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
_

_
_

_
_

_

IC
T

H
C_

U
se

r 
A

cc
es

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
1

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

t
Re

as
on

ab
le

 
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

 P
ay

ro
ll 

20
14

-1
5

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
9

0
0

9
0

0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
Pa

ya
bl

e 
20

14
-1

5
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Re

as
on

ab
le

3
0

0
3

0
0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
In

co
m

e 
Co

lle
ct

io
n

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

5
0

1
4

0
0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

5
0

0
5

0
0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
D

at
a 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
 O

pi
ni

on
1

0
0

1
0

0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
G

yp
sy

 &
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

Se
rv

ic
e

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

 O
pi

ni
on

13
0

1
12

0
0

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

2
D

ra
ft

 
Re

as
on

ab
le

 
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

Fr
au

d 
&

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

Po
lic

y
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
 

_
_

_
_

_
_

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

Po
lic

y
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
_

_
_

_
_

_

G
ra

nt
 C

er
ti

fic
at

io
n

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
Ca

pi
ta

l F
un

di
ng

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

2
0

0
2

0
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Pa
rt

ia
l

7
0

4
3

0
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Fi
na

nc
ia

l C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 &

 F
ai

re
r 

Ch
ar

gi
ng

2
 In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
i-c

as
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
2

D
ra

ft
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Lo
ok

ed
 A

ft
er

 C
hi

ld
re

n
2

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Sc
ho

ol
s

Sc
ho

ol
s 

- P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 F

ra
ud

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
ch

oo
ls

St
 M

ar
ys

 C
 o

f E
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Pa
rt

ia
l 

28
0

5
19

4
0

S
ch

oo
ls

Ew
ya

s 
H

ar
ol

d 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Pa

rt
ia

l 
12

0
4

7
1

0

Sc
ho

ol
s

St
au

nt
on

-o
n-

W
ye

 E
nd

ow
ed

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
o

18
1

5
11

1
0

Sc
ho

ol
s

W
eo

bl
ey

 H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
12

0
0

11
1

0

Sc
ho

ol
s

A
yl

es
to

ne
 B

us
in

es
s 

&
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Co

lle
ge

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Pa
rt

ia
l 

18
0

4
12

2
0

Sc
ho

ol
s

W
al

fo
rd

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

2
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Pa
rt

ia
l

11
0

1
9

1
0

Sp
ec

ia
l I

nv
es

ti
ga

ti
on

Co
lw

al
l P

ri
m

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
- D

am
p 

Pr
ob

le
m

s 
- L

es
so

n 
Le

ar
ne

d
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
17

2
13

2
0

0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Pa

yr
ol

l
3

Re
m

ov
ed

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Pa
ya

bl
e

3
Re

m
ov

ed
 

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
A

ud
it

 T
yp

e
Q

ua
rt

er
O

pi
ni

on
N

o.
 o

f 
re

cs
A

ud
it

 A
re

a
St

at
us

73



5
4

3
2

1
G

ra
nt

 C
er

ti
fic

at
io

n
Tr

ou
bl

ed
 F

am
ili

es
3

D
ra

ft
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on

IC
T

So
ft

w
ar

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

3
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

IC
T

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 H

ea
lt

h 
&

 C
ar

e 
Pl

an
s 

da
ta

3
Re

m
ov

ed
 

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
Re

ce
iv

ab
le

3
D

ra
ft

Re
as

on
ab

le
6

0
0

6
0

0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

M
ai

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
3

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Re

as
on

ab
le

7
0

0
7

0
0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Tr
ea

su
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

3
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

2
0

0
2

0
0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Ca
pi

ta
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
3

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
3

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

N
D

R
3

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

H
ou

si
ng

 &
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
Be

ne
fit

s
3

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

H
ou

si
ng

 - 
H

om
e 

Po
in

t
3

D
ra

ft
in

g 
Re

po
rt

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

U
se

 o
f A

ge
nc

y 
St

af
f

3
In

it
ia

l m
ee

ti
ng

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

Ca
re

 B
ill

3
In

it
ia

l m
ee

ti
ng

0
0

0
0

0
0

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
H

ea
lt

h 
&

 S
af

et
y

4
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

Tr
ou

bl
ed

 F
am

ili
es

 2
01

5 
N

ew
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 
Co

rr
up

ti
on

Ex
pe

ns
es

 - 
Se

lf 
Se

rv
e

4
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s

IC
T

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

4
Re

m
ov

ed
 

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

IC
T

A
gr

es
so

 U
pg

ra
de

 
4

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

IC
T

IS
O

27
00

1 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

4
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

1
0

0
0

1
0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s
4

In
it

ia
l m

ee
ti

ng
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Pe
er

 C
ha

lle
ng

e/
Be

ne
fit

s 
Re

al
is

at
io

n
4

Re
m

ov
ed

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Re
gi

st
ra

rs
 &

 C
or

on
er

s
4

Re
m

ov
ed

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

H
om

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
4

In
it

ia
l m

ee
ti

ng
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

El
ec

ti
on

s
4

D
ef

er
re

d 
to

 2
01

5-
16

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

Sa
fe

r 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
- E

xc
lu

di
ng

 S
ch

oo
ls

4
D

ef
er

re
d 

to
 2

01
5-

16
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

Sc
ho

ol
s

Sc
ho

ol
s 

- S
af

er
 R

ec
ru

it
m

en
t

4
Re

m
ov

ed
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

Sc
ho

ol
s

Sc
ho

ol
s 

- P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 F

ra
ud

4
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s
A

ud
it

 T
yp

e
A

ud
it

 A
re

a
Q

ua
rt

er
St

at
us

O
pi

ni
on

N
o.

 o
f 

re
cs

74



                     APPENDIX C 

 Audit Framework Definitions 

 
 

Control Assurance Definitions 

 
 

Substantial 

�««« I am able to offer substantial assurance as the areas reviewed were found to be 
adequately controlled.  Internal controls are in place and operating effectively and risks 
against the achievement of objectives are well managed. 

  

 

Reasonable 

�««« I am able to offer reasonable assurance as most of the areas reviewed were found to be 
adequately controlled.  Generally risks are well managed but some systems require the 
introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 

  

 

Partial 

�««« I am able to offer Partial assurance in relation to the areas reviewed and the controls 
found to be in place. Some key risks are not well managed and systems require the 
introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 

  

 

None 
�««« I am not able to offer any assurance. The areas reviewed were found to be inadequately 

controlled. Risks are not well managed and systems require the introduction or 
improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives. 

  

 
 

Categorisation Of Recommendations 

 
When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the recommendation is to 
their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the risks identified for the service but scored at a 
corporate level and the priority assigned to the recommendation. No timeframes have been applied to each Priority as 
implementation will depend on several factors, however, the definitions imply the importance. 

 Priority 5: Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the unit’s business processes and require the    immediate 
attention of management. 
 
Priority 4: Important findings that need to be resolved by management.  
 
Priority 3: The accuracy of records is at risk and requires attention.  
 
Priority 2: Minor control issues have been identified which nevertheless need to be addressed. 
 
Priority 1: Administrative errors identified that should be corrected. Simple, no-cost measures would serve to enhance an 
existing control. 
 

 
 Definitions of Risk 

 
 Risk Reporting Implications  
 

Low Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement can be made. 
 

 
Medium Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of responsibility. 

 

 
High 

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management. 

 

 
Very High 

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both senior 
management and the Audit Committee. 

 

 

75



76



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

Audit and governance committee 
 

MEETING DATE: 19 March 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Internal Audit Charter  

REPORT BY: Internal Audit – South West Audit Partnership  
 

 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options as this charter is a requirement of the arrangements 
between Herefordshire Council and the South West Audit Partnership.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure compliance with good practice as set out in the International Professional 
Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors and the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).    

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision. 

Purpose 

To seek the Committee’s approval of the Internal Audit Charter for the period 1 April 2015 to 
31 March 2016. 

Recommendation 

That subject to any comments the Internal Audit Charter be approved.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

77



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

Key Considerations 

3 The Internal Audit Charter is set out in Appendix A. 

4 The charter sets outs the nature, role, responsibility, status and authority of internal 
auditing within Herefordshire Council, and to outline the scope of internal audit work.  

Community Impact 

5 This report does not impact on this area.   

Equality and Human Rights 

6 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

7 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

8 There are no legal implications.  

Risk Management 

9 Without an approved Charter there is a risk that the South West Audit Partnership will 
not have: 

• the support of management and the Council 

• direct access and freedom to support to senior management including the 
Chief Executive and the Audit and Governance Committee    

• access to any records, personnel or physical property of the Council for audit 
work  

Consultees 

10 The chief financial officer (section 151 officer) was consulted in the drafting of this 
report. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Charter 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

78



Herefordshire Council Audit and Governance Committee 19/03/2015                      

Internal Audit Charter 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this Charter is to set out the nature, role, responsibility, status and authority of internal 
auditing within Herefordshire Council, and to outline the scope of internal audit work. 
 
Approval 
This Charter was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee1 on 23rd June 2014 and is reviewed 
each year to confirm it remains accurate and up to date.  It was last reviewed by the Audit and Governance 
on 19th March 2015. 
 
Provision of Internal Audit Services 
The internal audit service is provided by the South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP).  SWAP is a Local 
Authority controlled company.  This charter should be read in conjunction with the Service Agreement, 
which forms part of the legal agreement between the SWAP partners. 
 
The budget for the provision of the internal audit service is determined by the Council, in conjunction with 
the Members Meeting.  The general financial provisions are laid down in the legal agreement, including the 
level of financial contribution by the Council, and may only be amended by unanimous agreement of the 
Members Meeting.  The budget is based on an audit needs assessment that was carried out when 
determining the Council’s level of contribution to SWAP.  This is reviewed each year by the Chief Financial 
Officer in consultation with the Chief Executive of SWAP. 
 
Role of Internal Audit 
Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve the Council’s operations.  It helps the Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and of Internal Audit 

Management2 
Management is responsible for determining the scope, except where specified by statute, of internal audit 
work and for deciding the action to be taken on the outcome of, or findings from, their work. Management 
is responsible for ensuring SWAP has:  
 
· the support of management and the Council; and 
· direct access and freedom to report to senior management, including the Chief Executive and the Audit 

and Governance Committee. 
 
Management is responsible for maintaining internal controls, including proper accounting records and other 
management information suitable for running the Authority.  Management is also responsible for the 
appropriate and effective management of risk. 
 
Internal Audit 
Internal audit is responsible for operating under the policies established by management in line with best 
practice. 
 
 

                                              
1 The Standards require that Internal Audit report to the Board.  CIPFA have, via the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) Guidelines, determined that the Audit Committee in this instance represents the Board.  
2 In this instance Management refers to the Management Team 

79



Herefordshire Council Audit and Governance Committee 19/03/2015                      

 
Internal audit is responsible for conducting its work in accordance with the Code of Ethics and Standards for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and further guided 
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).   
 
Internal audit is not responsible for any of the activities which it audits.  SWAP staff will not assume 
responsibility for the design, installation, operation or control of any procedures.  SWAP staff who have 
previously worked for Herefordshire Council will not be asked to review any aspects of their previous 
department's work until one year has passed since they left that area. 
 
Relationship with the External Auditors/Other Regulatory Bodies
Internal Audit will co-ordinate its work with others wherever this is beneficial to the organisation. 
 
Status of Internal Audit in the Organisation 
The Chief Executive of SWAP is responsible to the SWAP Board of Directors and the Members Meeting.  The 
Chief Executive of SWAP and the SWAP Director also report to the Chief Financial Officer as Section 151 
Officer, and reports to the Audit and Governance Committee as set out below. 
 
Appointment or removal of the Chief Executive of SWAP is the sole responsibility of the Members Meeting.  
 
Scope and authority of Internal Audit work 
There are no restrictions placed upon the scope of internal audit's work. SWAP staff engaged on internal 
audit work are entitled to receive and have access to whatever information or explanations they consider 
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities to senior management. In this regard, internal audit may have access 
to any records, personnel or physical property of Herefordshire Council. 
 
Internal audit work will normally include, but is not restricted to: 
 
· reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means used to 

identify, measure, classify and report such information; 

· evaluating and appraising the risks associated with areas under review and make proposals for improving 
the management of risks;

· appraise the effectiveness and reliability of the enterprise risk management framework and recommend 
improvements where necessary; 

· assist management and Members to identify risks and controls with regard to the objectives of the 
Council and its services; 

 
· reviewing the systems established by management to ensure compliance with those policies, plans, 

procedures, laws and regulations which could have a significant impact on operations and reports, and 
determining whether Herefordshire Council is in compliance; 

 
· reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of assets; 
 
· appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed; 
 
· reviewing operations or programmes to ascertain whether results are consistent with established 

objectives and goals and whether the operations or programmes are being carried out as planned; 
 
· reviewing the operations of the council in support of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption policy; 
 

80



Herefordshire Council Audit and Governance Committee 19/03/2015                      

· at the specific request of management, internal audit may provide consultancy services provided: 
 

Ø the internal auditors independence is not compromised 
Ø the internal audit service has the necessary skills to carry out the assignment, or can obtain such 

skills without undue cost or delay 
Ø the scope of the consultancy assignment is clearly defined and management have made proper 

provision for resources within the annual audit plan 
Ø management understand that the work being undertaken is not internal audit work.  

 
Planning and Reporting  
SWAP will submit to the Audit and Governance Committee, for approval, an annual internal audit plan, 
setting out the recommended scope of their work in the period. 
 
The annual plan will be developed with reference to the risks the organisation will be facing in the 
forthcoming year, whilst providing a balance of current and on-going risks, reviewed on a cyclical basis.  The 
plan will be reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure it remains adequately resourced, current and addresses 
new and emerging risks. 
 
SWAP will carry out the work as agreed, report the outcome and findings, and will make recommendations 
on the action to be taken as a result to the appropriate manager and Director.  SWAP will report at least 
four times a year to the Audit and Governance Committee.  SWAP will also report a summary of their 
findings, including any persistent and outstanding issues, to the Audit and Governance Committee on a 
regular basis. 
 
Internal audit reports will normally be by means of a brief presentation to the relevant manager 
accompanied by a detailed report in writing.  The detailed report will be copied to the relevant line 
management, who will already have been made fully aware of the detail and whose co-operation in 
preparing the summary report will have been sought.  The detailed report will also be copied to the Chief 
Financial Officer and to other relevant line management. 
 
The Chief Executive of SWAP will submit an annual report to the Audit and Governance Committee 
providing an overall opinion of the status of risk and internal control within the council, based on the 
internal audit work conducted during the previous year. 
 
In addition to the reporting lines outlined above, the Chief Executive of SWAP and the SWAP Director  have 
the unreserved right to report directly to the Leader of the Council, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 
the Council’s Chief Executive or the External Audit Manager. 

Revised March 2015 
 
 
 
 

81



82



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

Audit and Governance committee 
 

MEETING DATE: 19 March 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 

REPORT BY: Internal Audit – South West Audit Partnership  
 

 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options as this plan is a requirement of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure the Council complies with recommended best practice as set out in the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).    

Key Considerations 

3 The Internal Audit Plan report is set out in Appendix A. 

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision. 

Purpose 

To seek the Committee’s approval of the Internal Audit plan for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 
March 2016. 

Recommendation 

That subject to any comments the Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 be approved.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

83



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

4 The Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 is set out in Appendix B. 

5 The plan sets out the work required for Internal Audit to give an opinion on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, governance and 
internal control arrangements. 

Community Impact 

6 This report does not impact on this area.   

Equality and Human Rights 

7 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

8 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

9 There are no legal implications.  

Risk Management 

10 There is the risk that the Annual Internal Audit Plan does not take into account the 
key issues and risks facing the Council and does not provide adequate coverage of 
the Council’s key systems for the Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on the 
Council’s control environment. The process by which the plan has been compiled 
mitigates this risk.  

11 There is also a risk that there may be insufficient resources available to deliver the 
planned programme of audit work. To mitigate this, the plan has been based on an 
assessment of the resources available from the South West Audit Partnership. 
Regular meetings will held between the SWAP Internal Audit Manager and the Chief 
Financial Officer which allows regular monitoring of resource availability. : 

Consultees 

12 Meetings have been held with the Directors, Chief Financial Officer and other key 
officers to develop the Internal Audit Plan.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan Report 2015-16  

Appendix B – Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

84



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
  

       
                              

  H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

Pl
an

 2
01

5/
16

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 §

 R
is

k 
§ 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

nv
es

tig
at

io
ns

 §
 C

on
su

lt
an

cy
 

 

85



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
In

st
it

ut
e 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 

                  

Th
e 

co
nt

ac
ts

 a
t S

W
A

P 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
is

 re
po

rt
 a

re
: 

 G
er

ry
 C

ox
 

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
- S

W
AP

 
Te

l: 
01

93
5 

46
23

71
 

ge
rr

y.
co

x@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
 Ia

n 
Ba

ke
r  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 Q
ua

lit
y 

 
Te

l: 
07

91
7 

62
87

74
 

Ia
n.

ba
ke

r@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
 Ja

cq
ui

 G
oo

di
ng

 
  A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
Te

l: 
07

87
25

00
67

5 
ja

cq
ui

.g
oo

di
ng

@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
. u

k 
  

  

    Ro
le

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 1

 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 
 Th

e 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 2

 
 Th

e 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
– 

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 3

 

Co
nt

en
ts

 

86



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
In

st
it

ut
e 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 

  
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Pa

ge
 1

 
O

ur
 a

ud
it

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
is

 s
pl

it
 

be
tw

ee
n:

 
 

· 
Ke

y 
Co

nt
ro

l A
ud

it
 

· 
Fr

au
d/

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

A
ud

it
 

· 
IT

 A
ud

it
 

· 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
ud

it
 

· 
Fo

llo
w

 U
p 

A
ud

it
 

· 
U

rg
en

t W
or

k/
Sp

ec
ia

l 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

 

Ro
le

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

 Th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 t

he
 S

ou
th

 W
es

t 
A

ud
it 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

(S
W

A
P)

. 
 S

W
AP

 h
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
nd

 w
or

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

of
 t

he
 I

ns
tit

ut
e 

of
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Au
di

to
rs

 a
nd

 i
s 

al
so

 
gu

id
ed

 b
y 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
St

an
da

rd
s.

  
Th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 t

he
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

is
 a

ls
o 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
‘In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

Ch
ar

te
r’

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 la

st
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 t
he

 A
ud

it
 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 in

 Ju
ne

 2
01

4 
an

d 
is

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

da
y 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 2

01
5-

16
.  

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

op
in

io
n 

on
 t

he
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 r

is
k 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

by
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
its

 e
ff

ec
tiv

en
es

s.
  I

n 
or

de
r 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

hi
s,

 th
e 

au
di

t a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 s

pl
it 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
lis

te
d 

to
 th

e 
le

ft
. 

 Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

It 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
by

 t
he

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 
th

at
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 n
om

in
at

e 
a 

‘B
oa

rd
’ t

o 
ov

er
se

e 
(m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
sc

ru
ti

ni
se

) 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Au
di

t.
 A

s 
su

ch
, 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ov
er

si
gh

t, 
th

is
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 t
ha

t, 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 t
hi

s 
fu

nc
ti

on
.  

Th
e 

pl
an

 is
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

B 
to

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t a

nd
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

ac
tiv

ity
 fo

r 
th

e 
20

1 5
/1

6 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

 

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 p

la
n 

da
ys

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
ur

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.  

At
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f e
ac

h 
au

di
t a

n 
in

iti
al

 m
ee

tin
g 

is
 h

el
d 

to
 a

gr
ee

 t
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 f
or

 t
he

 a
ud

it
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
. 

 A
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

la
n 

ite
m

s,
 i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 d

ay
s,

 a
re

 m
an

ag
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l 
pa

ym
en

t 
m

ad
e 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
 T

he
 p

la
n 

is
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

to
 b

ot
h 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
 t

ha
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d 

im
m

in
en

t 
ri

sk
s 

fa
ce

d 
by

 t
he

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 a

re
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

.  
As

 w
ith

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s 

th
e 

pl
an

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 r
em

ai
n 

fle
xi

bl
e 

as
 n

ew
an

d 
em

er
gi

ng
 r

is
ks

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

An
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 a

gr
ee

d 
pl

an
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
Ch

ie
f F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

 
(S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ff
ic

er
).

 

87



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
In

st
it

ut
e 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 

                                   In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

– 
20

15
/1

6 
Pa

ge
 2

 

Th
e 

A
nn

ua
l P

la
n

 
 

Th
e 

A
nn

ua
l P

la
n 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

o 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f 
ou

r 
ab

ili
ty

 w
e 

ha
ve

 c
ov

er
ed

 t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 r

is
ks

, t
he

 a
nn

ua
l i

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

pl
an

 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
Ch

ie
f 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
O

ff
ic

er
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

be
tw

ee
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

. 
Th

e 
au

di
t 

pl
an

 is
 n

ot
io

na
lly

 b
ro

ke
n 

do
w

n 
ac

ro
ss

 v
ar

io
us

 a
ud

it 
ca

te
go

ri
es

; t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 e

ac
h:

 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l A

ud
it

–
fo

cu
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 o
n 

ke
y 

ri
sk

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
m

aj
or

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 IT

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  I

t 
is

 
es

se
nt

ia
l 

th
at

 a
ll 

ke
y 

co
nt

ro
ls

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ex

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

ar
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
.  

To
 t

hi
s 

en
d 

w
e 

ha
ve

 li
ai

se
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Ex

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
ny

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 t

he
y 

ha
ve

 i
n 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e m
 w

ith
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
, 

in
 l

in
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 
Au

di
tin

g  
St

an
da

rd
s,

 a
ga

in
st

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

re
 re

qu
ir

ed
 to

 a
ud

it
. 

 Fr
au

d/
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
A

ud
it

 –
 S

W
A

P 
op

er
at

e 
a 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ed
 F

ra
ud

 T
ea

m
 w

ho
 w

ill
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
fr

au
d 

re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 r

ea
ct

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

ar
is

e.
  

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

fo
cu

s 
pr

im
ar

ily
 o

n 
th

e 
ke

y 
ri

sk
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 c

ro
ss

 c
ut

ti
ng

 a
re

as
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
an

d/
or

 i
m

pa
ct

 a
t 

a 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

pe
ci

fic
 le

ve
l. 

 It
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

re
as

 o
f  

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l t

ha
t a

re
 

in
he

re
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
ri

sk
. 

 T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

w
ill

, 
in

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s,

 e
na

bl
e 

SW
AP

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
it

h 
ad

de
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

as
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 

m
os

t 
of

 t
he

se
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

at
 a

ll 
ou

r 
Pa

rt
ne

r 
Si

te
s.

 

88



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
In

st
it

ut
e 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

or
s 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

 P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 

   In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

– 
20

15
/1

6 
Pa

ge
 3

 

Th
e 

A
nn

ua
l P

la
n 

- C
on

tin
ue

d
 

 
Th

e 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
- C

on
ti

nu
ed

 

IT
 A

ud
its

 –
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

Au
th

or
ity

 w
ith

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

ds
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
in

du
st

ry
 b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e.

  S
om

e 
of

 th
es

e 
au

di
ts

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

nd
 o

ur
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
cu

rr
en

t 
IT

 r
is

ks
.  

As
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 a

bo
ve

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
 K

ey
 C

on
tr

ol
 w

or
k 

is
 a

ls
o 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 
Ex

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
 re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
. 

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

ud
it

s 
- a

re
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t.
  A

 r
is

k 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

m
at

ri
x 

is
 d

ev
is

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

te
st

ed
.  

W
he

re
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
or

 a
re

as
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

ct
io

ns
 

ar
e 

ag
re

ed
 w

it
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 ta

rg
et

 d
at

ed
. 

 U
rg

en
t 

W
or

k/
Sp

ec
ia

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
– 

SW
AP

 a
ls

o 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

ur
ge

nt
 w

or
k,

 s
pe

ci
al

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

on
 a

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 b
as

is
 a

t t
he

 re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

 (S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ff

ic
er

). 
  

  Th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B 

de
ta

ils
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

fo
r 

20
15

/1
6.

 

 

89



90



Page 1 
 

Appendix B 

Herefordshire Council Annual Audit Plan 2015-16 
 

Audit Type and Area Number of days  Cost £ 
Key Financial Control Audits  

Main Accounting – follow up 10 £2,500 
Account Payable  - follow up 10 £2,500 
Accounts Receivable 20 £5,000 
Council Tax  - follow up 5 £1,250 
NNDR 15 £3,750 
Housing and Council Tax Benefits – follow 
up 

5 £1,250 

Payroll  25 £6,250 
Pensions - Auto Enrolment 5 £1,250 
Treasury Management – follow up 5 £1,250 
Capital Accounting 10 £2,500 
TOTAL 110 £27,500 

Fraud/Governance Audits  
Fraud Reviews – counter fraud work both 
responsive and proactive tba Chief Financial 
Officer 

40 £10,000 

National Fraud Initiative   30 £7,500 
TOTAL 70 £17,500 

Operational Audits  
Economy,  Communities & Corporate    
Delivery of Projects funded by the Skills 
Funding Agency 

15 £3,750 

Leisure centres – HALO – review of contract 
provision 

5 £1,250 

Democratic services 15 £3,750 
Local land Charges 15 £3,750 
Modern records  15 £3,750 
Registrar and Coroners 20 £5,000 
Income review - maximising income -
income and charging guidance 

20 £5,000

Commercial Properties/Rents 15 £3,750 
Fastershire 10 £2,500 
Planning applications 20 £5,000 
Energy Supply Contract 15 £3,750 
Waste Collection  Contract 20 £5,000 
Road Maintenance 25 £6,250 
Licensing 15 £3,750 
TOTAL 225 £56,250 
 
 
 
 
 

  

91



Page 2 
 

Herefordshire Council Annual Audit Plan 2015-16 
 

Audit Type and Area Number of days  Cost £ 
   
Adults Wellbeing Service   
Shaw care provider contract 20 £5,000 
Peer Challenge Benefits Realisation 15 £3,750 
Public Health Investment and Outcomes 20 £5,000 
Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) 20 £5,000 
Better Care Fund 20 £5,000 
Direct Payments 20 £5,000 
Purchasing Strategy and Market 
Management  - Care service 

20 £5,000 

TOTAL 135 £33,750 
Children’s Wellbeing Service   
Schools  follow ups – Prevention of Fraud 20 £5,000 
Education, Health and Care plans 20 £5,000 
Safer Recruitment 25 £6,250 
Troubled Families 15 £3,750 
Pupil Premium - school theme 20 £5,000 
Contract Management 25 £6,250 
TOTAL 125 £31,250 

IT Audits  
Public Service Network (PSN) code -  
assurance compliance 

15 £3,750 

Council and NHS ICT - level of shared 
support in respect of investment by each 
party. 

10 £2,500 

Access Controls  - CIVICA  and CRM 20 £5,000 
Hardware Asset Management 15 £3,750 
Corporate Services  - Digital Channels 
Project  

10 £2,500 

Payment Card Industry (PCI) Data Security 
Standard  compliance 

15 £3,750 

Mobile phone usage and strategy 10 £2,500 
Incident and Problem Management 5 £1,250 
TOTAL 100 £25,000 

Management   
Contingency for Chief Financial Officer work 45 £11,250 
Corporate/ General Advice 20 £5,000 
Committee Reporting and attendance 25 £6,250 
Planning /Client Liaison 40 £10,000 
External Audit liaison 5 £1,250 
TOTAL  135 £33,750 
   
PLAN TOTAL  900 £225,000 
 

92



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

Audit and governance committee 
 

MEETING DATE: 19 March 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy 2015  

REPORT BY: Chief financial officer and internal audit – 
South West Audit Partnership   

 
 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options as this is a requirement of the audit and governance 
code. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The audit and governance code requires this committee to approve the council’s anti- 
fraud and corruption policies and to review them on a biennial basis.   

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision. 

Purpose 

To present to the Audit and Governance Committee the revised Anti-Fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption Policy for approval. 

Recommendation 

That  
(a) the Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy attached at appendix A be 

approved. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

93



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

Key Considerations 

3 The policy summarises the culture of the council with regard to its opposition to fraud 
and corruption.  

4 The policy also sets out clearly to members, employees, contractors, the council’s 
partners, and the public:  

· The council’s commitment to tackling fraud, bribery and corruption 
· Its actions to promote the prevention of fraud, bribery and corruption 
· The responsibility of members and employees in minimising the risk of fraud 

and reporting any suspicions they may have 

5 The draft policy was presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in November 
for comment. Reflecting the views of the committee, the draft policy has been 
amended to so that the reporting section is at the front of the policy as well as in the 
main body of the report.  

Community Impact 

6 A robust and transparent anti-fraud bribery and corruption policy will support 
achievement of the councils corporate plan by helping to ensure that finances are 
manages effectively to secure value for money and deliver a balanced budget..   

Equality and Human Rights 

7 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

8 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

9 There are no legal implications as the report is seeking comments on the draft.  

Risk Management 

10 The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the council’s anti-fraud, 
bribery and corruption policies; if this is not done there is the risk that policies will not 
be sufficient and robust in addressing fraud. 

Consultees 

11 The chief financial officer (section 151 officer) was consulted in the drafting of this 
policy. 

94



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872 500675 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy 

Background Papers 

· None identified. 

95



96



Appendix A 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

 

 

Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy  
 

 

  

Reference Number   
Approved by Audit and Governance Committee 
Date Approved  
Version 2.0 
Last reviewed 12 March 2012 
Review Date 5 January 2015 
Next Review Date  5 January 2017 
Category Corporate Governance 
Owner  Chief Financial Officer 
Target Audience  All Council Staff, Councillors, Contractors, the 

Council’s partners and the Public 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After the Review Date has expired, this document may not be up-to-date. Please 
contact the document owner to check the status after the Review Date shown 
above.  

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in another 
format or language, please contact the document owner.  

97



Appendix A 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Reporting 

Employees should normally raise concerns with their immediate manager or that 

manager’s manager. This depends, however on the seriousness of the 

issues involved and who is suspected of the malpractice. If staff believe that their 

management is involved they should approach: 

i) The Chief Executive – Tel : 01432 260044 

ii) The Chief Financial Officer  -  Tel: 01432 383519 

iii) The Assistant Director - Governance  - Tel: 01432 260200 

iv) Internal Audit Manager  - 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

Elected councillors should normally report any concerns to the appropriate Senior 

Leadership Team Member or one of the officers listed above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



Appendix A 

Page 3 of 9 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The council is determined to pursue a policy of zero tolerance to fraud, bribery 

and corruption.  

1.2 The purpose of this policy is to set out clearly to councillors, employees, 

contractors, the councils partners, and the public: 

· The council’s commitment to tackling fraud, bribery and corruption 

· Its actions to promote the prevention of fraud, bribery and corruption 

· The responsibility of councillors and employees in minimising the risk of 

fraud and reporting any suspicions they may have 

1.3 The council controls millions of pounds of public money and takes very seriously 

its stewardship of this money and the high expectations of the public and the 

degree of scrutiny to which the affairs of the council are subject. Proper 

accountability achieved through probity, internal control and honest 

administration is therefore essential.  

1.4 The Government has made it clear as they attempt to reduce public sector 

spending that they expect both central and local government to take the issue of 

fraud seriously and do more to tackle the issues from public sector funding to 

prevent fraud. In June 2011 the National Fraud Authority published ‘Eliminating 

Public Sector Fraud’ which set out four priorities to tackle fraud effectively in the 

public sector: 

· Collaboration 

· Zero Tolerance 

· Better assessment of risks and measurement of losses  

· Greater focus on fraud prevention activity 

1.5 This was followed by the National Fraud Authority (NFA) producing a National 

Local Government Fraud Strategy (April 2012) ‘Fighting Fraud Locally’. The 

strategy contains examples of good practice which should enhance the fight 

against fraud based around three key themes: 

· Acknowledge – acknowledging and understanding fraud risks 

· Prevent – Preventing and detecting fraud 

· Pursue – being stronger in punishing fraud and recovering losses 

99



Appendix A 

Page 4 of 9 
 

1.6 Whilst there is a need for an anti fraud, bribery and corruption policy it is equally 

important to emphasise the faith the council places in the integrity and honesty 

of its entire staff. The council also expects that all outside individuals and 

organisations including suppliers, contractors and claimants will act towards the 

council with honesty and integrity. 

1.7 All councillors and staff are expected to be aware of standards of conduct and 

the procedures designed to reduce the risk of fraud, bribery and corruption 

occurring. 

1.8 All staff shall be responsible for their own conduct, with managers being 

additionally responsible for maintaining internal checks and control procedures 

within their service area.  

1.9 Fraud, bribery and corruption risks will be considered as part of the Council’s 

Strategic Risk Management arrangements. 

 

 

2. What is Fraud, Bribery and Corruption 

2.1 The Fraud Act 2006 created a criminal offence of fraud and identifies three main 

ways it can be committed with a maximum penalty of 10 years imprisonment:  

· Fraud by false representation 

· Fraud by failing to disclose information 

· Fraud by abuse of position 

2.2 The Act also created four related criminal offences of:  

· Possession of articles for use in frauds 

· Making or supplying articles for use in frauds 

· Participating in fraudulent business 

· Obtaining Services dishonesty 

2.3 The Bribery Act 2010 defines bribery as “giving someone a financial or other 

advantage to encourage that person to perform their functions or activities 

improperly or to reward that person for having already done so’’. This Act came 

into force on 1st July 2011 and embraces offences of both bribery and 

corruption. There are four key offences under the Act:  

100



Appendix A 

Page 5 of 9 
 

· Bribery of another person 

· Accepting a bribe 

· Bribing a foreign public official 

· A corporate offence of failing to prevent bribery 

2.4  The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and the Terrorism Act 2000  place obligations 

on the Council and its staff with respect to suspected money laundering and 

makes it a criminal offence to help a criminal ‘launder’ the proceeds of crime.  

 

3. Culture 

3.1 The council is determined that the culture and tone of the organisation is one of 

honesty, openness and opposition to fraud, bribery and corruption. The council 

will not tolerate fraud or corruption of any form or degree in the administration 

of its responsibilities whether from inside or outside the council. 

3.2 There is an expectation that and requirement that all individuals and 

organisations associated in whatever way with the council will act with integrity 

and that councillors and staff at all levels, will lead by example. 

3.3 The council’s staff are an important element in its stance on fraud and 

corruption and are positively encouraged to raise any concerns that they may 

have on these issues where they are associated with the council’s activity. 

This they can do in the knowledge that such concerns will be treated in 

confidence and properly investigated. 

 

4. Reporting 

4.1 Employees should normally raise concerns with their immediate manager or that 

manager’s manager. This depends, however on the seriousness of the 

issues involved and who is suspected of the malpractice. If staff believe that 

their management is involved they should approach: 

v) The Chief Executive – Tel : 01432 260044 

vi) The Chief Financial Officer  -  Tel: 01432 383519 

vii)The Assistant Director - Governance  - Tel: 01432 260200 

viii) Internal Audit Manager  - 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

101



Appendix A 

Page 6 of 9 
 

4.2 Elected councillors should normally report any concerns to the appropriate 

Senior Leadership Team Member or one of the officers listed in 4.1 

4.3 The council also discourages anybody who has reasonably held suspicions from 

doing nothing, trying to investigate the matter themselves, approaching or 

accusing the individual themselves. Any of these actions could result in 

any counter fraud investigation being compromised. 

4.4 Senior Management are responsible for following up any allegation of fraud or 

corruption and will do so in line with the Council’s  Financial Regulations. 

4.5 Senior Management are expected to deal swiftly and firmly with those who have 

defrauded the council or who are corrupt. 

4.6 There is a need to ensure that any investigation process is not misused and 

therefore, any abuse such as raising unfounded malicious allegations will be 

dealt with as a disciplinary matter. 

 

5. Prevention 

5.1 The council recognises that a key preventive measure in the fight against fraud, 

bribery and corruption is the taking of effective steps at the recruitment stage to 

establish, as far as possible, the previous record of potential staff, in terms of 

their propriety and integrity. In this regard temporary and contract staff will be 

treated in the same manner as permanent staff. 

5.2 The council will regularly review and keep its Disciplinary Procedures up to date 

and in line with good practice. 

5.3 The council has Standing Orders for the Regulation of Contracts, Financial 

Standing Orders and Financial Regulations in place that provide a lead and 

requirement on staff ,when dealing with the council’s affairs to act in 

accordance with best practice. 

5.4 The Chief Financial officer will ensure that Financial Standing Orders and 

Financial Regulations are kept up to date and made available to all staff. 

5.5 The Assistant Director - Governance will ensure that the Code of Conduct and 

Standing Orders for the Regulation of Contracts are up to date and made 

available to all staff. 

102



Appendix A 

Page 7 of 9 
 

5.6 The council has developed and is committed to continuing, with systems and 

procedures that incorporate efficient and effective internal controls, which 

include adequate separation of duties wherever possible. It is required that the 

Directors, Assistant Directors and Heads of Service and other key managers will 

ensure that such controls, including those in a computerised environment are 

properly maintained. Their existence and appropriateness will be independently 

reviewed by the council’s Internal Audit Service. 

5.7 The council will work with the primary Care Trust and NHS Trust to develop 

where possible a joint approach to antifraud activity.  

 

6. Detection 

6.1 Directors, Assistant Directors, Heads of Service and other key managers shall 

ensure that internal control is implemented and maintained and will report any 

matters where internal control has failed to the Chief Internal Auditor. 

6.2 Internal Audit shall from time to time, inspect systems to give assurance to the 

Audit and Governance Committee that internal control is adequate and 

operating satisfactorily. 

6.3 Herefordshire Council will take part in National Fraud Initiative operated by the 

Audit Commission. 

6.4 The Audit and Governance Committee will review and approve as part of the 

Annual Audit Plan the Internal Audit programme for fraud prevention and 

detection work. 

6.5 The council’s Code of Practice on Whistleblowing allows employees and 

councillors to raise any concerns they may have in confidence and anonymously 

should they wish. 

 

7. Investigations 

7.1 The investigation of fraud, bribery and corruption is a complex and specialist 

area and will usually be undertaken by Internal Audit, or for less complicated 

cases, managers, under Internal Audit advice. Internal Audit will ensure that 

there is a procedure that can be implemented to ensure that all evidence 

is correctly obtained, stored and recorded.  

103



Appendix A 

Page 8 of 9 
 

7.2 Depending on the nature and anticipated extent of the allegations, Internal 

Audit will normally work closely with management and other agencies  to ensure 

that all allegations and evidence is properly investigated and reported on. 

7.3 To facilitate audit work and investigations, Internal Audit staff are accorded 

rights, by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, to access all necessary 

documents, records, information and explanations d from any member of staff.  

7.4 When undertaking fraud investigations, council investigators will observe the 

Police and Criminal Evidence Act Codes of Practice. 

7.5 Any decision to refer an investigation to the Police will be taken by the Audit 

Manager in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer and others, as 

appropriate. 

 

8. Discipline and Prosecution   

8.1 The council’s Disciplinary Procedures will be used where the outcome of 

any investigation indicates improper behaviour. 

8.2 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for deciding in consultation with the 

relevant member of  Management Board and the Internal Audit Manager 

as appropriate, whether any matter under investigation should be referred for 

police investigation and take recovery action as appropriate on such matters 

 

9. Recovery of Losses 

9.1 The council will normally seek to recover losses incurred as a result of fraud, 

bribery and corruption.  

9.2 If anyone under investigation offers money in settlement of any losses to the 

council, it should be made clear that any monies offered will be accepted:  

· Without prejudice to any other actions the council may wish to take 

· That acceptance is only in respect of losses identified to date 

· And that the council reserves the right to seek recovery any further  losses 

that may come to light in the future 

9.3 Consideration will be given to legal action against the perpetrator of fraud or 

those benefiting from fraud in order to cover the council’s losses. 

 

104



Appendix A 

Page 9 of 9 
 

10.  The Council’s Equal Opportunities Policy  

11.1 All investigations, internal procedures and codes of conduct will comply with and 

take account of the council’s Equal Opportunity Policy. 

 

11. Data Protection 

12.1 The council will share any personal data with the police or any other body in 

connection with the detection, investigation or prosecution of fraud in line with 

the Data Protection Act 1998. 

 

12. Working with Other Agencies  

13.1 There are arrangements in place to continue to develop and encourage the 

exchange of information between the council and other cgencies in relation to 

fraud, bribery and corruption to help prevent, deter and detect fraud.  These 

include 

· Police 

· DWP 

· HMRC 

· Audit Commission (NFI) 

· Other Authorities 

13. Related Policies and Other Strategies 

14.1 The following policies support or are linked to the anti fraud, bribery and 

corruption policy. 

· Anti-Money Laundering Policy 
· Codes of Conduct (employees and councillors) 
· Grievance Policy and Procedure 
· Financial Procedure Rules 
· Contracts Procedure Rules 
· Whistleblowing or Confidential Reporting Code 
· Code on Gifts and Hospitality  
· Equality and Diversity Policy 

105



106



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Rachel Horne, Commercial Officer on Tel (01432) 383729 

 

 

Meeting:  Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 19 March 2015 

Title of report: Contracts and financial procedure rules  

Report by: Chief financial officer 
 

 

Alternative Options 

1. The council could continue with its current contracts procedure rules and financial procedure 
rules; however they would then not be compliant with current legislative requirements.  

Reason for Recommendations 

2. To ensure council contracts procedure rules are compliant with legislative requirements and 
therefore provide adequate mitigation against potential for legal challenge. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

 To refresh the contracts and financial procedure rules within the council’s constitution. 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
(a) the monitoring officer be instructed to update the council’s contracts 
procedure rules as attached at appendix 1; and 
(b) the monitoring officer be instructed to update the council’s financial 
procedure rules as attached at appendix 2. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

107



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Rachel Horne, Commercial Officer on Tel (01432) 383729 

 

3. To ensure council financial procedure rules are up to date and provide clarity of roles, 
accountabilities and process in order to ensure transparency about how public resources are 
used and to mitigate the potential for fraud. 

Key Considerations 

4. The contracts procedure rules and the financial procedure rules, forming part of the council’s 
constitution, have not been updated since December 2012.  

5. The council’s contracts procedure rules have been updated (copy at Appendix A) to ensure 
they reflect the recent changes to the EU procurement rules, enacted into English law under 
the Public Contract Regulations 2015 on 26th February 2015 and will enable the authority to 
ensure that it is fully compliant with English and EU law.  

6. The council’s financial procedure rules have been updated (copy at Appendix B) to align with 
the current chief executive’s scheme of delegation, to ensure transparency regarding current 
operational officer authorisation limits, and to ensure alignment between the contracts and 
financial procedure rules.  

7. Changes have been made to both sets of procedure rules to reflect the move to online 
procurement processes and the move away from use of ‘approved supplier’ lists. In addition, 
post titles have been updated and references to any outdated partnership or service delivery 
arrangements (such as the partnership with the then primary care trust, contract 
arrangements with Amey, or part ownership of West Mercia Supplies) have been removed.  
The current arrangement for delivery of the internal audit service through the South West 
Audit Partnership is also reflected. 

8. In addition, both the revised contracts procedure rules and the financial procedure rules now 
recognise the need to comply with the Equalities Act 2010 and other applicable financial 
legislation. 

Community Impact 

9. Adopting the suggested amendments to the council’s contract procedure rules will enable the 
council to deliver the requisite goods, services and works to the residents of Herefordshire 
whilst obtaining the best value for money for the council; in line with the authority’s 
Commercial and Commissioning Strategy 2013-2016.  

10. In addition, ensure clear and transparent processes are in place to govern how resources of 
the council are effectively managed supports the council’s corporate plan objective to 
manage finances effectively and to demonstrate one of the council’s values, namely to be 
open transparent and accountable.  

Equality duty 

11. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 imposes a duty on the local authority when exercising 
its public functions to have due regard to the need to:  

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation  

108



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Rachel Horne, Commercial Officer on Tel (01432) 383729 

 

b. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic  

c. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

12. Where services are commissioned by the council the aims of the equality duty and in 
particular the aim of advancing equality of opportunity will almost always be relevant because 
commissioning is about meeting the needs of the public including people with a particular 
characteristic.  

13. When the council has the need to procure services from others the requirement to have due 
regard needs to be taken into account alongside other relevant requirements in particular 
those imposed by EU procurement rules. 

Financial Implications 

14. The proposed updates to the council’s contract procedure rules will enable the council to 
ensure that it secures the best value for money from its tendering opportunities as it requires 
officers who are responsible for evaluating tenders to recommend the tender which poses 
the most economically advantageous solution as the council’s preferred bidder. This criterion 
enables the council to select the tender which proposes a solution which offers the greatest 
possible benefits in terms of both quality and value to the council. 

15. In addition, the proposed amendments to the contract procedure rules have been conducted 
in conjunction with the council’s financial services department to ensure that the procurement 
regulations are aligned with the council’s financial regulations. 

16. The proposed revisions to the financial regulations are designed to ensure that the council 
complies with all of the relevant financial regulations which govern the council’s financial 
conduct and ensure that the council receives the optimal value for money from its 
acquisitions, asset management and disposal of assets. 

Legal Implications 

17. The updates to the contracts procedure rules will ensure that the council’s internal 
procurement regulations reflect the changes to the EU procurement rules enacted into 
English law under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 on 26th February 2015, and with the 
Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013. In addition, the proposed 
amendments will enable the council to ensure that it complies with its internal regulations 
whilst conducting a procurement exercise; thereby mitigating the risk of a challenge as a 
result of contravening the authority’s internal rules. 

18. The updates to the council’s financial procedure rules ensure that they comply with the 
recent amendments to the Terrorism Act 2000, Crime and Society Act 2001, Money 
Laundering Regulations 2007 and Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013, 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 
2013. 

109



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Rachel Horne, Commercial Officer on Tel (01432) 383729 

 

19. As required by legislation, Council has adopted a constitution which sets out how we operate 
and how we make decisions. Audit & Governance Committee has been delegated the 
function of reviewing the constitution and making recommendations to Council; the 
monitoring officer has delegated authority to amend the constitution to reflect what Council 
has agreed, changes to the law and technical amendments. The amendments proposed fall 
into the category of technical amendments or those required as a result of changes to the 
law. 

Risk Management 

20. The proposed amendments will ensure that the council complies with internal rules in relation 
to procurement practices and thereby effectively mitigates the risk of challenge to a tender 
award. 

Consultees 

None.  

Appendices 

Appendix A - Updated contracts procedure rules 

Appendix B - Updated financial procedure rules 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

 
 
 

110



APPENDIX B   

1 
 

Section 7 - Financial Procedure Rules 
 
 
4.7.1 Background 

4.7.1.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that  “Every local 
authority shall make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility 
for the administration of those affairs” 

4.7.1.2 The person with overall responsibility for Herefordshire Council’s financial 
affairs under the act, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Section 151 
Officer is the Director of Resources.  Herefordshire uses the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA) guidance in defining the role of their CFO 
or Section 151 Officer: 

• is a key member of the Leadership Team, helping it to develop and 
implement strategy and to resource and deliver the authority’s 
strategic objectives sustainably and in the public interest; 

• must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, 
all material business decisions to ensure immediate and longer 
term implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered, and 
alignment with the authority’s financial strategy; and 

• must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole authority of good 
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all 
times and used appropriately, economically, efficiently and 
effectively 

4.7.1.3 To deliver these responsibilities the Chief Financial Officer: 

• must lead and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for 
purpose; and 

• must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced 

4.7.1.3 The 1988 Local Government Act makes a requirement to have a designated 
qualified deputy S151 Officer to act on their behalf in his/her absence or if 
requested by the CFO to do so.  The role designated as deputy S151 officer 
is the Head of Corporate Finance. 

The role of the chief financial officer in local government, CIPFA 

4.7.1.4 The Financial Procedure Rules apply these requirements and controls the 
way the Council manages its finances and safeguards its assets.  They form 
part of the Council’s Constitution and are to be read in conjunction with other 
sections of the Constitution in particular: 

Part 3 – The Functions Scheme 

Part 4 – Section 3 - The Budget and Policy Framework Rules 

Part 4 – Section 6 – the Contract Procedure Rules 

 

111



APPENDIX B   

2 
 

4.7.1.5 The Financial Procedure Rules apply to every member and officer of the 
council and anyone acting on its behalf except where separate 
arrangements are made under the scheme for the Local Management of 
Schools. 

4.7.2 General Responsibilities 

4.7.2.1 Members and officers have a general responsibility for taking reasonable 
action to provide for the security of assets under their control and for 
ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, properly authorised, 
provides value for money and achieves best value. 

4.7.2.2  Members, officers and others acting on behalf of the Council are required 
to have proper regard to the advice and guidance issued by the CFO on 
the Financial Procedure Rules. 

4.7.2.3 Every report to Members shall contain a statement setting out the 
financial implications of the recommendation(s) proposed that has been 
approved by the CFO. 

4.7.2.4 The Council’s expectation of propriety and accountability is that Members 
and staff at all levels shall lead by example in ensuring adherence to 
financial and legal requirements, rules, procedures and practices. 

4.7.2.5 Members and staff at all levels shall act in accordance with the council’s 
Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption policies. 

4.7.2.6 The Council also expects that individuals and organisations (e.g. 
suppliers, contractors, service providers) that it comes into contact with, 
shall act towards the Council with integrity and without thought or actions 
involving fraud or corruption. 

4.7.2.7 Appendix A sets out the responsibilities of members and officers relating 
to the Financial Procedure Rules. 

4.7.2.8 The council’s scheme of delegation is the formal record of delegation of 
financial decision making. 

 

4.7.3 Urgent Decisions  

4.7.3.1 In exceptional circumstances, where an urgent decision is required, this 
shall be taken by the relevant Director in consultation with the CFO and 
the Assistant Director Governance. If the matter is outside the scheme of 
delegation then the matter can only be authorised by the Chief Executive 
and the Cabinet Member responsible for Resources in accordance with 
the procedures for the taking of urgent decisions set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  

4.7.3.2  Any decisions made under the ‘Urgent Decision’ arrangements shall be 
reported to the relevant Director, Cabinet Members and Local Members. 

4.7.3.3 Nothing in these standing orders shall prevent expenditure required to 
meet immediate needs caused by a sudden emergency to which Section 
138 of the Local Government Act 1972 applies, provided that such 
expenditure shall be reported as soon as possible to the appropriate 
Cabinet Member and the Cabinet. 

112



APPENDIX B   

3 
 

 

4.7.4 Income Charging Policy  

4.7.4.1 Local authorities have a wide discretion to levy charges for services. 
Where charges can be set at the discretion of the council Directors should 
comply with the following principles; 

a Services should raise income wherever there is a power or duty 
to do so. 

b The income raised should cover the full cost of providing the 
service, including overheads. Any exception to this must be 
justified in a transparent manner which links to the council’s 
objectives and priorities. 

c All fees and charges should be transparent and consistently 
applied. 

d Fees and charges must be set for a specific purpose- either as a 
policy tool or full cost recovery, or a combination of both. 

 

4.7.5 Income Collection   

4.7.5.1 The CFO shall agree arrangements for the collection of all income and 
approve procedures and systems.  In order to achieve this, the following 
controls must be followed: 

a All income due to the Council is identified, charged correctly and 
billed promptly. 

b All money received by an employee on behalf of the Council is 
paid without delay to the CFO or to a nominated officer or into 
the Council’s specified bank account and is properly recorded. 

c All receipts given for money should be on an official receipt form. 

d All income is collected from the correct person, at the right time 
using the correct procedures and appropriate stationery and 
effective recovery action to pursue outstanding sums is taken 
within defined timescales. 

e A formal approval process for write-offs of uncollectable debts 
using the criteria detailed below. 

f  Personal cheques shall not be cashed out of money held on 
behalf of the Council. 

g  All income received shall be receipted immediately. 

h  Officers shall bank all cash received immediately; its use for 
either personal or official purposes is strictly forbidden. 

i  All paying in records shall be retained securely in line with the 
Council’s policies on the retention of documents. 

113



APPENDIX B   

4 
 

4.7.5.2 The CFO has determined the following authorisations for writing off 
uncollectable debt: 

a Under £150 – individual Service Managers. 

b Between £150 and £500 – Revenues & Development 
Operational Manager (Hoople Ltd). 

c Between £500 and £2,000 – Revenues & Benefits Service 
Manager (Hoople Ltd). 

d Between £2,000 and £20,000 – Head of Corporate Finance. 

4.7.5.3 For write offs of amounts exceeding £20,000 the CFO shall seek 
agreement from the relevant Cabinet Member responsible for Resources. 

4.7.5.4 The CFO shall report details of amounts over £2,000 written off to Cabinet 
twice a year for information purposes. 

4.7.5.5 Write off of amounts above £2,000 relating to other Directorates require 
the recommendation of the relevant Director. 

 

4.7.6 Orders for Goods, Works and Services 

4.7.6.1 Orders shall not be issued for goods, work or services unless the cost is 
covered by an approved budget. 

4.7.6.2 All orders given on behalf of the Council shall be approved in electronic 
form in accordance with signatory limits.  All orders are to be authorised 
by officers nominated by the appropriate Director who shall be 
responsible for official orders issued from his or her Directorate.  Orders 
given verbally shall be confirmed by paper or electronic order as 
appropriate as soon as possible. 

4.7.6.3 All works, goods or services supplied to the Council are to be subject to 
formal prior authorisation, in writing and/or electronic medium, as to need 
and budget cover.  Written or electronic orders are to be issued for all 
work, goods or services to be supplied to the Council unless a written 
contract is required.  An order or contract is not required for public utility 
services, periodical payments such as rent or rates, for petty cash 
purchases or for such other expenditure as the CFO may approve.  All 
orders and contracts are to be managed in compliance with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules. 

4.7.6.4 Each order shall conform to the directions of the Council with respect to 
central purchasing and the standardisation of supplies and materials and 
with respect to Contract Procedure Rules.  

4.7.6.5 Written orders shall be marked with invoice details when relevant 
accounts are passed for payment.  When an electronic procurement 
system is in use an appropriate entry shall be made in that system when 
a payment is authorised. 

 

114



APPENDIX B   

5 
 

4.7.6.6 The key controls for ordering and paying for work, goods and services 
are: 

a All works, goods and services are ordered only by appropriate 
persons and recorded. 

b All works, goods and services shall be ordered in accordance 
with the Contract Procedure Rules unless they are purchased 
from internal sources within the Council. 

c Works, goods and services received are checked to ensure they 
are in accordance with the order. 

d Payments are authorised by officers who can certify that goods 
have been received to price, quantity and quality. 

e All payments are made to the correct person, for the correct 
amount and are properly recorded, regardless of the payment 
method. 

f All appropriate payment documents are retained and stored for 
the defined period in accordance with the ‘Herefordshire Council 
Records Management Policy’ 

g All expenditure, is accurately recorded against the right budget 
and any exceptions corrected. 

h That processes are in place to maintain the security and integrity 
of data for transacting business electronically. 

 

4.7.7 Payments 

4.7.7.1 Individual Directors shall ensure that payments are authorised by 
appropriate officers who can certify that goods and services have been 
received and that price, quantity and quality are in accordance with the 
initial order, where appropriate. 

4.7.7.2 Directors shall provide the CFO with a list of authorised officers showing 
their signing levels with specimen signatures. This list should be reviewed 
at intervals to ensure is up to date and accurate and any changes being 
reported promptly. 

4.7.7.3 Unless specifically authorised otherwise by the CFO: 

a officers as authorised by the Director up to £5,000  

b Managers who report to Heads of Service may authorise 
payments up to £100,000. 

c Heads of Service (as defined by Head of Service pay grades) 
may authorise payments up to £250,000. 

d Directors must authorise all payments in excess of £250,000 
(excluding VAT). 

e All amounts exclude VAT. 

115



APPENDIX B   

6 
 

 

4.7.7.4 Authorisation limits for schools will be set by the governing body. Schools 
shall provide the CFO with a list of authorised officers showing their 
signing levels with specimen signatures. This list should be reviewed at 
intervals to ensure is up to date and accurate and any changes being 
reported promptly. 

4.7.7.5 Where an electronic file contains multiple payments, an officer may 
authorise the whole file with one signature if his or her authorised limit is 
at least the value of the highest individual amount within that file. 

4.7.7.6 References to certification and authorisation are deemed to include those 
made online within a system where the identity of the user is verified 
using the system’s identification protocols. 

4.7.7.7 Once certified, all accounts paid through the centralised payment system 
must be passed to the payments section that shall ensure that the 
required payment is made to the correct person by the agreed method of 
payment and that all expenditure including VAT is accurately recorded 
against the correct budget. 

4.7.7.8 Requests for payment shall be rejected by the Payments Manager unless 
certified by an officer who has the appropriate level of authority. 

4.7.7.9 The use of feeder systems to generate payments will only be allowed if 
the CFO is satisfied that the data integrity of the corporate financial 
system would not be compromised and that the feeder system works in 
accordance with these financial procedures. 

4.7.7.10 Invoices do not need specific authorisation for payment in an electronic 
system where the invoice matches the authorised order and goods 
receipt, and all three are correctly entered into the system.   

4.7.7.11 In accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the Late 
Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013, and to maximise 
performance under the contract; the council will process all undisputed 
invoices within 30 days of receipt. The same shall apply to contractors in 
respect of any subcontractor arrangements applied under the applicable 
council contract(s). All council contracts shall contain provisions to this 
effect. All accounts received must be date stamped with the day of 
receipt.  In the event of a claim for damages/interest for late payment, the 
amount will be charged to the budget of the directorate responsible. 

4.7.7.12 The CFO shall ensure that all appropriate payment documentation is 
retained for the required period of time in accordance with the 
Herefordshire Council records management policy. 

 

4.7.8 Salaries, Wages, Pensions, Travel and Subsistence 

4.7.8.1 Directors shall provide the CFO with a list of officers authorised to sign 
claims and other payroll documents showing their signing limits with 
specimen signatures. This list should be updated and reported promptly to 
reflect staff changes. Expense claims for less than £250 will be self 
authorised. 

116



APPENDIX B   

7 
 

4.7.8.2 All claims for payment of allowances, subsistence, travelling and 
expenses must be submitted within one month of the period they relate to 
on the approved form, duly certified in a form approved by the CFO with 
all required supporting evidence including VAT receipts for fuel and other 
expenses where appropriate.  Any exceptions shall require individual 
certification by both the Director and the Head of Service. 

4.7.8.3 The certification of claims by or on behalf of a Director or Head of Service 
shall be taken to mean that the certifying officer is satisfied that the 
journeys and the expenses incurred were necessary and authorised as 
being in line with the Council’s policies on travel and subsistence claims. 

4.7.8.4 The Human Resources Service Manager (Hoople Ltd) shall ensure that all 
appropriate payroll documents are retained for the required period of time 
in accordance with the ‘Herefordshire Council Records Management 
Policy’. 

 

4.7.9 Imprest Accounts 

4.7.9.1 The Head of Corporate Finance will consider requests from Heads of 
Service and Head Teachers to provide a cash or bank imprest account to 
meet minor expenditure on behalf of the Council. 

4.7.9.2 The Head of Corporate Finance will maintain a record of all advances 
made and reconcile to the Council’s main financial system. 

4.7.9.3 Officers operating an imprest account will comply with the following 
procedures: 

a Obtain and retain vouchers to support each payment from the 
imprest account including official VAT receipts where 
appropriate. 

b Make adequate arrangements in their office for the safe custody 
of the account including vouchers and any other supporting 
documentation. 

c Produce upon demand by the CFO cash and all vouchers to the 
total value of the imprest account. 

d Record transactions promptly. 

e Reconcile and balance the account at least monthly with 
reconciliation sheets to be signed and retained by the imprest 
holder. 

f Provide the Head of Corporate Finance with a certificate of the 
value of the account held at 31st March each year. 

g Ensure that the imprest is never used to cash personal cheques 
or to make personal loans. 

h  Ensure that the only payments into the account are the 
reimbursement payments and any notes/coinage relating to 
purchases made by a cash advance from the imprest account. 

117



APPENDIX B   

8 
 

i Ensure income due to the Council is collected and banked as 
provided in paragraph 4.7.5 of the Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules and not through an imprest account. 

j On leaving the Council’s employment, ceasing to be entitled to 
hold an imprest advance or no longer requiring an imprest 
advance, account to the Head of Service or Head Teacher for 
the amount advanced to them. 

k A bank imprest account cannot become overdrawn. 

l Submit a claim for reimbursement at least monthly. 

m Notify the Head of Corporate Finance of any new signatories. 

 

4.7.10 Banking Arrangements and Corporate Credit Cards 

4.7.10.1 All arrangements with the Council’s bank concerning the Council’s bank 
accounts and for the ordering and issue of cheques shall be made by, or 
under arrangements approved by, the CFO.  The CFO shall be authorised 
to open and operate such banking accounts, as he or she may consider 
necessary.  This authority shall include the power to give the necessary 
directions to the bank as to signatures for withdrawals.  The CFO shall 
report periodically to the Cabinet or Audit & Governance Committee as to 
the opening or closing of such accounts. 

4.7.10.2 Apart from payments from corporate cards, petty cash, imprest accounts 
or schools’ own local bank accounts, the normal method of payment due 
from the council shall be by BACS or cheque. Direct debit and periodical 
payment arrangements shall require the prior agreement and 
authorisation of the CFO. 

 

4.7.10.3 All cheques and cheque stationery shall be ordered only on the authority 
of the CFO who shall be satisfied that proper arrangements are in place 
for their safe custody.  Where the signature is printed on the cheque by a 
Council system, the signature shall be that of the CFO.  

4.7.10.4 The CFO shall be responsible for authorising the issue of corporate credit 
cards and determining spending limits.  Cardholders are required to 
comply with the guidance issued by the CFO regulating the use of 
corporate credit cards. Purchases must be made in accordance with the 
contract procedure rules. This guidance will include the requirement for 
cardholders to provide the Payments Manager with a receipt and coding 
slip for each item purchased using a credit card within 14 days of the 
monthly card statement being received.  

4.7.10.5 Schools are permitted by the local management of schools regulations to 
operate their own bank account independently of the council. In order to 
take advantage of new ways of purchasing books, supplies and services 
through the internet, schools are permitted by the council to apply for a 
credit card provided the card is issued by a UK bank and approved by the 
office of government commerce. The use of the credit card must be 
approved by the schools governing body and the monthly card statement 

118



APPENDIX B   

9 
 

must be paid in full by a direct debit from the schools imprest bank 
account. Schools are required to comply with the guidance issued by the 
CFO regulating the use of credit cards. 

 

4.7.11 Preventing Financial Irregularities 

4.7.11.1 The CFO will report financial irregularities to the Chief Executive, Cabinet 
and the Audit and Governance Committee. 

4.7.11.2 The CFO, in conjunction with Audit, will determine the scope of any 
internal enquiries or investigations, subject to consultation with the 
relevant member of the Management Board. 

4.7.11.3 The CFO, in consultation with the relevant member of the Management 
Board, will decide whether any matter under investigation should be 
referred for police investigation and take recovery action as appropriate 
on such matters. 

4.7.11.4 The CFO will inform the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer if a 
suspected irregularity occurs involving staff who are his or her 
responsibility. 

4.7.11.5  Directors, Heads of Service and officers will report financial irregularities 
to the CFO and Audit. 

4.7.11.6  Directors, Heads of Service and officers will instigate the Council’s 
disciplinary procedures where the outcome of an audit investigation 
indicates improper behaviour. 

 

4.7.12 Money Laundering  

4.7.12.1 The CFO shall appoint a Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO).  
This officer shall ensure that all staff likely to receive payments from the 
public, businesses or professions are aware of the Authority’s 
responsibilities under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, the Money 
Laundering Regulations 2007 and any other relevant acts and regulations, 
such as the Terrorism Act 2000 and Anti-terrorism, Crime and Security 
Act 2001. 

4.7.12.2 The MLRO, or the Deputy MLRO in the MLRO’s absence, shall receive 
reports from staff about suspicious payments of any value for any purpose 
and payments in cash in excess of £10,000 or €15,000. 

4.7.12.3 The MLRO shall report any instance of suspected money laundering to 
the Serious Organised Crime Agency. 

 

4.7.13 Asset Management 

 Introduction  

4.7.13.1  The Asset Management section of the Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules provides a framework of principles, minimum requirements, levels 

119



APPENDIX B   

10 
 

of authority and delegations to ensure that Herefordshire Council’s asset 
portfolio is managed effectively to achieve maximum value for money.  

  

 

Overarching principles  

4.7.13.3. A set of overarching principles govern the operation of this section of the 
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.  

4.7.13.4 These are:  

 Property 

a All property owned or leased by Herefordshire Council is held 
corporately (including Herefordshire Council-owned schools). 

b The CFO is responsible for ensuring that the occupation of all 
Herefordshire Council property by Directorates is in the interests 
of the Council as a whole.  

c Directorates have discretion to manage the operations within the 
property they occupy in order to promote effective service 
delivery. However, this discretion operates subject to the 
corporate responsibilities of the CFO who has the authority to 
intervene in property matters to protect Herefordshire Council’s 
overall interests. Directorates will not occupy property without 
the prior approval of the CFO. 

d Resolution of disputes on property matters is through the Chief 
Executive.  

e  All property transactions should be referred to the CFO who 
shall seek the comments of all interested parties, including 
relevant Cabinet Members, Directorates and local Members, 
before the decision is taken to proceed. All decisions must be 
taken in accordance with the delegations set out in this section 
of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and the decision 
making procedures set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 General 

a Capital investment on assets must be linked to priorities 
identified through the corporate planning process using a clear 
and objective prioritisation policy. 

b Capital investment must be directed to obtain maximum benefit 
from available resources, taking account of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

c Revenue implications of capital investment must be considered 
and spend to save funding may be available to pump prime 
investment that can demonstrate a clear financial pay back. 

 Acquisitions and improvements to assets 

120



APPENDIX B   

11 
 

4.7.13.5 Before an asset is acquired or improved the need for investment must be 
clearly identified and appraised. 

4.7.13.6 Prior to allocation of resources a business case must be prepared and 
approved by the relevant Director and submitted to the Capital Strategy 
Working Group (CSWG).  

4.7.13.7 The CSWG will rank and score business cases based on clear criteria 
linked to priorities, including affordability using whole life costing, 
sustainability and value for money. 

4.7.13.8 The CFO will present the scored business case to the Management 
Board. Where the acquisition is part of the annual budget setting process 
the Management Board will make recommendations to Cabinet for 
inclusion in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Where the proposal is 
outside of the budget setting process the approval will follow the council’s 
virement procedures.  

4.7.13.9 The use of compulsory purchase powers must be approved by Cabinet. 

4.7.13.10 Where appropriate, local members will be kept informed and views sought 
as outlined in paragraph 4.7.13.4. 

4.7.13.11 The CFO may action acquisitions for highway purposes provided the 
scheme is in an approved programme or the property concerned has as a 
consequence been blighted. 

4.7.13.12 The CFO shall ensure that acquisitions for highways purposes that are 
part of a scheme that is not in an approved programme is referred for 
formal decision in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and 
Financial Procedure Rules.  

4.7.13.13 Where the value of highways land to be acquired is less than £5,000 this 
may be approved by the Director of Economy, Communities and 
Corporate or any officer nominated to act on his/her behalf providing that 
there is a budget to cover the acquisition. 

 Property 

4.7.13.14  Property is to be used efficiently, effectively and economically with due 
regard to legislative requirements.  When any property is no longer 
required for operational purposes it is to be formally declared surplus, at 
which point its management reverts to the CFO.  The budgetary 
implications of this are to be identified and reported to the Cabinet 
Member responsible for Resources.  

4.7.13.15 The occupation and use of property by a Directorate is subject to the CFO 
responsibility for approving all material changes to property, including 
change of use, appropriations, granting/taking of interests, alterations or 
additions.  Such changes must be reported to the Head of Corporate 
Finance for correct accounting treatment and apportionment of charges.  

4.7.13.16 The CFO has the authority to undertake reviews of the property portfolio, 
or parts of it, to determine if it is optimised in terms of its utilisation, cost 
and value and within this to challenge the retention or use of existing 
properties occupied by Directorates.  

121



APPENDIX B   

12 
 

 Disposals 

4.7.13.17  Land, property and any other assets which are surplus to operational 
need are either to be reallocated to meet alternative needs or disposed of 
in line with statutory requirements and/or Herefordshire Council policies.  

4.7.13.18  Directorates shall notify the CFO of:  

a  Any property (or part) that is:  

• Vacant. 

• Held against a future operational need. 

• Not used for the principal purpose for which it is held. 

• Likely to be surplus to requirements (with estimated 
timescale).  

b Any operational issues associated with such property (e.g. 
longer-term requirements). 

c  Any statutory/process issues relevant to its disposal (e.g. 
prescribed consultation processes, reference to the Secretary of 
State, etc.). 

d  Any other issues which need to be considered prior to disposal. 

4.7.13.19  The CFO may identify any property (or part) that is considered, or could 
be made, surplus to operational requirements.  

 Treatment of Capital Receipts  

4.7.13.20 In general capital receipts from disposals are deemed to be a corporate 
capital resource available for allocation in line with corporate priorities, 
excluding schools. 

4.7.13.21 Use of capital receipts are subject to the following rules: 

a Overspending on schemes dependent on receipts must be 
contained within the budget allocated to the directorate 
concerned. 

b Capital schemes dependent on receipts are included in the 
Capital Programme only after full vetting and valuation by 
CSWG and ultimate approval by Cabinet or as appropriate within 
the virement rules. 

c  All dependencies, assumptions and risks to be clearly identified 
by the project sponsor leading to prudent valuation adopted in 
project sign-off. 

d Scheme assumptions about the quantum, timing and phasing of 
receipts to be explicit and receipts cannot generally be “counted” 
until the sale is complete. 

122



APPENDIX B   

13 
 

e Monitoring shall be undertaken by CSWG with Property Services 
using a traffic light system to assess the level of risk around the 
receipts. 

  Financial Procedure Rules 

4.7.13.22 All of the protocols set out in the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
the Functions Scheme (Part3) and officer Schemes of Delegation must be 
adhered to. No transaction should be approved unless specific budgetary 
provision is identified, except where the purchase is approved under the 
authority given in paragraph 4.7.3.  

 Delegation to Officers  

4.7.13.23  Subject to the consultation and approval provisions set out in this section 
of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules, the CFO is authorised to: 

a Determine and settle the disposal of any land or property, or an 
interest in land or property.  

b Determine and settle the terms of a lease (taken or granted) for 
any land or property.  

4.7.13.24 As provided by arrangements made in the Constitution for the discharge 
of executive functions, the Chief Executive may exercise any power 
delegated under this section of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules to 
the CFO.  The CFO may delegate his/her powers in writing to other 
officers.  

 

4.7.14 Audit 

4.7.14.1 The CFO has responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective 
internal audit service. This service has been delegated to the South West 
Audit Partnership (SWAP). 

4.7.14.2 The CFO shall maintain strategic and annual audit plans that take 
account of the relative risks of the activities involved.  He/she shall liaise 
with the Management Board on the audit strategy and plan.   

4.7.14.3 SWAP is responsible for providing the Audit & Governance Committee 
with regular assurance reports that highlight any areas of concern 
regarding the effectiveness or level of compliance with agreed systems of 
internal control. 

4.7.14.4 SWAP shall provide the Chairman of Audit & Governance Committee 
with a copy of audit review reports with an unsound, unsatisfactory or 
marginal audit opinion.  The Council’s procedures for maintaining 
confidentiality shall apply. 

4.7.14.5 SWAP shall submit an annual report to the Audit and Governance 
Committee detailing internal audit activity for the previous year and 
reporting significant findings and areas of concern. 

4.7.14.6 SWAP shall provide an annual summary to the Leader, Chairman of Audit 
and Governance Committee and relevant Cabinet Member(s) of audit 
review reports with a satisfactory or good audit opinion. 

123



APPENDIX B   

14 
 

4.7.14.7 The CFO is responsible for producing an Annual Governance Statement 
for inclusion with the annual Statement of Accounts based on assurances 
provided by SWAP. 

4.7.14.8 Officers shall ensure that internal and external auditors are provided with: 

a Access at reasonable times to premises or land used by the 
Council. 

b Access at reasonable times to any employee or employees. 

c Access to all assets, records, documents, correspondence and 
control systems relating to any matter or business of the Council. 

d Any information and explanation considered necessary 
concerning any matter under examination. 

4.7.14.9 Officers must account for cash, stores or any other Council property 
under their control and produce such items for inspection if required by 
SWAP. 

4.7.14.10 Officers are required to consider and respond to audit reports and audit 
recommendations within two weeks. 

4.7.14.11 Officers must ensure that any agreed actions arising from audit 
recommendations are carried out in a timely and efficient manner. 

4.7.14.12 Where an appropriate response to audit recommendations has not been 
made within the agreed period, the CFO shall refer the matter to the 
Chief Executive and/or the Audit and Governance Committee. 

4.7.14.13 Officers are responsible for notifying the CFO or SWAP immediately in 
writing/electronic medium of any suspected or alleged fraud, theft, 
irregularity, improper use or misappropriation of Council property or 
resources.  Pending investigation, all necessary steps should be taken to 
prevent further loss and secure records and documents against removal, 
destruction or alterations. 

4.7.14.14 The CFO is to investigate promptly any apparent, suspected or reported 
irregularity or fraud he/she becomes aware of.  He/she shall report 
his/her findings to the Chief Executive to discuss and agree appropriate 
legal proceedings and disciplinary action, consulting with the relevant 
member(s) of the Management Board as appropriate. 

4.7.14.15 Officers are responsible for ensuring that new systems for maintaining 
financial records, or records of assets, or changes to such systems are 
discussed and agreed with the CFO prior to implementation. 

4.7.14.16 Officers are responsible for ensuring that all paperwork and systems are 
up to date, kept securely and are made available for inspection by audit. 

4.7.14.17 Officers shall ensure that all fundamental systems and other financial 
systems are reconciled on a monthly basis and that records are up to 
date and available for audit inspection when required. 

 

4.7.15 Revenue Budget Management 

124



APPENDIX B   

15 
 

4.7.15.1 The Head of Corporate Finance shall prepare and review annually a 
three-year financial plan and strategy to provide an estimate of resources 
available to the Council and identify budget pressures. 

4.7.15.2 Proposed budgets over periods of one year or longer shall be prepared by 
Directors, in consultation with the CFO, for submission through the 
Cabinet to the Council. 

4.7.15.3 Directors shall evaluate the financial implications of any new policy option, 
initiative or major project in conjunction with the CFO and Head of 
Corporate Finance prior to a report to the Cabinet and/or Council. 

4.7.15.4 The Cabinet shall recommend an annual budget to Council that includes 
the following: 

a Annual capital and revenue budget.  

b Proposed contingencies, general reserves and specific reserves. 

c Statutory Council tax calculations; 

d Treasury management policy and borrowing limits. 

e The CFO statutory declaration on budget setting. 

f Virement limits. 

g Scale of fees and charges. 

4.7.15.5 Budget management ensures that resources allocated by Members are 
used for their intended purposes and that these resources are properly 
accounted for.  Budgetary control is a continual process enabling the 
Council to review and adjust its budget targets during the financial year.  
It also provides the mechanism to call to account managers responsible 
for defined elements of the budget. 

4.7.15.6 The structure and format of the revenue budget should be sufficient to 
permit effective financial management.   

4.7.15.7 The overall budget setting process for both revenue and capital is 
controlled by the Head of Corporate Finance. 

4.7.15.8 Budgets will be distributed to budget holders for consultation. Budget 
holders will work with finance staff to prepare detailed income and 
expenditure estimates for the forthcoming year taking into account known 
service level changes, contractual commitments and financial constraints 

4.7.15.9 Budget holders should provide information on any legislative changes, 
statutory duties, demographic changes, which impact upon service trends 
and activity levels to inform the financial planning and budget setting 
process.  

 

4.7.16 Capital Budget Management 

4.7.16.1 The Cabinet shall, following the submission of proposals by the 
Management Board, recommend to Council: 

125



APPENDIX B   

16 
 

a A capital programme for each financial year. 

b A future indication of a capital programme over a three-year period. 

c The recommended funding method for each capital project 
(including the use of Prudential Borrowing, capital receipts, revenue 
or other financing methods). 

4.7.16.2 All capital spending proposals should be subject to approval through the 
Council’s capital planning processes. 

4.7.16.3 Following the approval of a capital programme, and subject to any 
conditions specified in that programme, or specified by the relevant 
Cabinet Member, the relevant Director shall take all appropriate action to 
carry into effect the approved schemes, within the budget and timescale 
agreed in the capital programme.  Any material variation in cost or 
timescale shall be reported to the Cabinet.  

4.7.16.4 If a project has not started within a specified timeframe it may need to be 
confirmed for it to go ahead.  

4.7.16.5 Any report for a project or policy of a capital nature shall include details of: 

a The estimated cost of the proposal. 

b Any phasing of the capital expenditure. 

c The proposed method of financing, whether by loan, revenue or 
otherwise. 

d The effect on the revenue estimates in the first and subsequent 
years. 

e The additional staff and grades required both initially and 
ultimately. 

f An assessment and measurement of the need for the scheme 
and the benefits it will produce. 

g A technical and financial appraisal of the alternative approaches 
to meeting the need. 

4.7.16.6 In the first instance, in-year capital requirements will be presented to the 
CSWG via a business case for ranking and scoring. 

 

4.7.17 Budgetary Control 

4.7.17.1 Each Director shall be responsible for monitoring the revenue and any 
capital budget relevant to his/her Directorate to ensure that such budgets 
are properly spent and not exceeded. 

4.7.17.2 Any new proposal or variation which would materially affect the finances 
of the council shall require approval by the Cabinet. Any budget 
virements must comply with the council’s scheme of budget virement 
(section 4.7.18) 

126



APPENDIX B   

17 
 

4.7.17.3 The council operates within an overall annual cash limit. As a result all 
individual budgets are cash limited. Each budget holder is required to 
operate within the cash limit. 

4.7.17.4 Directors shall monitor spend and income against budgets monthly and 
ensure, so far as practicable, that expenditure in excess of their net 
approved budgets is not incurred without prior approval.  If actual income 
is expected to be below budget, this must also be actively managed. 

4.7.17.5 If it appears to a Director that his/her overall cash limited budget may be 
exceeded, he/she shall report the details as soon as practicable to the 
Chief Executive, the CFO and to the Cabinet Member.  The relevant 
Cabinet Member shall then report on the matter to the Cabinet. 

4.7.17.6 Action plans must be put in place by each Directorate at an early stage in 
the financial year in order to manage potential overspendings (e.g. due to 
additional spending or below target income). Directors must submit their 
recovery plans to the Chief Executive and the CFO. Where appropriate 
the additional spending or below target income should be met by 
virements from other elements of the Directorate budgets.  All Directors 
are required to manage expenditure within the agreed budget for their 
areas of responsibility.  Compliance with this requirement will be 
dependent upon the earliest possible implementation of such action plans 
and rigorous supervision to achieve the required outcome. 

4.7.17.7 It is the duty of Directors to ensure that responsibility for budgetary 
control is allocated to appropriate officers in their Directorates. Directors 
shall nominate a budget manager for each cost centre. As a general 
principle budget responsibility should be aligned as closely as possible to 
the decision-making processes that commits expenditure. 

4.7.17.8 Budget Managers are accountable for their budgets and the level of 
service to be delivered and must understand their financial 
responsibilities. Budget Managers should be responsible only for income 
and expenditure that they can influence. 

4.7.17.9 Budget managers are required to; 

a Follow an approved certification process for all expenditure. 

b Ensure that income and expenditure are properly recorded and 
accounted for. 

c Ensure that expenditure is committed only against an approved 
budget head. 

d Monitor performance levels/levels of service in conjunction with 
the budget and necessary action is taken to align service outputs 
and budget. 

e Monitor and control the gross expenditure budget position. 

f Investigate and report significant variances from approved 
budgets. 

4.7.17.10 The CFO shall establish an appropriate framework of budgetary control. 

127



APPENDIX B   

18 
 

4.7.17.11  The CFO shall provide Directors, budget holders and Cabinet Members 
with monthly financial management information reports. 

4.7.17.12 The CFO shall ensure that each Director has available timely information 
on receipts and payments on each budget which is sufficiently detailed to 
enable managers to fulfil their budgetary responsibilities. 

4.7.17.13 The Head of Corporate Finance shall provide financial management 
training courses that all budget managers must attend.  

 

4.7.18 Virement 

4.7.18.1 The Council operates a scheme of budget virement. This enables budget 
holders to manage budgets with a degree of flexibility within the overall 
policy framework determined by the Council. 

4.7.18.2 Directors have authority to vire expenditure between individual budget 
heads in accordance with the virement policy. 

4.7.18.3 Key controls for the scheme of virement are: 

a That it is administered by the CFO within guidelines set by 
Council.  Any variation from this scheme requires the approval of 
Council. 

b That the overall budget is agreed by Cabinet and approved by 
Council.  Directors and budget holders are therefore authorised 
to incur expenditure in accordance with those estimates.  The 
rules below cover virement, that is switching resources between 
budget heads.  For the purposes of these Rules a budget head 
is considered to be the standard service sub-division as defined 
by CIPFA.  The scheme applies equally to a reduction in income 
as to an increase in expenditure. 

4.7.18.4 All virements below £150,000 must be approved by the Head of 
Corporate Finance in consultation with the relevant Head of Service or 
Director.  All virements above £150,000 must be approved by the CFO in 
consultation with the relevant Director. All virements above £150,000 
must also be approved by the portfolio Cabinet Member.  All virements of 
above £150,000 shall be reported in the budget monitoring report 
provided to Cabinet.  

4.7.18.5 The prior approval of the Cabinet is required to any virement of £25,000 
or more where it is proposed to: 

a Vire between budgets of different portfolio Cabinet Members. 

b Vire between budgets managed by different Corporate Directors. 

4.7.18.6 Virement which is likely to impact on the level of service activity of another 
Director should be implemented only after consultation with the relevant 
Director. 

 

4.7.19 Spend to Save  

128



APPENDIX B   

19 
 

4.7.19.1 The Capital and Asset Management Strategy aims to encourage 
innovation and allows officers to draw down funding to pump prime 
creative projects that demonstrate ‘spend to save/mitigate’ and funding is 
available throughout the year. 

4.7.19.2 The council operates a Spend to Save scheme for budget holders, who 
want to either pump prime a service initiative, purchase equipment or 
service and/or realign their current service model, all of which must 
generate a revenue saving year on year. 

4.7.19.3 Applications for funding accompanied by a Business Case shall be 
submitted to the Head of Corporate Finance. 

 

4.7.20 Insurance and Risk Management  

4.7.20.1 Further advice on this section of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules 
can be obtained from the Head of Corporate Finance or the Senior 
Finance Manager-Schools (Hoople Ltd). 

4.7.20.2 All organisations, whether they are in the private or public sector, face 
risks to people, property and continued operations.  Risk is defined as the 
chance or possibility of loss, damage or injury caused by an unwanted or 
uncertain action or event.  Risk management is the planned and 
systematic approach to the identification, evaluation and control of risk. 

4.7.20.3 Insurance has been the traditional means of protecting against loss, but 
this cannot be seen as the complete answer.  By reducing or even 
preventing the incidence of losses (whether they result from crime or 
accident), the Council shall benefit from reduced costs of providing 
insurance cover and shall also avoid the disruption and wasted time 
caused by losses and insurance claims. 

4.7.20.4 It is the overall responsibility of the Cabinet to approve the authority’s Risk 
Management Strategy and to promote a culture of risk management 
awareness through the Council.  Monitoring of and reporting on the 
effectiveness of the Strategy is an essential part of the process. 

4.7.20.5 The key controls for risk management and insurance are: 

a Robust systems are in place to identify, assess, prevent or 
contain significant operational risks on an integrated basis and 
these systems are promoted throughout the organisation. 

b Acceptable levels of retained risk are identified and evaluated 
and arrangements are in place for their funding, either by 
internal provision or external insurance as appropriate. 

c Managers know that they are responsible for managing relevant 
risks and are provided with appropriate and timely information on 
claims experience and risk management initiatives relating to 
their areas of responsibility. 

d Procedures are in place to investigate and process claims within 
required timescales. 

129



APPENDIX B   

20 
 

e A monitoring process is in place to review regularly the 
effectiveness of risk reduction strategies and the operation of 
these controls.  The risk management process should be 
conducted on a continuing basis. 

4.7.20.6 The CFO shall effect all insurance cover and negotiate all claims in 
consultation with the relevant Monitoring Officer where appropriate. 

4.7.20.7 Directors shall give prompt notification to the CFO of all new risks, 
properties, vehicles and other assets that are required to be insured or 
any alterations affecting existing insurances. 

4.7.20.8 Directors shall promptly notify the CFO in writing of any actual or potential 
loss, liability or damage or any event likely to lead to an insurance claim 
by or against the Council. 

 

4.7.21 Loans, Leasing and Investments 

4.7.21.1 The CFO shall report to Cabinet, on an annual basis, with 
recommendations to Council to determine the limits for the borrowing of 
monies. 

4.7.21.2 The CFO shall borrow as necessary to finance the approved capital 
programme and deal with all matters in connection with the raising or 
repayment of loans and is authorised to borrow for meeting expenses 
pending the receipt of revenues. 

4.7.21.3 All investments and all borrowing shall be made in the name of the 
Council  

4.7.21.4 Directors shall not enter into financial leasing arrangements except with 
the consent of the CFO. Before entering into any lease agreement 
Directors shall submit details to the Corporate Finance Team to enable a 
financial appraisal to be undertaken, including alternative financing 
options and implications for accounting treatment. 

4.7.21.5 Loans to third parties will only be made in exceptional circumstances. 

4.7.21.6 The CFO shall arrange the borrowing and investment activities of the 
Council in such a manner as to comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management and the Authority’s Treasury Management 
Policy Statement. 

4.7.21.7 The CFO shall prepare an annual strategy with regard to investments, 
borrowing and the repayment of external debt.  These are set out in the 
Treasury Management Strategy approved by full council before the start 
of the new financial year. 

4.7.21.8 The Treasury Management Strategy will include the following: 

• Prospects for the economy and for interest rates; 

• Borrowing requirement and strategy; 

• Investment policy and strategy; 

130



APPENDIX B   

21 
 

• MRP Statement; 

• Prudential Indicators for the next three years providing assurance 
that the council’s capital plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable; and 

• The Treasury Management Policy Statement. 

4.7.21.9 In addition, Cabinet will receive an annual report after the end of the 
financial year and will recommend to Full Council for approval. 

4.7.21.10 Cabinet will also receive quarterly treasury management reports. 

 

4.7.22 Trust Funds 

4.7.22.1 The CFO shall: 

a Arrange for all trust funds to be held wherever possible in the 
name of the Authority.  All officers acting as trustees by virtue of 
their official position shall deposit securities, etc relating to the 
trust with the CFO unless the deed otherwise provides. 

b Arrange where funds are held on behalf of third parties for their 
secure administration approved by the CFO and to maintain 
written records of all transactions. 

c Ensure that trust funds are operated within any relevant 
legislation and the specific requirement for each trust. 

 

4.7.23 Inventories and Stocks And Stores 

4.7.23.1 Further advice can be found in the council’s ‘Guideline for Inventories 
Stocks and Stores’. 

4.7.23.2 The CFO shall: 

a Advise on the form, layout and content of inventory records to be 
maintained by the Council. 

b Advise on the arrangements for the care and custody of stocks 
and stores in Directorates. 

4.7.23.3 Directors shall: 

a Maintain inventories in a form approved by the CFO to 
adequately record and describe all furniture, fittings and 
equipment, plant and machinery under their control. 

b Carry out an annual check of all items on the inventory in order 
to verify location, review condition and to take action in relation 
to surpluses or deficiencies, annotating the inventory 
accordingly. 

c Ensure attractive and portable items, such as computers, 
cameras and video recorders are identified with security 

131



APPENDIX B   

22 
 

markings as belonging to the Council and appropriately 
controlled and secured. 

d Make sure that property is only used in the course of the 
Council’s business unless the Director concerned has given 
permission otherwise. 

e Directors have discretion to write off redundant equipment up to 
the value of £5,000, but must seek Cabinet Member approval for 
write-offs in excess of £5,000.  Directors shall seek independent 
quotations where it is not immediately obvious what the market 
value of the redundant item is. 

f Make arrangements for the care, custody and recording of 
stocks and stores in Directorates. 

g Ensure that assets are identified, their location recorded and that 
they are appropriately marked and insured. 

h Ensure stocks are maintained at reasonable levels and subject 
to a regular independent physical check.  All discrepancies 
should be investigated and pursued to a satisfactory conclusion. 

i Write-off discrepancies of up to £5,000 and seek advice from 
Audit on discrepancies above this limit. 

j Authorise write-off and disposal of redundant stocks and 
equipment by competitive quotations or auction unless, following 
consultation with the CFO, it is decided otherwise in a particular 
case. 

k Seek approval from the CFO and Cabinet Member to the write-
off of redundant stocks and stores valued in excess of £5,000. 

l Record the reasons for the chosen method of disposing of 
redundant stocks and equipment if not by competitive quotation 
or auction. 

 

4.7.24 Working for Third Parties and Shared Services  

4.7.24.1 Current legislation enables the Council to provide a range of services to 
certain other bodies.  Such work may enable the unit to maintain 
economies of scale and existing expertise.  Arrangements must be in 
place to ensure that any risk associated with this work is minimised. 

4.7.24.2 All proposals to work for a third party shall be properly costed in 
accordance with guidance provided by the CFO. Financial advice should 
be obtained from the Head of Corporate Finance on the cost of providing 
the service. 

4.7.24.3 All decisions to work for a third party shall be made in accordance with the 
Council’s formal decision making processes as set out in the Scheme of 
Delegation. Formal approval in line with the Council’s Functions Scheme 
must be obtained before any negotiations to work for third parties are 
concluded. 

132



APPENDIX B   

23 
 

4.7.24.4 Officers must obtain legal advice on the implications of providing the 
proposed service to the third party. All contracts for providing work for a 
third party shall be drawn up using guidance provided by the Assistant 
Director Governance. 

4.7.24.5 Officers shall ensure that: 

a All contracts are properly documented and a register of all 
contracts to supply goods and services to third parties is 
maintained by each Directorate. 

b Appropriate identity checks on the third party are carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s anti money laundering policy and 
guidance. 

c Appropriate insurance arrangements are in place for the third 
party work. 

d The Council is not put at any risk of bad debts as a result of any 
third party work  

e Wherever possible, payment is received in advance of the 
delivery of the service under a third party contract. 

 

133



APPENDIX B   

24 
 

Appendix A 

 

Responsibilities under the Financial Procedure Rules 

This appendix provides details of responsibilities under the Financial Procedure 
Rules. It lists in a single place responsibilities that would otherwise be repeated in 
various sections of the Financial Procedure Rules. It confirms the overall 
responsibilities of the Council’s CFO, the Cabinet and members of the Management 
Board within the Financial Procedure Rules. 

 

A1 Cabinet Responsibilities 

A1.1 Cabinet is responsible for overseeing all aspects of the Council’s finances.  
Day to day responsibility for the Council’s finances rests with Directors and 
their managers as set out in these Financial Procedure Rules. 

A1.2 Each Cabinet Member shall oversee compliance with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules for those functions within their terms of reference.  Each 
Director is responsible for ensuring those functions within their terms of 
reference operate within the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.   

 

A2 Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Responsibilities 

A2.1 The CFO has been appointed under Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 as the officer with responsibility for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs. 

A2.2 Reference in these Financial Procedure Rules to the CFO shall be taken to 
include any officer nominated by the CFO to act on his/her behalf.  

A2.3 The CFO shall be entitled to attend a meeting of any body on which 
Members are represented where matters affecting the financial affairs of the 
Council are being discussed. 

A2.4 The CFO, under the general direction of Cabinet, is responsible for 
determining the basis for all accounting procedures and financial records for 
the Council and for exercising a check over all financial matters. 

A2.5 The CFO is responsible for maintaining a continuous review of the Financial 
Procedure Rules and advising the Council of any additions or changes 
necessary. 

A2.6 The CFO is responsible for reporting, where appropriate, breaches of the 
Financial Procedure Rules or any other element of the Constitution that 
relates to the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs to the 
Council and/or Cabinet. 

A2.7 The CFO is responsible for issuing advice and guidance to underpin the 
Financial Procedure Rules. 

A2.8 The CFO is responsible for maintaining adequate and effective audit 
arrangements for the Council and for ensuring that Audit Services complies 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

A2.9 The CFO is responsible for ensuring, in conjunction with the relevant 
member of the Management Board, that the Council’s disciplinary 
procedures are followed where the outcome of an audit or other 
investigation indicates fraud or irregularity. 

134



APPENDIX B   

25 
 

A2.10 The CFO is responsible for ensuring that any case of fraud or loss or 
financial irregularity or bribery or corruption discovered or suspected to exist 
which involves the Council’s interest shall be dealt with in accordance with 
the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption policy. 

A2.11 The CFO is responsible for appointing senior officers to be the Council’s 
Money Laundering Reporting Officer and deputy to the Council’s Money 
Laundering Reporting Officer. 

A2.12 The CFO has overall responsibility for making payments on behalf of the 
Council, although this will be carried out by Hoople Ltd. 

A2.13 The CFO has overall responsibility for the Council’s income and collection 
functions although this will be carried out by Hoople Ltd who will ensure the 
effective collection and recording of all monies due to the Council. 

A2.14 The CFO is responsible for making payments to employees, former 
employees and Members on behalf of the Council although this will be 
carried out by Hoople Ltd. 

 

A3 Management Board Responsibilities 

A3.1 Members of the Management Board are responsible for ensuring that all 
employees are aware of the content of the Financial Procedure Rules and 
other internal regulatory documents and that they are complied with. 

A3.2 Members of the Management Board are responsible for consulting with the 
CFO on any matter within their area of responsibility that is liable to 
materially affect the finances of the Council before any provisional or other 
commitment is incurred or before reporting the matter to a Cabinet Member. 

A3.3 Members of the Management Board are responsible for supplying the CFO 
with all information necessary for the proper administration of the Council’s 
affairs. 

A3.4 Members of the Management Board shall allow the CFO and his/her 
authorised representatives access to all documents and records on demand. 

A3.5 Members of the Management Board shall maintain a sound system of 
internal control. 

A3.6 Members of the Management Board are responsible for ensuring those 
functions within their terms of reference operate within the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules. 

A3.7 Members of the Management Board are responsible for informing Cabinet 
Members promptly if the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules are not being 
complied with. 

135



APPENDIX B   

26 
 

         Appendix B  

Glossary of terms 

In the Financial Procedure Rules the words and phrases in the left hand column have 
the meaning given in the right hand column; 

 

Asset Something the council owns that has value, such as premises, 
vehicles, equipment or cash. 

Audit A specialist team that examines, evaluates and reports on the 
adequacy of internal control systems. 

Budget A statement of the Authority’s plans for revenue and capital 
expenditure and income over a specified period of time. 

Capital Spending, usually on major assets like a building, where the 
benefit of the asset lasts for more than one year.  

Capital 
Programme 

A budget generally covering a 3-5 year period relating to items 
of capital expenditure. 

Capital receipts Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, such as land or 
buildings. 

Cash Limit  The most that can be spent in an area in one year.  

CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is 
the leading professional accountancy body for public services in 
the UK. CIPFA has responsibility for setting good practice 
accounting standards for local government. 

Gross Expenditure The total cost of providing the Council's services before taking 
into account income from Government grants and Fees and 
Charges for services. 

Imprests  Bank and Petty cash floats. 

Internal Control The systems of control that help ensure the Council's objectives 
are achieved in an economical, efficient and effective way and 
consistent with safeguarding the Council's assets. 

Inventory  A list of equipment and furniture. 

 

Money Laundering 

 

The practice of engaging in financial transactions in order to 
conceal the identity, source, and/or destination of money.  

Officer A person employed or appointed as a member of staff. 

Revenue budget Budget relating to the day-to-day expenses associated with the 
provision of services. 

Treasury 
Management 

Management of the Council’s Cash Balances on a daily basis, 
to obtain the best return while maintaining an acceptable level 
of risk. 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 

A document stating how the Council plans to borrow and 
optimise its return on its cash and investments in the coming 
financial year whilst ensuring the over-riding criterion of security 

136



APPENDIX B   

27 
 

 of public money. 

Virement Transfers of budgets between one area and another. Virements 
are subject to strict controls. 

 

Clarification of Post titles 

Chief Executive The Council’s Head of Paid Service 

Director of Resources The Council’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or 
Section 151 officer 

Assistant Director Governance The Council’s Monitoring officer 

Head of Corporate Finance The Council’s Deputy Section 151 officer 

 

137



138



APPENDIX A 

 

 Section 6 - Contracts Procedure Rules  

          4.6.1  Introduction  

4.6.1.1  The primary objective of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules is to ensure that all 
contracts for works, goods and services are entered into in a manner that secures value 
for money and is demonstrably free from impropriety.  

          4.6.1.2  The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules also ensure that:  

a  contract selection and award procedures are conducted fairly, in a properly 
regularised manner and in accordance with relevant legal requirements  

b  strategic service delivery and supply partners are used wherever possible to 
ensure value for money is obtained and the cost to procure is minimised  

c  local firms are employed whenever they offer as good value for money as 
other firms and their selection is in accordance with the Council’s legal 
obligations, for example in relation to European procurement rules  

d  the Council’s strategic policies are taken into account, for example in 
promoting the economic development of Herefordshire and in relation to 
protecting the environment  

e  alternative methods of procurement compatible with the objectives of the 
Contract Procedure Rules have been considered  

f  procurement procedures are kept under review in order to ensure continuous 
improvements to services and provide best value to the community of 
Herefordshire  

4.6.1.3  The Director for Economy Communities and Corporate has overall responsibility for the 
preparation of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. The Head of Commercial 
Services appointed by the Director for Economy, Communities and Corporate has 
delegated responsibility for implementing the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.    

4.6.1.4  The Head of Commercial Services works very closely with the Solicitor to the Council due 
to the significant legal issues involved in contracting and procurement activity.    

4.6.1.5  It should be noted that the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules form part of the Council’s 
Constitution and are to be read in conjunction with other sections of the Constitution in 
particular: 

Part 3 – The Functions Scheme 

Part 4 – Section 3 - The Budget and Policy Framework Rules  

Part 4 – Section 7- Financial Procedure Rules.  

4.6.1.6  Wherever it is mutually advantageous to do so, the Council should seek to conduct 
procurements in collaboration with partner organisations. It must be noted that each 
partner will need to comply with their own Contract Rules, which may have key 
differences to the Council Rules – for example, the European Procurement Directive 
features different financial thresholds in respect to Health Authorities and Local 
Authorities. In the event that contracts are to be established which are applicable to two 
or more partners the Contract Rules of each partner must be adhered to, and it is 

139



APPENDIX A 

 

possible that separate contractual documents will have to be established for each partner 
as they are separate legal entities. Officers must ensure the Rules and Governance 
procedures of each partner are followed throughout the procurement process. Where 
costs are to be shared between collaborating authorities it is advised that a formal 
agreement detailing such arrangements is drawn up between the partners. The Legal 
Services Team can provide assistance.  

4.6.1.7  It should also be noted that failure to observe the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
could lead to disciplinary action.  

4.6.1.8      All council contracts shall contain provisions to this effect. All financial limits outlined in this 
document exclude Value Added Tax (VAT).  

 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT  

4.6.2  Declarations of Interest  

4.6.2.1  Members and Officers must ensure that they comply with the provisions of the relevant 
Code of Conduct including on the Declaration and Registration of Interests and the 
Disclosure of Financial Interest requirements in Part 5 (sections 1 and 13) of the 
Constitution.  

4.6.3  Gifts and Hospitality  

4.6.3.1  Any offer of gift, favour or hospitality made by any person or firm doing or seeking to do 
business with the Council must be treated with extreme caution.  

4.6.3.2  Any such offers must be noted on the appropriate form and reported to the Solicitor to 
the Council who shall maintain and make available to the Council’s internal and external 
auditors a register of such matters.  

4.6.3.3  Acceptance of gifts and hospitality must be in accordance with the Council’s Code on 
such matters (Part 5 section 9).  

           4.6.4  Honesty  

4.6.4.1  All Members must follow the Councillor Code of Conduct (Part 5 section 1).  

           4.6.4.2  All employees must follow the Employee Code of Conduct (Part 5 section 13).  

4.6.4.3  All officers must make sure that employees involved in an in-house tender for a contract 
submission do not take part in the preparation of tender documentation or the decision on 
the award of such a contract.  

 OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES  

          4.6.5  Chief Executive’s Responsibilities  

4.6.5.1  The Chief Executive is responsible for resolving issues concerning the operation of the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, seeking advice as necessary from the Director for 
Economy Communities and Corporate and the Solicitor to the Council.  

4.6.6  Directors’ Responsibilities  

 
           4.6.6.1  All Directors are responsible for:  

140



APPENDIX A 

 

a. monitoring compliance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in relation to 
contracts funded by their Directorate budget  

b. appointing Contract Management Representatives (paragraph 4.6.8) and 
ensuring they support them in their role and obtain regular briefings from them  

c. appointing a senior member of staff to the Commercial Services Team 
(paragraph 4.6.9) 

d. bringing the provisions of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to the 
attention of their staff  

e. ensuring that the contracts within their Directorate are legal, comply with 
Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules (Part 4 section 7) 
and protect the Council’s interests fully  

f. ensuring that the Council’s Disclosure and Barring Service policies and 
procedures are followed.  

4.6.6.2  The Director for Economy Communities and Corporate has overall responsibility for the 
preparation and review of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules but must do so in 
agreement with the Solicitor to the Council.  

4.6.7  Solicitor to the Council’s Responsibilities  

4.6.7.1  The Solicitor to the Council is responsible for:  

a  providing legal advice and guidance to Members and officers on the operation of 
the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and all contracting and procurement 
activity  

b  working with the Director for Economy Communities and Corporate on the 
preparation and review of the Contract Procedure Rules  

c   assisting the Chief Executive with the resolution of questions regarding the 
interpretation of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules  

d  advising on the preparation of contract documentation  

e  maintaining a Contract Procedures Exemption Register  

f informing relevant officers of any information received that calls into question the 
suitability of a contractor, consultant, agency or any other person carrying out 
work for the Council.  

          4.6.8   Contract Management Representatives’ Responsibilities  

4.6.8.1  Directors shall appoint one or more Contract Management Representative(s) to take 
responsibility for contracts with an estimated total value (excluding VAT) in excess of 
£10,001. The Contract Management Representative will be responsible for 
maintaining and providing timely information regarding the contracts register to the 
Commercial Services Team. 

4.6.8.2  Contract Management Representatives are responsible for liaising fully with the 
Commercial Services Team and Legal Services on all matters relating to contracting 
and procurement.  

4.6.8.3   Contract Management Representatives are responsible for agreeing exemptions 
from the formal tendering procedures with the Head of Commercial Services and the 

141



APPENDIX A 

 

Solicitor to the Council. All exemptions are to be approved in writing and reported in 
line with the requirements of 4.6.18 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  

4.6.8.4  Contract Management Representatives are responsible for liaising with officers 
administering contracts regarding any reports concerning failures by contractors to 
comply with contractual obligations or otherwise satisfactorily complete work.  

4.6.8.5  Contract Management Representatives are responsible for advising the Head of 
Commercial Services and the Solicitor to the Council of any concerns they receive 
regarding the suitability of a supplier to carry out work for the Council.  

           4.6.8.6    Contract Management Representatives are responsible for maintaining records of the:  

a  contracts awarded including the nature and value of contracts and the names of 
successful tenderers  

b  total value of contracts awarded to each successful tenderer during each 
financial year  

c  names of unsuccessful tenderers and reasons why their tenders were not 
accepted if the reason is other than price  

d  details of any failure by a tenderer to comply with instructions to tenderers  

e  details of the reasons for any tenders being withdrawn  

f  details of failures by contractors to submit tenders after having requested 
and been invited to do so  

g  contractors’ performance  

           h    reasons for opening late tenders (paragraph 4.6.13.45)  

           i     reasons for exceptions to tendering procedures (paragraph 4.6.18). 
 
4.6.8.7 Contract Management Representatives are responsible for making arrangements for 

the retention of tender and contract documentation in accordance with the Council’s 
Record Retention Schedule  

 

          4.6.9  Head of Commercial Services’ Responsibilities  

4.6.9.1  Working to the Director of Economy Communities and Corporate, the Head of 
Commercial Services is responsible for providing advice on all aspects of the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules save for the legal issues. The responsibility for 
the legal aspects of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules rests with the Solicitor to 
the Council.  

4.6.9.2  The Head of Commercial Services is responsible for chairing the Council’s 
Commercial Services Group.  Each Director shall appoint a senior officer to be a 
member of the Commercial Services Group and the membership shall include the 
Solicitor to the Council or their nominated representative.  

4.6.9.3  The Council’s Commercial Services Group will meet at least annually in order to 
fulfil the following responsibilities:  

a  continually reviewing the Council’s Procurement Strategy and making 
recommendations on appropriate enhancements to the Deputy Chief Executive to 
take forward in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council for approval in line 
with the Council’s arrangements for decision making as set out in the Constitution  

142



APPENDIX A 

 

b  maintaining a register of current contracts above £10,000  

c  monitoring compliance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and reporting 
non-compliance to the Director for Economy Communities and Corporate Director 
for Economy Communities and Corporate and the Solicitor to the Council for 
appropriate action  

d  preparing an annual report on the operation of and compliance with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules as a basis for the Director of Economy, Communities 
and Corporate, in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council and the Audit and 
Governance Committee  

e  continually reviewing the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to ensure they keep 
pace with developing best practice and advising amendments as necessary  

f  prescribing the information needed from each directorate’s Contract Management 
Representatives and maintaining a central contracts register of the information 
provided by the Contract Management Representatives  

g  reviewing the Contract Procedure Rules Exemption Register and preparing an 
annual report on the exemptions recorded for the Solicitor to the Council  

h  providing training and support for employees involved in procurement activities.  

            4.6.10  Responsibilities of all Officers  

             4.6.10.1  All officers are responsible for:  

a  following the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and any codes of practice, 
guidance or instructions provided by Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor 
to the Council  

 
b following all relevant English and European procurement laws  

c  following the Council’s policy requirements and legislation on Equalities and       
Environmental concerns including the Equalities Act 2010 and the Public Sector 
Duty Policy. 

d  seeking advice from the Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor to the 
Council in the case of any uncertainty  

e  ensuring that any departure from these Contract Procedure Rules is agreed with 
the Head of Commercial Services and the Solicitor to the Council  

f  following the Council’s Employee Code of Conduct (Part 5 section 13)  

g  following the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and the systems and 
procedures that are in place to control budgets properly  

h  declaring any interest that could influence their judgement in contracting matters 
to their Director and the Solicitor to the Council  

i  not taking part in any decisions relating to the procurement of work, goods or 
services if they are part of a formal in-house bid for that work  

j  reporting any suspected fraudulent, corrupt or other irregularity to the Chief 
Internal Auditor  

k  ensuring that value for money is evidenced through the procurement process.  

          l   applying appropriate monitoring arrangements to all contracts to ensure the        
management of risk and the projected delivery of services and benefits. 

143



APPENDIX A 

 

FORMAL QUOTATION AND TENDERING PROCEDURES  

         4.6.13  Introduction  

4.6.13.1  The Council, will engage with external suppliers to create large-scale strategic 
service delivery partnerships. This form of commissioning will become more common 
as the Council seeks to secure longer term efficiency gains and it is likely that it will 
involve larger amounts of more complex services within each contract’s scope.  
Officers must use Council approved strategic service delivery partners if the work 
required is within the scope of the Council’s service delivery contracts.  Should 
officers be unclear of the scope of such contracts, they should seek advice from the 
Commercial Services Team prior to proceeding with any procurement exercise.  

            4.6.13.2  The following procedures must be followed for all other types of procurement: 

                      a  Purchases in total valued up to £1,000 – no requirement for formal quotations or 
tenders but officers must be able to demonstrate value for money has been obtained 
and that all other relevant aspects of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules have 
been followed.  

b  Purchases in total valued between £1,001 and £10,000 (inclusive) – at least 
two formal quotations must be obtained (see 4.6.13.7 to 4.6.13.11)  

c Purchases in total valued between £10,001 and £50,000 (inclusive) – at least 
three formal quotations must be obtained (see 4.6.13.7 to 4.6.13.11)  

d Purchases in total valued between £50,001 and up to relevant EU limit 
(£172,514) – formal tendering arrangements must be followed (see 4.6.13.12 to 
4.6.13.71)  

e Purchases in total valued in excess of relevant EU limit (currently circa  
£172,514 for goods and services) – The Public Contracts Regulations must be  
followed (see 4.6.14).  

4.6.13.3  As the value, size and complexity of the contract increases, the degree of risk to the              
Council will also increase.  Where the value of a contract exceeds £50,000, a formal 
risk assessment must be undertaken and a managed risk register maintained 
throughout the procurement process. Advice may be sought from the Council’s risk 
and insurance officers.    

4.6.13.4  Official orders should be raised for works, goods and services in line with the 
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.  

Formal Quotation Procedure  

4.6.13.5  The requisite number of formal quotations must be obtained for all purchases (other 
than those within the scope of a strategic service delivery contract or where a legally 
compliant Framework Agreement is utilised – see 4.6.15) where between £1,001 and 
£50,000 in total (see 4.6.13.3).  

4.6.13.6  A quotation is a written estimate of the cost to execute works or supply goods, 
materials or services.  

4.6.13.7  Officers must produce a description of the goods or specification of the services 
required before seeking quotations.  This will enable a fair comparison of prices. The 
level of detail in the description or specification will depend on the value and type of 
goods or services being purchased. Advice can be obtained from the Commercial 
Services Team.  

           4.6.13.8   Formal quotations should contain as a minimum the following information:  

 

144



APPENDIX A 

 

  a date and reference number  
  b supplier company details 
   c council officer/department name  
  d item/part number  
  e description specification  
  f quantity required  
  g unit/service cost 
  h total cost 
  i delivery information  
  j payment details  
  k any special requirements 
   l Details of any discounts or rebates   
 

4.6.13.9  Every person or firm who makes a quotation must be treated fairly and equally.   

4.6.13.10  Any departures from the formal quotation procedures must be discussed with the 
Commercial Services Team who will agree or otherwise any exception in consultation 
with the Head of Commercial Services.  A record must be kept of the reasons for, and 
approval given for, departing from the formal quotation procedure.  

4.6.13.11  When Council Officers are engaging in procurement activity on behalf of schools, or 
other third parties who will be the actual contracting entity, and the Council is 
therefore acting as the agent of the school or other party, they must adhere to the 
Council Contracts Procedure Rules, recognising that the Council may be held liable 
for any complaints or challenges relating to the process. The documents sent to 
bidders in such cases must contain a disclaimer saying that the Council will not be 
held liable should the contracting entity not follow the Council’s recommendation in 
making an award. The Council must provide a written recommendation to the school 
or third party regarding making the award, pointing out that if they make a different 
choice to that recommended it will be at their own risk. Advice on wording can be 
obtained from the Commercial Services Team.  

Formal Tendering Procedure  

4.6.13.12  Formal tendering procedures apply to all contracts with a total value between 
£50,001 and the prevailing European procurement limits for goods , services and 
works except for those with a Council approved strategic service delivery contract. 
To ensure that European procurement rules are properly applied, including 
aggregation rules, Officers should liaise with the Commercial Services Team before 
commencing any procurement with an estimated value in excess of £50,000. 
Aggregation rules also apply to Council formal tenders, and requirements must not 
be artificially split to fall below the £50,000 threshold to avoid the following the 
correct process. Advice should be sought from the Commercial Services Team if 
uncertain.  

4.6.13.13  It is important to respect confidentiality during all stages of the formal tendering 
process. Officers must not disclose any information they have about potential 
suppliers to others persons/suppliers potentially competing for the same contract.  

4.6.13.14  Advice and guidance on how to describe the works, goods or services required for 
formal tendering purposes can be obtained from the Commercial Services Team.  

4.6.13.15  In accordance with regulation 111 of the Public Contract Regulations 2015, officers 
should note that they should not issue a PQQ for any tender below the central 

145



APPENDIX A 

 

government threshold which currently stands at £111,676 (as of 1st January 2014 to 
31st December 2016). For the latest information regarding the EU thresholds for 
procurement, please visit the EU Procurement website via the following link: 
 
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/publicprocurement/rules/current/index_en.htm 

 

Selecting Potential Tenderers  

4.6.13.16  Potential suppliers must be sought by placing advertisements in the most appropriate 
media, in addition to the Council’s e-tendering portal, in accordance with  
4.6.13.17.  

4.6.13.17  Advertisements for potential suppliers may be placed at the officer’s discretion in 
relevant trade or professional journals, local and national newspapers or national 
websites administered by responsible bodies, and must be placed in the EU 
Journal (OJEU) if the contract is likely to exceed the relevant EU threshold. All 
contracts with a potential value exceeding £5,000 must be advertised on the 
Council’s e-tendering portal (“the Portal”), in addition to any discretionary 
advertising by other means. Furthermore details of all contracts with a potential 
value exceeding £50,000 must be published on the UK Cabinet Office’s Contracts 
Finder portal and the information provided shall include at least the following: 

  (a) the internet address at which the procurement documents may be 
obtained.  
  (b) the time by which a prospective tenderer must respond if it wishes to be 

considered; 
(c) how and to whom a prospective tenderer is to respond; and 
(d) any other requirements for participating in the procurement 

 
 

    Where advertisements are published in OJEU such publication must precede 
their appearance on the Portal, or any other supplementary means of advertising, to 
comply with EU regulations. Note, for clarity, publication is still required on the Portal 
if OJEU is used, and must quote the specific OJEU Reference for the contract, which 
suppliers should be asked to quote in their application. As a general rule officers 
should leave 48 hours between the time of OJEU publication and any subsequent 
publication in other media.   

 
4.6.13.18  The only occasions when procurements do not need to be advertised on the Portal is 

when the contract value will be less than £5,000, or if an existing strategic service 
delivery contract or Framework Agreement is to be used to source suppliers and 
advertising is therefore not required.   

4.6.13.19  For formal tenders (values in excess of £50,000), the minimum number of tenderers 
required is three. In the event that officers find that they have less than the minimum 
number of applications they must consult with the Commercial Services Team before 
they proceed further.  

4.6.13.20  The procurement strategy, specification and evaluation strategy must be agreed 
before the commencement of the procurement.   

4.6.13.21  The entire process of advertising, selecting suppliers to tender, through to final 
award, is highly prescribed under European law for all procurements over the 

146



APPENDIX A 

 

relevant threshold. Advice needs to be sought from the Commercial Services Team 
before commencing a procurement in excess of EU thresholds (including ensuring 
sufficient time is allowed to carry out a compliant process, which can take several 
months). For procurements below the European thresholds, the advice in clauses  
4.6.13.26 to 4.6.13.71 applies.  

4.6.13.22  A standard business questionnaire may be used to collect information from the 
potential suppliers. However, all potential suppliers must receive the same 
questionnaire. Alternatively, information may be gathered by inviting potential 
suppliers to express an interest in writing covering the specifics identified by the 
officer in the advertisement or letter of invitation.  Pre-procurement market testing can 
be carried out to gauge market interest (and is positively encouraged when 
purchasing new services), including approaching suppliers directly, but pre-selection 
of suppliers for potential contract award must not commence until the market testing 
process has been completed and the actual formal procurement process begun.  In 
the case of procurements above the EU thresholds, highly– prescribed processes 
apply. In any event, information gathering and market testing exercises should not 
have the effect of distorting competition or violating EU mandated principles of non-
discrimination and transparency. In particular, such exercises should not provide any 
potential supplier(s) participating in them with an advantage over those who do not. 
Further advice can be obtained from the Commercial Services Team.  

           4.6.13.23 The method for selecting tenderers must:  

a treat all tenderers in the same way  

b keep the process clear and simple  

c record all the selection decisions.  
 
4.6.13.24  Officers must consider the following when selecting suppliers to be invited to tender 

for a particular contract:  

a past performance on similar contracts (quality and costs)  

b technical capacity  

c specialist experience in the type of products and services being procured  

d financial situation  

e public and employer’s liability insurance arrangements  

f health and safety arrangements  

g equalities policy  

h written references on the contractor’s reputation  

i environmental policies.  

4.6.13.25  Officers may also use information from referees and from company searches to 
assess which persons or firms to invite to submit a tender.  

Inviting tenders  

4.6.13.26  In accordance with regulation 53 of the Public Contract Regulations 2015, the 
Council’s e-tendering system is the default option for the publication of procurement 
documents.  In order to access these documents, prospective tenderers must have 
registered on the e-tendering portal prior to the publication of said documents. 

147



APPENDIX A 

 

            For each tender, the following procurement documents will be published: 
 

• A letter of invitation 
• Instructions to tenderers 
• Form of Tender 
• Specification 
• Schedule of Rates/pricing documentation 
• Terms and Conditions of the Contract (see 4.6.13.27) 
• Quality requirements/method statement questions 
• Tender Evaluation Criteria 
• Any relevant supporting information 

 
4.6.13.27  A copy of the Council’s standard contract terms shall be included so that the tenderer 

is aware of the terms and conditions that will form part of the final contract. When an 
industry standard contract is used advice should be sought from the Head of 
Commercial Services on which of the standard clauses to incorporate.  

 
4.6.13.28 Tenderers must be instructed to return their tendering documentation via the e-

tendering portal, rather than by any other method. In addition, tenderers must be told 
that tenders which are received by other means, or received after the deadline, will 
not be accepted.   

4.6.13.29  Tenderers should be advised that tenders will be opened at the same time and no 
advantage is secured by seeking to delay submission until the last moment.  

4.6.13.30 The invitation to tender must state that the Council does not bind itself to accepting 
the lowest or any tender. 

4.6.13.31  The invitation to tender needs to explain how the Council will deal with any mistakes it 
identifies in the tender documentation submitted (see Assessing Tenders below). 

4.6.13.32  The invitation to tender must set out the criteria that will be used to select the 
preferred supplier.  The assessment criteria must not prevent fair competition or 
discriminate between tenderers in any way.  They must also comply with relevant 
legislation. 

           4.6.13.33  The tender should be assessed according to the Most Economically Advantageous 
Tender (MEAT) criteria which can be the lowest price, but typically will be a price-
quality assessment reflecting the qualitative, technical, sustainable and social 
aspects of the tender submission as well as price and such assessment criteria may 
include the following factors:  

a) experience and skills of staff performing the contract where staff quality can 
have a significant impact on contract performance.   

b) financial proposals  

c) contract management arrangements  

d) quality including technical merit and functional characteristics  

e) delivery proposals  

f) social value 

g) environmental factors 

h) innovation  

148



APPENDIX A 

 

 
4.6.13.34   During the live tender period (i.e. the period between first advertisement and the 

deadline for tender submission), all communications with tenderers must be 
recorded in the clarification log on the e-tendering Portal. The clarification log will 
record all enquiries which are raised during the respective period and the relevant 
responses. The identity of the tenderer who has raised the query must not be 
disclosed.  

 Receiving Tenders  

4.6.13.35  The original tender return date should be fixed and unchanged except in appropriate 
and necessary circumstances.  Any extension should not provide either advantage or 
disadvantage to any of the tenderers.  

4.6.13.36  Should it be necessary to extend the time limit for the submission of tenders all 
potential tenderers should be informed of the new date in good time before the 
original submission date.  

4.6.13.37  The Council’s e-tendering Portal will automatically record the time, date and name of 
the tenders as they are received.  

4.6.13.38  Tenders cannot be opened until the final deadline for receiving them. All tenders will 
be stored in the secure e-tendering portal until the requisite deadline for opening 
them.  

4.6.13.39 If fewer tenders are received than expected, officers should not contact tenderers to 
ask whether they have sent one in.  

4.6.13.40  In exceptional circumstances, officers, in consultation with and the approval of the 
Solicitor to the Council, can accept a late tender (see the section “Late Tenders” 
below). The core principle is that tenders should not be rejected if the delay is due to 
the actions of the Council, a third party, or force majeure, 

Opening and Recording Tenders  

4.6.13.41  All tenders relating to a contract will be opened at the same time automatically using 
the Council’s preferred electronic procurement system. This system will formally 
record the date and time for audit purposes. 

 
 
4.6.13.42  Once the tenders have been opened, they will be stored securely in the electronic 

portal. 

 

Late Tenders  

4.6.13.43  Any tenders received after the deadline must be rejected unless there are exceptional 
circumstances in accordance with 4.6.13.40  

4.6.13.44  If it is decided to accept a late tender, it must be treated in the same way as all other 
tenders. The full details of the decision to accept the late tender must be recorded.  

4.6.13.45  If the late tender is rejected, a record should kept on file for two years with the other 
documents from the tender opening. The tender should be opened, under the same 

149



APPENDIX A 

 

conditions as the other tenders, merely to ascertain the return name and address. 
The tenderer should be informed in writing of the reasons for rejecting the tender, i.e. 
that it was received late and is therefore deemed to be non-compliant under the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  

Assessing Tenders  

4.6.13.46  Before assessing the tenders, the Responsible Officer needs to check that each part 
of them meets the requirements of the specification.  The Responsible Officer also 
needs to make sure that there are no mistakes and that nothing is missing  

4.6.13.47   If there are substantial omissions of data or documentation that make it impossible to 
assess the tender, this should be fully recorded and the tender rejected. 

4.6.13.48  If the tenderer has omitted ancillary documents, made an obvious error in calculating 
figures, or has otherwise made an error in their tender they may be allowed to correct 
any minor non-compliance or mistakes or to provide any necessary clarification. 
However, where a tenderer fails to allow sufficient time for the punctual submission of 
his tender, then the tender submission will be rejected in accordance with 4.6.13.43 
to 4.6.13.45. 

4.6.13.49  A record of all mistakes must be kept and attached to the tender documents together 
with any corrections agreed with the tenderer.  

4.6.13.50 The correct tenders can then be assessed in accordance with the assessment criteria 
that have previously been agreed in accordance with these formal tendering 
procedures.  

4.6.13.51 The assessment criteria used for the tender evaluation must be the same in all 
respects as the criteria advised to prospective suppliers at the beginning of the 
process.  

4.6.13.52  Assessment details are strictly confidential and must not be passed on to anyone 
else. During the course of the assessment, tender documentation must be kept 
secure and confidentiality preserved.  If, in a major tendering exercise, the 
documentation is going to be copied or divided to aid the assessment process, a 
record should be maintained to identify those to whom such documents have been 
issued and the date returned.  

4.6.13.53  The Responsible Officer shall retain a complete set of documents in a secure place in 
case any parts of the documentation go missing.  

4.6.13.54 Once the assessment has been completed the Responsible Officer should produce a 
report showing:  

a  the result of the assessment of each tender  
b  a comparison of assessment results  
c  the recommendation on which tenderer should be offered the contract.  

 
In addition, for procurements in excess of the OJEU threshold, a report should be 
produced in accordance with regulation 84 of the Public Contract Regulations 2015. 
The Responsible Officer should seek further advice from the Commercial Services 
Team with regard to preparing such reports. 
 

150



APPENDIX A 

 

Accepting and Rejecting Tenders  

          4.6.13.55 The Procurement Officer should accept the tender that the most economically              
advantageous tender in accordance with 4.6.13.33. i.e.:  

a it is the lowest priced tender ; or  

b it is the most cost effective tender   

Where this is not the lowest tender, the  Responsible Officer should explain in 
writing, giving objective reasons why that tender is preferred, and seek approval from 
the Head of Commercial Services to proceed to appoint. A note should be placed on 
file to show that the Head of Commercial Services has reviewed the evaluation 
process and agreed with the outcome.  

4.6.13.56  The Responsible Officer should always consider whether their recommendation for 
awarding the contract should be put before a Cabinet Member, the Cabinet or 
Council for formal approval before contacting the successful tenderer. The Functions 
Scheme (Part 3) sets out the Council’s procedures for making decisions. If in doubt, 
seek advice and approval from the Commercial Services Team and the Head of 
Commercial Services. Tenderers should be told at the outset if Cabinet or Council 
approval will be needed.  

4.6.13.57  The officer should write to inform the successful tenderers of the decision as soon as 
possible after all necessary approvals have been received.  

4.6.13.58 Care should be taken when issuing letters informing the tenderer that they have been 
successful as an unqualified acceptance of the tender may create a binding contract 
before the formal documentation has been completed and signed by the appropriate 
authorised signatories. In the case of an EU-compliant process the contract cannot 
be formally awarded until the losing bidders have been informed and the mandatory 
standstill period has elapsed without any challenges arising from the bidders.  

4.6.13.59  Unsuccessful tenderers should be informed of the outcome of the tendering process 
at the same time that the successful tenderer is notified. All bidders should be 
provided with a comprehensive briefing on the results of the tender With the 
increasing tendency for losing bidders or third parties to ask for such information 
under the Freedom of Information Act, it is essential that full details are recorded and 
can be supplied easily for all tender exercises, both above and below the EU 
thresholds. 

 Negotiating  

4.6.13.60  The Responsible Officer must comply with the following conditions when negotiating 
on price with tenderers:  

a  guidance must be sought from the Commercial Services Team who will consult 
with the Head of Commercial Services as necessary before advising on the 
appropriate course of action  

b  the Responsible Officer must be accompanied by another officer during 
negotiations with tenderers and a full written record of all discussions should be 
made and signed by both officers. The results of the negotiation process must be 
shared with the Commercial Services Team  

c  all negotiations must be carried out at the Council’s offices  

d  officers must not discuss one tenderer’s detailed prices, conditions or terms with 

151



APPENDIX A 

 

another tenderer  

e  officers must respect the confidentiality of information provided by tenderers  

f  if negotiations lead to a material change in the description of the work, goods or 
services or other terms, the officer must invite everyone who has provided a 
tender to re-tender on the basis of the revised contract.  If this is the case, the 
whole process should start again.  

4.6.13.61  If there is an in-house tender for a contract, negotiations must not take place without 
permission from the Commercial Services Team as outlined in 4.6.13.60 a above.  

Awarding a Contract  

4.6.13.62  Before awarding any contract, the officer responsible shall produce a written report 
evaluating each tender received against the evaluation criteria. The report shall 
identify the tenderer who has submitted the highest score in the evaluation, and 
recommend the award of the contract to that tenderer. This report shall be submitted 
to the relevant director authorised to award the contract under paragraph 8 and the 
Specific Delegations listed in the Appendix 1 to Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution 
(Chief Executive’s Scheme of Delegation to Officers). 

4.6.13.63  The Commercial Services Team will ensure that each contract is signed by an 
Authorised Signatory in accordance with the following thresholds: 

 
a officers as authorised by the Director up to £5,000  
b Managers who report to Heads of Service may authorise payments up to 
£100,000. 
c Heads of Service (as defined by Head of Service pay grades) may authorise 
payments up to £250,000. 
d Directors must authorise all payments in excess of £250,000 (excluding VAT). 
e All amounts exclude VAT. 
 
If the value of the contract exceeds £250,000 then approval needs to be sought from 
the Chief Finance Officer. 
 
Works contracts in excess of the European procurement limit for supplies and 
services (currently £173,000) must be executed under seal in accordance with 
4.6.17.1. 

 
4.6.13.64  Officers are responsible for seeking advice from Legal Services if they are not clear 

about the form of contract to be used or changes are needed to the standard form of 
contract used by the Council.  

4.6.13.65   The Commercial Services Team is responsible for recording the details of all 
contracts over £10,000 in the Contracts Register.    

4.6.13.66  Officers must keep a record of each contract, including all the quotes and letters they 
have received and notes of telephone calls and meetings about selecting suppliers.  
These records must be made available to internal or external audit as required by 
them.  

4.6.13.67  In accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the Late Payment of   
Commercial Debts Regulations 2013 and to maximise performance under the 
contract; the council will process all undisputed invoices within 30 days of receipt. 

152



APPENDIX A 

 

The same shall apply to contractors in respect of any subcontractor arrangements 
applied under the applicable council contract(s). All council contracts shall contain 
provisions to this effect. 

 

Publication of Contract Details  

4.6.13.68  Contract Management Representatives must ensure that all contracts comply with      
Herefordshire Council’s Information Governance Policy. 

 
4.6.13.69  Officers must not give tenderers or suppliers any information about the bids or affairs 

of any other tenderer or contractor unless the law requires it. All information relating 
to tendering and contracting procedures is confidential.  

4.6.13.70  The only information officers should make public is the name of the successful 
tenderer. However, this information must not be released until the contract has been 
awarded and signed.  

4.6.13.71  If information is published on the amounts of the other bids received, the names of 
the unsuccessful tenderers must not be disclosed.  Officers should ensure that all 
tenderers are aware that this information will or may be published when they are 
invited to tender and that the Council will need to meet its obligations under the 
Freedom of Information Act.  

 
  4.6.14   EUROPEAN PROCUREMENT RULES 

4.6.14.1   Whilst the European Procurement Rules prevail, officers are expected to follow the 
principles set out in the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
4.6.14.2   The European Procurement Rules are complex with significant penalties if the 

legislative requirements are not strictly adhered to. All officers are therefore 
responsible for seeking advice and guidance at all stages of the process for the 
Commercial Services Team and the Head of Commercial Services. 

 
European Limits 
 
4.6.14.3 The following table sets out the public sector thresholds for 1st January 2014 to 31st 

December 2016: 
 
 Supplies Services Works 
Public Sector Contracting 
Authorities 

£172,514 £172,514 £4,322,012 

Indicative Notices £625,050 £625,050 £4,322,012 

 
For the latest information regarding the EU thresholds for procurement, please visit the EU 
Procurement website via the following link: 
 
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/publicprocurement/rules/current/index_en.htm 
 
4.6.14.4 The figures are revised every two years on 1st January and officers should check with 

the   Head of Commercial Services for the latest values. 
 
4.6.14.5 If a contract for supplying goods or services will be worth more than the limits set out in 

the table above, the contract is likely to be governed by both EU Directives and English 

153



APPENDIX A 

 

Law. Note that the calculation of the value of the contract is to be as detailed in 4.6.14.7 
 
4.6.14.6 The value limits apply to individual contracts and groups of contracts with similar 

characteristics. Contracts with similar characteristics have to be added together to see 
whether they have reached the value limits. This is to prevent organisations packaging 
contracts into small units to avoid the rules. 

 
4.6.14.7 There are specific provisions relating to the calculation of contract values, based on the 

contract’s duration:  
 

If the contract is part of a series or is renewable, its value will be:  
 

(a) The total actual value of the successive contracts of the same type awarded during 
the preceding 12 months or  financial year adjusted where possible to take into 
account changes in quantity or value which would occur in the course of the 12 
months following the initial contract; or  
 
The total estimated value over the next 12 months (or financial year where that is 
longer than) 12 months) from the date the goods, work or service is first provided. 
 

      In the case of contracts for services: 
 

(b) If the contract is for a fixed term of less than four years, the value will be the total 
value of the contract.  
 

(c) If the contract has no end date or is for a fixed term of more than four years, the 
value will be the monthly value of the contract multiplied by 48. 

 

(d) Special provisions apply in the case of contracts involving leasing, hire, rental, hire 
purchase, insurance services, banking and financial services and design contests. 
When procuring such services advice should be sought from the Commercial 
Services Team with regard to calculating value.  

 
4.6.14.8   If more than one of the above applies, the method that gives the highest value must be 

used. Again this is to prevent organisations by-passing the rules by choosing a 
calculation that puts a group of contracts below the value limit. 

 
4.6.14.9   Once the value of each contract has been calculated, it must be added to the value of 

other contracts with similar characteristics. If the value of a contract or a group of 
contracts with similar characteristics is greater than the value limit, European 
procurement rules must be followed. To ensure that the aggregation rules are 
properly applied Contract managing representatives should liaise with the 
Commercial Services Team for all contracts in excess of £50,000. 

 
4.6.14.10 Before commencing a European procurement process, officers must discuss the next 

steps with the Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor to the Council. 
 
Awarding Contracts Subject to the European Procurement Rules 
 
4.6.14.11 Contact the Commercial Services Team or your external procurement consultants for 

advice before issuing an award notification, or if an unsuccessful tenderer challenges 
the award of the contract at any time during the standstill period or at any time during 
the process. 

 

154



APPENDIX A 

 

4.6.14.12 To ensure compliance with European procurement rules there must be a minimum 
standstill period of 10 calendar days between advising all tenderers of the award 
decision and the actual award of the contract (to end on midnight of the 10th after the 
date the notification was sent). 

 
4.6.14.13 The purpose of the standstill period is to allow any unsuccessful tenderers the 

opportunity to challenge any award decision. Where a legal challenge is made within 
the 10 day standstill period, the contract cannot be awarded until the outcome of the 
application to the court is known. It is imperative that no correspondence amounting to 
an acceptance letter is issued during this period. 

 
4.6.14.14 The written notification to the unsuccessful tenderers which triggers the standstill 

period must contain: 
 

• The award criteria 
• The tenderer’s score (where appropriate) 
• The winning tenderer’s score (where appropriate) 
• The reasons for the decision, including a comparative summary of the characteristics and 

relative advantages of their bid and the winning bid.  
 
4.6.14.15 The European procurement rules require tender results to be published in the Official 

Journal within 30 days of the date a contract is awarded. This must be done in 
consultation with the Head of Commercial Services. 

 
4.6.14.16 The Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor to the Council must be consulted on 

all EU procurements to ensure that the correct procedure is followed. 
           

         4.6.15  FRAMEWORK CONTRACTING  

4.6.15.1  Framework contracting involves selecting a contractor from a list of contractors on an 
approved “Framework” for given works, goods or services.  The contractors are 
included on the Framework following a tendering exercise to establish capability, 
quality and value.  The tendering procedures will have had to comply with any 
relevant English or European law.  

4.6.15.2  Purchasers can enter into subsequent ‘call-off’ contracts from a Framework. 
Framework contracting is becoming increasingly prevalent in an attempt to avoid 
bureaucracy and achieve best values via economies of scale.  

4.6.15.3  Frameworks can be externally formed (for example. by Government) or internally 
formed (for example. by the Council).The number of approved contractors on a 
Framework can vary but the minimum number should be three 

4.6.15.4  When an external Framework is formed general terms and conditions are agreed 
between the Framework contractors and the Framework organiser. These pre-agreed 
terms and conditions will form a major part of any purchaser’s ‘call-off’ contract and 
contractors are not obliged to agree to any amendments to them.  

4.6.15.5  From 26th February 2014, EU Procurement Directive 2014/24/EC has determined 
that Framework Agreements can be established for a maximum of 4 years (unless 
special justification can be made for a longer period). and this is reiterated in the 
present UK enactment of the European procurement rules. Any subsequent call-offs 

155



APPENDIX A 

 

under the framework may be for a duration longer than four years provided this is 
justified by the nature of the call off contract e.g. such factors as the time needed for 
contract performance, where maintenance of equipment with an expected useful life 
of more than four years is necessary or where extensive training of staff to perform 
the contract is needed. 

4.6.15.6  Officers must take the following steps to ensure compliance with the EU procurement 
rules when using a Framework contract;  

a  all the contractors on a Framework that are capable of meeting the 
purchaser’s specification must be allowed to submit a bid against that 
specification.  

b  the reasons for selecting a smaller number of contractors on a Framework 
must be clearly evidenced and should indicate why the excluded contractors 
were not capable of meeting the Council’s requirements.  

c  award of contract must be on the basis of the criteria for the Framework as set 
out in the Framework agreement itself, that is, within the original tender 
documentation setting up the Framework.  

4.6.15.7  The Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor to the Council must be consulted 
on all Framework contract procurements.  

           4.6.16  OTHER PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES  

4.6.16.1  There are a number of other procurement procedures that may be available in 
particular circumstances:  
a)  design contests, particularly in the fields of planning, architecture, civil 

engineering and information technology.  

b)  public housing schemes where the size and complexity of schemes necessitate 
the close collaboration between the Council and contractors.  

c) concession contracts where contractors derive income from the completed work, 
for example a toll bridge.  

4.6.16.2  The Commercial Services Team and the Solicitor to the Council must be consulted 
regarding any proposals to follow any such procedures.  

          4.6.17  CONTRACTS UNDER SEAL  

4.6.17.1  All contracts for building, engineering, property repairs and property maintenance 
works excluded from the Council contract with Integral, with an estimated value in 
excess of the European procurement limit for supplies and services (currently 
£173,000), shall be sent to Legal Services for execution under the Council’s seal.  

          4.6.18  EXEMPTIONS FROM THE COUNCIL’S CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  

4.6.18.1  Exemptions from the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules are only allowed in 
exceptional circumstances such as there being insufficient suppliers for the goods, 
works or services being procured.  Permission must be obtained for any exemption 
from the Head of Commercial Services and the Solicitor to the Council.  Major 
contracts may be subject to the European Procurement Rules and the Solicitor to the 
Council cannot provide an exemption from those requirements.  

156



APPENDIX A 

 

4.6.18.2  A written application for an exemption from the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
must be made to the Solicitor to the Council setting out the reasons for the 
application. The Solicitor to the Council must respond within 21 days.  If agreed by 
the Solicitor to the Council, the exemption must be approved in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution.  

4.6.18.3  The normal procedure for the completion of Exemption Forms is for the Responsible 
Officer to obtain the signature of their Director on the form to demonstrate their 
approval of the request, and then forward the form to the senior Procurement 
Manager for their approval. If the Head of Commercial Services is satisfied they will 
forward to the Solicitor to the Council or their deputy for final approval and signature. 
Legal Services will retain a register of all approved extensions.  

4.6.18.4  Tenders need not be invited in accordance with the provisions of  the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules if an urgent decision is required, for example for the 
protection of life or property or to maintain the functioning of a public service. 
Wherever possible though, at least two quotations must be obtained and any decision 
made or contract awarded shall be reported to the relevant Director, Cabinet 
Members and Local Members. Such emergency contracts should be let for as short a 
period as possible to allow their replacement with a contract that is fully compliant 
with the Contract Procedure Rules at the earliest practical opportunity.   

157



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Glossary of Terms 
 
Authorised Signatory This would usually be the budget holder in 

any given department. 

 
Commercial Services Team 

 
The Council’s team which specialises in 
dealing with the tendering process. 

 
Solicitor to the Council 

  
The head of the Legal Services Team. 

 
 
Head of Commercial Services 

 
The head of the Commercial Services 
Team. 
 

 
Contract Management Representative 

 
The person who is responsible for looking 
after contracts in a given department. 

 
MEAT Criteria 

 
The principles by which tenders are 
judged by; namely, the Most Economically 
Advantageous Tender.  
 

Responsible Officer The person who is responsible for a 
particular procurement. 

 
 

158



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, chief financial officer on Tel (01432) 383519 

 

 

Meeting: Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 19 March 2015 

Title of report: Budget monitoring report – December 2014 

Report by: Chief financial officer 
  

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The forecast outturn for the year, based on spend to the end of December 2014, is 
break-even position. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To provide Audit & Governance with an updated position on the projected outturn for 
2014/15. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) Audit & Governance notes the council is projected to spend within its budget 

for this financial year;  
(b) Audit & Governance notes the capital and treasury projected outturns; and  
(c) Audit & Governance notes the performance to achieve 2014-15 savings plans; 

 

AGENDA ITEM 13

159



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, chief financial officer on Tel (01432) 383519 

 

Key considerations 

Revenue outturn 

3 This report sets out the forecast outturn position based on information as at the end 
of December 2014.  Monitoring indicates a marginal improvement to the October 
position reported to Cabinet 18 December 2014, £658k under-spend.  Directorate 
pressures in Adults have improved by £361k since October, the ECC underspend has 
reduced by £163k.  

 

 
 

Adults and wellbeing 
 
4 The latest forecast predicts an overspend of £613k at the year-end. This compares to 

a forecast overspend of £974k that was previously reported to Cabinet. 

5 The forecast overspend within adult social care client groups has stabilised despite a 
significant increase in demand, particularly for nursing care, due to pressures in the 
hospital system. This has been achieved by proactive management of placements 
and financial challenge of all new placements as well as high cost existing packages.  

6 The client forecast assumes that any further demand pressures will be managed and 
that new services such as re-ablement and tele-care, fully operational from 
November, are beginning to have an impact on growth in demand.  This continues to 
be monitored within the operational teams, by AWB panel and by senior 
management.  

 

Children’s wellbeing 

Directorate Budget Exp. Budget 
(income) 

Net budget December 
Forecast 
Outturn  

Projected 
Over/  
(under) 
Spend 

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

Adults and 
Wellbeing 78,828 (23,422) 55,406 56,019 613 

Children’s 
Wellbeing 43,529 (21,678) 21,864   22,362 498 

Economy, 
Communities & 
Corporate 

125,009 (71,498) 53,511 53,432 (79) 

Directorate total 247,366 (116,598) 130,781 131,813 1,032 

Treasury 
management 16,060 (180) 15,880 15,190 (690) 

Other budgets and 
reserves 6,514 (7,027) (513) (1,513) (1,000) 

Total  269,940 (123,805) 146,148 145,490 (658) 

160



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, chief financial officer on Tel (01432) 383519 

 

 
7 The current projected overspend is £498k, a marginal increase from October. 
 
8 The cost of agency staff continues to put pressure on the safeguarding budget. The 

new regional rates are now in place for new agency recruitment, monitoring has 
started to demonstrate the outcomes of this initiative. Savings arising from the 
successful recruitment of three permanent social workers and the next cohort of 
newly qualified social workers will begin to be seen in the last month of the year and 
in 2015-16.  Work is on-going to recruit experienced social workers both from the UK 
and the EU. 

 
9 The number of agency staff increased in month for children with disabilities, this 

reflects an accelerated programme to deal with a back log and address the service 
design, which was planned for 2015-16. This has been mitigated by bringing forward 
funds from reserves. There has been an increase in the numbers of claims for the 16 
plus care leavers grant, due to the rise in the number of young people presenting as 
homeless. The impact of this on future financial years is being modelled and there is 
a project within the transformation programme to redesign our model of care. 

  

Economy, communities and corporate  
 

10 The projected underspend for December has reduced to £79k, a change since the 
October position of £163k.  

11 Planning income of £347k from two major developments expected in 2014/15 will 
now be received in 2015/16. This has been partly mitigated by reductions in staff and 
other commitments of circa £184k. 

12 There are risks on property maintenance budgets which will be managed within the 
overall directorate budget.  

 
Treasury management 
 

13 The treasury management budget is forecast to underspend by £690k this year as a 
result of deferring the take up of longer term prudential borrowing and obtaining short 
term loans at a lower interest rate. The budget includes provision for taking £10m in 
longer term loans, £5m has been taken at an interest rate of 2.7% during this period, 
further detail is provided in appendix C. 
 
Other budgets and reserves 

14 Earmarked reserves and contingency budgets were set aside for in year pressures.  
The £2m change management budget is forecast to underspend by £1m due to less 
than forecast redundancy costs falling due in year.  The revenue contingency budget 
of £700k was allocated for additional grass cutting, Colwall school temporary 
accommodation and Adults transitions in the October Cabinet report. 

15 General reserves are estimated to increase to £8.6m at year end, £4.2m above the 
minimum balance equivalent to 3% of the net budget requirement (£4.4m).  This 
gives more resilience going into the new financial year where significant budget 
reductions are planned.  A summary of estimated year-end reserves is set out below: 

 

161



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, chief financial officer on Tel (01432) 383519 

 

 

31 Mar 2014 
Transfer in(out) 

2014/15 
Estimate 31 
Mar 2015 

 
£000 £000 £000 

General reserve 5,053 3,580 8,633 

Earmarked    

School balances 6,345 (845) 5,500 

Waste Disposal 2,407 (550) 1,857 

Risk Mitigation 3,500 (800) 2,700 

Business Rate Smoothing 1,000 - 1,000 

Other smaller reserves < £1m 4,909 (2,139) 2,770 

Severe weather grant 2,120 (2,120) 0 

Other unused Grants cfwd 3,662 (1,703) 1,959 

Total Reserves 28,996 (4,151) 24,419 

 
Capital  

16 It is forecast that capital spending will be £6m higher than originally budgeted, £91m 
for 2014/15, due to additional grant funding post budget setting.  

17 The slippage since the last report is in relation to the re-profiling of budgeted spend 
into 2015/16, further detail is provided in appendix B. 

Community impact 

18 None 

Equality duty 

19 The recommendations do not have any equality implications. 

Financial implications 

20 These are contained within the report. 

Legal implications 

21 The chief financial officer has statutory duty (Local Government Finance Act 1988) to 
report if the expenditure and/or proposed expenditure of the council in a financial year 

162



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, chief financial officer on Tel (01432) 383519 

 

is likely to exceed resources (including borrowing) available to meet that expenditure. 
When preparing the report the chief financial officer is under a duty to consult with the 
monitoring officer (LGHA 1989).  After circulation of the report full council must decide 
if agrees or disagrees with the views contained in the report and decide if any actions 
are to be taken based on it.  

Risk management 

22 Monthly reporting gives the Chief Finance Officer assurance on the robustness of 
budget control and monitoring, highlighting key risks and identifying any mitigation to 
reduce the impact of pressures on the council’s overall position. 

Consultees 

None 

Appendices 

Appendix A - Revenue forecast 

Appendix B - Capital Forecast 

Appendix C - Treasury Forecast 

Appendix D - Performance of Savings Plans 2014/15 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

163



164



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

  

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 N
et
 B
u
d
g
et
 

N
et
 

B
u
d
g
et
 

D
ec
em

b
er
 

£0
00
 

D
ec
em

b
er
 

V
ar
ia
n
ce
  

£0
00
 

O
ve
r 
/ 

(U
n
d
er
)s
p
en
d
 

O
ct
o
b
er
 

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 

£0
00
 

O
ve
r 
/ 

(U
n
d
er
)s
p
en
d
 

C
h
an
g
e 
to
 

fo
re
ca
st
 

£0
00
 

A
d
v 
/ (
F
av
) 

E
xp
la
n
at
io
n
 

 
A
du
lts
 a
nd
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 

55
,4

06
 

61
3 

97
4 

(3
61

) 
P
ro
ac
tiv
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f p

la
ce
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 

fin
an
ci
al
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
of
 a
ll 
ne
w
 p
la
ce
m
en
ts
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
 

21
,8

64
 

49
8 

47
2 

26
 
 

E
co
no
m
y,
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 &
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

53
,5

11
 

(7
9)

 
(2

42
) 

16
3 

P
la
nn
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
of
 £
34
7k
 fr
om

 tw
o 
m
aj
or
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
 w
ill
 n
ow

 b
e 
re
ce
iv
ed
 in
 

20
15
/1
6.
 R
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 
ot
he
r 

co
m
m
itm

en
ts
 £
18
4k
. 

 D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
A
T
E
S
 T
O
T
A
L
 

13
0,

78
1 

1,
03

2 
1,

20
4 

(1
72

) 
  

T
re
as
ur
y 
M
an
ag

em
en
t 

15
,8

80
 

(6
90

) 
(6

30
) 

(6
0)

 
 

O
th
er
 b
ud
ge
ts
 a
nd
 r
es
er
ve
s 

(5
13

) 
(1

,0
00

) 
(1

,0
00

) 
0 

  

T
O
T
A
L
 

14
6,

14
8 

(6
58

) 
(4

26
) 

(2
32

) 
  

   

 

 

165



 M
o
ve
m
en
t 
in
 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
b
u
d
g
et
 c
h
an
g
es
 is
 c
o
m
p
ri
se
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 

 
 

 
 

   
   
   
  £
00
0 

A
D
U
L
T
S
 &
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 

N
o 
bu
dg

et
 a
m
en
dm

en
ts
 fo
r 
A
du
lts
. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ov
em

en
t f
ro
m
 r
es
er
ve
s 
fo
r 
C
ol
w
al
l  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20
0 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   
 

E
C
O
N
O
M
Y
, C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 &
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 

N
o 
bu
dg

et
 a
m
en
dm

en
ts
 fo
r 
E
C
C
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

A
llo
ca
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm
 R
ev
en
u
e 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
en
cy
 b
u
d
g
et
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20
0 

T
O
T
A
L
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  0
 

         

166



A
d
u
lt
s 
&
 W
el
lb
ei
n
g
 

D
ec

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
Ch

an
ge

 to
 

fo
re

ca
st

Se
rv

ic
e

Bu
dg

et
 

Ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e

Bu
dg

et
 

(I
nc

om
e)

N
et

 
Bu

dg
et

D
ec

em
be

r 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ut

tu
rn

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

)s
pe

nd

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

)s
pe

nd
A

dv
/ 

(F
av

)
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ti
es

16
,9

77
(1

,6
92

)
15

,2
85

16
,1

61
87

6
81

9
57

M
em

or
y 

an
d 

Co
gn

it
io

n
6,

33
2

(1
,2

72
)

5,
06

0
5,

10
1

41
12

6
(8

5)
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h

3,
15

2
(7

41
)

2,
41

1
3,

06
3

65
3

67
5

(2
2)

Ph
ys

ic
al

 S
up

po
rt

25
,4

56
(4

,9
53

)
20

,5
03

20
,9

60
45

8
46

6
(8

)
Se

ns
or

y 
Su

pp
or

t
57

8
(1

07
)

47
1

71
5

24
5

26
6

(2
1)

Cl
ie

nt
 S

ub
-T

ot
al

52
,4

94
(8

,7
66

)
43

,7
29

46
,0

01
2,

27
3

2,
35

2
(7

9)
O

pe
ra

ti
on

s
8,

12
2

(1
,4

24
)

6,
69

7
5,

89
0

(8
08

)
(8

26
)

18

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g

8,
09

3
(1

,1
71

)
6,

92
2

6,
54

4
(3

79
)

(3
03

)
(7

6)
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
28

5
(4

,0
36

)
(3

,7
51

)
(3

,3
54

)
39

7
52

9
(1

32
)

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 fo
re

ca
st

 s
pe

nd
 o

n 
w

in
te

r p
re

ss
ur

es
.

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lt

h
8,

10
9

(7
,9

89
)

12
0

12
0

(0
)

0
(0

)
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
1,

68
8

0
1,

68
8

1,
40

0
(2

88
)

(2
00

)
(8

8)
U

se
 o

f o
ne

 o
ff

 re
se

rv
es

/g
ra

nt
s

0
0

0
(5

81
)

(5
81

)
(5

81
)

0
N

on
 C

lie
nt

 S
ub

-T
ot

al
26

,2
97

(1
4,

62
0)

11
,6

77
10

,0
18

(1
,6

59
)

(1
,3

78
)

(2
81

)
A

du
lt

's
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

78
,7

91
(2

3,
38

6)
55

,4
06

56
,0

19
61

3
97

4
(3

61
)

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t

M
ai

n 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e 

si
nc

e 
O

ct
ob

er

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

ac
ka

ge
s.

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
ac

ka
ge

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 jo

in
t f

un
di

ng
.

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 fo
re

ca
st

 c
om

m
it

te
d 

sp
en

d.

A
dd

it
io

na
l h

ea
lt

h 
ou

tc
om

es
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fr
om

 P
H

 
pa

rt
ia

lly
 o

ff
se

t b
y 

sh
or

tf
al

l i
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 D
ay

 O
pp

s 
in

co
m

e

 

       

167



C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 W
el
lb
ei
n
g
 

D
ec

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
Ch

an
ge

 to
 

Fo
re

ca
st

Se
rv

ic
e

Bu
dg

et
 

Ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e

Bu
dg

et
 

(I
nc

om
e)

N
et

 
Bu

dg
et

D
ec

em
be

r 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ut

tu
rn

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

) 
sp

en
d

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

) 
sp

en
d

(F
av

ou
ra

bl
e)

/
A

dv
er

se
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 C
os

ts
7,

40
8

8,
26

6
(8

58
)

(1
,4

33
)

(5
76

)
(6

95
)

11
9

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 C
os

ts
7,

40
8

8,
26

6
(8

58
)

(1
,4

33
)

(5
76

)
(6

95
)

11
9

A
dd

it
io

na
l N

ee
ds

 - 
le

ss
 D

SG
6,

70
4

4,
35

0
2,

35
3

2,
24

1
(1

12
)

(1
12

)
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g
1,

25
1

36
1,

21
5

1,
18

0
(3

5)
(4

)
(3

1)
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
59

1
83

50
8

50
8

(0
)

(0
)

0
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 S

uf
fi

ci
en

cy
-l

es
s 

D
SG

9,
13

4
7,

66
1

1,
47

3
1,

50
8

34
35

(1
)

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t -
 le

ss
 D

SG
60

8
45

1
15

6
16

7
11

11
0

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
&

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

18
,2

88
12

,5
81

5,
70

6
5,

60
5

(1
02

)
(7

0)
(3

1)

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 &
 R

ev
ie

w
69

6
81

61
5

65
9

44
47

(3
)

Ea
rl

y 
H

el
p 

&
 F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

2,
38

4
47

7
1,

90
6

1,
75

2
(1

54
)

(1
64

)
10

Fi
el

dw
or

k
3,

09
2

5
3,

08
7

3,
68

8
60

1
56

0
41

Lo
ok

ed
 A

ft
er

 C
hi

ld
re

n
7,

18
2

23
7

6,
94

5
7,

35
9

41
4

34
5

69

LA
C 

Ex
te

rn
al

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

2,
81

6
30

2,
78

6
3,

12
9

34
2

24
8

94

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
79

7
0

79
7

64
1

(1
56

)
7

(1
63

)

M
an

ag
em

en
t

87
9

0
87

9
96

2
84

19
4

(1
10

)
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 &

 F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
17

,8
46

83
1

17
,0

15
18

,1
90

1,
17

5
1,

23
7

(6
2)

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

43
,5

42
21

,6
78

21
,8

64
22

,3
62

49
8

47
2

26

D
ec

is
io

n 
to

 in
tr

od
uc

e 
op

ti
on

al
 re

te
nt

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
fo

r 2
01

5/
16

 a
nd

 n
ot

 2
01

4/
15

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 1

6+
 d

ue
 to

 fo
re

ca
st

 b
ei

ng
 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d

7 
ne

w
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ui
lt

 in
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 m

ed
ic

ar
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

ba
ck

lo
g 

of
 c

as
es

 w
as

 n
ot

 a
s 

m
uc

h 
as

  e
xp

ec
te

d.

A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t o
f p

er
m

 s
ta

ff
 h

as
 m

ea
nt

 a
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 a

ge
nc

y 
co

st
s

Th
e 

H
op

e 
Ce

nt
re

 c
on

tr
ac

t h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
as

 
pl

an
ne

d 
ho

w
ev

er
 a

dd
it

io
na

l s
av

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 th

at
 m

it
ig

at
ed

 8
0%

 o
f t

he
 p

re
ss

ur
e

A
dd

it
io

na
l a

ge
nc

y 
co

st
s 

w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

CW
D

 te
am

 d
ue

 
to

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

ri
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f b
ac

kl
og

 
of

 c
as

es

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
ce

nt
re

 re
vi

ew
 n

ow
 n

ot
 re

qu
ir

ed

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t

M
ai

n 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e 

si
nc

e 
O

ct
ob

er

Sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
-a

lig
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s

 

 

168



E
co
n
o
m
y,
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
an
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
  

D
ec

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
Ch

an
ge

 to
 

fo
re

ca
st

Se
rv

ic
e

Bu
dg

et
 

Ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e

Bu
dg

et
 

(I
nc

om
e)

N
et

 
Bu

dg
et

D
ec

em
be

r 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ut

tu
rn

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

)s
pe

nd

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
O

ve
r/

 
(U

nd
er

)s
pe

nd
A

dv
/(

Fa
v)

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's

Ec
on

om
ic

, E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t a
nd

 C
ul

tu
re

9,
83

5
(8

,8
96

)
93

9
33

6
(6

03
)

(9
55

)
35

2

Pl
ac

ed
 B

as
ed

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

41
,9

88
(4

,0
24

)
37

,9
64

38
,2

08
24

4
31

4
(7

0)

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 IC

T
56

,7
02

(5
2,

70
8)

3,
99

4
3,

89
6

(9
8)

74
(1

72
)

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

an
d 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3,

67
8

(6
59

)
3,

01
9

3,
22

1
20

2
22

1
(1

9)

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

4,
48

7
(8

26
)

3,
66

1
3,

57
7

(8
4)

(1
01

)
17

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 S
up

po
rt

45
7

(3
6)

42
1

38
5

(3
6)

(4
5)

9

Pr
op

er
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s
6,

81
6

(4
,2

67
)

2,
54

9
2,

84
5

29
6

25
0

46
Ec

on
om

ic
, C

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

an
d 

Co
rp

or
at

e
12

3,
96

3
(7

1,
41

6)
52

,5
47

52
,4

68
(7

9)
(2

42
)

16
3

Pu
bl

ic
 R

el
at

io
ns

 O
ff

ic
e

62
4

(8
0)

54
4

54
4

0
0

0
Ch

ie
f E

xe
cu

ti
ve

42
0

0
42

0
42

0
0

0
0

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
ti

ve
1,

04
4

(8
0)

96
4

96
4

0
0

0
To

ta
l E

CC
 a

nd
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
12

5,
00

7
(7

1,
49

6)
53

,5
11

53
,4

32
(7

9)
(2

42
)

16
3

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
om

m
it

m
en

ts
 o

f s
ta

ff
 n

ow
 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 D

W
P 

£1
16

k,
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t £
30

k 
an

d 
on

-g
oi

ng
 A

gr
es

so
 

co
st

s 
£1

5k

O
ne

-o
ff

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
us

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
pa

y 
co

st
s.

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 la
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 in
co

m
e 

du
e 

to
 

fa
ll 

in
 h

ou
se

 m
ov

es
.

Pl
an

ne
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 fo
r H

al
o 

Le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 n

ew
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 £
85

k 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 

in
 b

us
in

es
s 

ra
te

s 
du

e 
to

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
ty

 
ex

em
pt

io
n.

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t

M
ai

n 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e 

si
nc

e 
N

ov
em

be
r

Pl
an

ni
ng

 in
co

m
e 

of
 £

34
7k

  f
ro

m
 tw

o 
m

aj
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 n

ow
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 1
5/

16

U
se

 o
f r

ed
un

da
nc

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 £

50
k 

w
it

hi
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ea
lm

 c
on

tr
ac

t.

 

  

169



 

170



 

Appendix B 

2014/15 Capital Forecast Outturn  

 

The revised capital outturn forecast for 2014/15 totals £91.05 million, as summarised below.  

 

Table A –Summary forecast and sources of funding 2014/15 

 

Significant changes since the October report: 

o Reduction in the forecast total for housing grants being made by Adults Wellbeing with 
unspent grant funding being carried forward to 2015/16. 

o Forecast spend on LED street lighting and solar panels has fallen from £4.5m to £1.9m with 
a corresponding increase in projected spending for 2015/16. 

 

 

 

 Budget  
£’000 

May 
Forecast  
£’000 

August 
Forecast 
£’000 

October 
Forecast  
£’000 

December 
Forecast  
£’000 

Directorate Forecast      

Adults Wellbeing 483 3,291 3,291 3,291 1,798 

Children’s Wellbeing 9,048 8,184 9,319 9,163 8,777 

Economy, Communities & 
Corporate 75,501 72,239 81,469 82,465 80,379 

Contingency 319 695 95 95 95 

Total  85,351 84,409 94,174 95,014 91,049 

Funding      

Capital Grants  24,905 30,049 34,848 34,954 34,221 

Prudential Borrowing 57,237 49,457 53,123 53,662 47,499 

Capital Receipts 3,209 4,903 4,903 5,098 8,029 

Revenue (from Waste 
Reserve) - - 1,300 1,300 1,300 

Total 85,351 84,409 94,174 95,014 91,049 

171



Table B - Schemes with a forecast exceeding £500k in 2014/15 

 

 Scheme Total 
Scheme 
Budget 
£’000 

Budget for 
2014/15  

£’000 

December 
Forecast  

£’000 

Comments 

Children’s Wellbeing     

Leominster Primary School 10,617 5,729 5,300 New school has opened 

Condition property works - - 1,462 Annual programme of works at 
various school sites committed on a 
highest need first basis, grant 
funding confirmed post MTFMS 

Westfield’s SEN school 184 184 675 Grant funded extension work 

Disabled Facilities Grants - 462 930 Individual grants awarded through 
an application process, enabling 
independent living.  Grant funding 
confirmed post MTFMS 

Colwall School - - 900 Budget vired from Condition 
Property Works (£300k) and 
Contingency (£600k) 

Corporate accommodation 19,530 6,911 7,994 Works nearing completion at 
Plough Lane and continuing on the 
new heritage, archive and record 
centre and Civic hub.   

Leisure Centre Improvements 8,670 2,000 5,300 Works at Leominster, Ross and 
Hereford leisure sites.  Work 
progressing more rapidly and 
budget re-profiled. 

Local Transport Plan  10,645 10,645 10,645 Annual programme of capital works 
to highways, footways and bridges.  
Additional grant funding received 
since initial budget was set. 

Fastershire Broadband 20,200 7,600 10,093 Investment in broadband 
infrastructure includes re-profiled 
budget (grant funded) 

Yazor Flood Alleviation 4,876 450 960 Continued improvement works.  

Hereford Enterprise Zone 3,434 1,967 2,203 Utilities, access and Skylon Court 
works underway to enable plot 
sales and unit rentals 

Link Road 27,000 10,708 6,500 Acquisition costs and start of 
construction works   

 

Destination Hereford 3,261 1,054 1,044 Grant funded cycle improvement 
schemes 

LED Street Lighting 5,655 5,655 1,501 Phased installation of LED street 
lighting 

Solar Panel Installations 2,134 1,841 400 Photovoltaic instalment at various 
locations 

Masters House, Ledbury 4,025 606 1,145 Continuing refurbishment works (re-
profiled spend - scheme remains 
within total budget) 

172



Road investment 20,000 15,000 15,000 Investment into the highway 
infrastructure 

Pothole Funding - - 2,572 Additional grant funding received 

Weather Repair Fund - - 1,299 Additional road grant funding 
received 

EnviRecover 40,000 11,000 10,700 Energy from Waste plant 
construction 

Wheeled Bins - - 1,300 Purchase of Wheeled Bins funded 
by transfer from Waste Reserve to 
be repaid by contract cost savings 

Sub Total  180,231 81,812 87,923  

Schemes with a forecast 

<£500k in 2014/15 

6,002 3,539 3,126  

Total 186,233 85,351 91,049  

 
 
 
  
  
 

173



174



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Nine months to 31 December 2014 
 
 

This report ensures the council demonstrates best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s 
recommendations in their Code of Practice for Treasury Management, by keeping members informed 
of treasury management activity.   
 
1. The UK Economy 
1.1. Little change in the UK economic climate and statistics since previously reported: 

• The third estimate of GDP for the third quarter showed GDP growing by an unrevised 
0.7%.  The economy has now been growing by 0.7% to 0.9% for each of the last six 
quarters. 

• The year-on-year Consumer Price Index (CPI) was 0.5% in December 2014 (the lowest 
rate since May 2000), down from 1.0% in November. 

• The latest statistics released for the quarter to October 2014 show the UK labour 
continuing with employment gains, although the headline unemployment rate remains 
unchanged at 6.0% (the lowest since late 2008).  Earnings growth accelerated again. 

• There has been no change in the Bank Base Rate.  
 
2. Outlook for Interest Rates 
2.1 The council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose, have issued the following forecast of the Bank 

Base Rate (forecast issued 10/12/14): 

  
 Their central forecast is the same as in the previous report except that Arlingclose have now 

removed any upside risk until December 2015. 
 

3. The Council’s Investments 
3.1 At 31st December 2014 the council held the following investments: 
 

Investment Term Maturity 
Date 

Interest 
Rate 

Amount invested 
£m £m 

 Instant Access Money Market Funds:     
 Ignis N/A N/A 0.47% 4.93  
 Federated N/A N/A 0.45% 5.00  
 Insight N/A N/A 0.36% 4.79  
 Deutsche N/A N/A 0.37% 0.45 15.17 
      
1 Month Notice Account      
 Close Bros  N/A N/A 1.00% 5.00 5.00 
      
Fixed Term Deposits:      
 Nationwide 298 days 23/01/15 0.72% 2.00  
 Barclays 365 days 19/02/15 0.85% 1.00  
 Nationwide 279 days 25/03/15 0.79% 2.00  
 Barclays 279 days 25/03/15 0.79% 1.00  
 Lloyds 364 days 27/03/15 0.95% 1.00  
 Barclays 364 days 27/03/15 0.86% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 30/03/15 0.95% 2.00  
 Barclays 364 days 30/03/15 0.86% 1.00 11.00 

Bank Rate Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17 Jun-17 

Upside risk    +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 

Central case     0.50      0.50      0.75      0.75     1.00      1.00     1.25     1.25    1.50     1.50  

Downside risk   -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75 -0.75 -1.00 -1.00 

175



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Nine months to 31 December 2014 
 

      

Total   0.66%   31.17 

No new term deposits made in the last two months. 
 
3.2 The council’s current eligible UK counterparties and their associated maximum maturity 

periods (as recommended by the council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose) are as follows: 
  

Counterparty Maximum maturity period from: 
 01/04/14 01/07/14 16/10/14 

Close Brothers Ltd, Goldman Sachs 
International Bank, 15 of the stronger 
building societies 

100 days 100 days 100 days 

Santander UK 6 months 13 months 6 months 
Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB 12 months 13 months 6 months 
Nationwide 12 months 13 months 6 months 
Barclays 12 months 13 months 100 days 
HSBC and Standard Chartered Bank 12 months 13 months 6 months 
Nat West and RBS Overnight Overnight Overnight 
No change in counterparties or maturity limits since 16/10/14. 

 
3.3 The only non-UK counterparty that the council is using is Handelsbanken which had a 

recommended maximum maturity limit of 13 months but this was revised down to 6 months 
from 16th October when Arlingclose recommended a general tightening of limits following new 
banking regulations and deteriorating global growth prospects, particularly in the Eurozone. 

 
3.4 The council has earned interest on its investments as follows: 
 

Month 

Average amount 
invested 

Average rate of 
interest earned 

Amount 
of interest 
earned / 
Forecast 

£ 

Budget 
 
£ 

Actual 
Surplus / 
Forecast 

£ 

Actual / 
Forecast 

£m 

Budget 
£m 

Actual / 
Forecast 

% 

Budget 
% 

Apr-14 35.09 20 0.68 0.60% 19,442 10,000 9,442 
May-14 40.21 40 0.63 0.60% 21,584 20,000 1,584 
Jun-14 33.96 40 0.68 0.60% 19,151 20,000 -849 
Jul-14 37.30 40 0.66 0.60% 20,896 20,000 896 
Aug-14 38.29 40 0.63 0.60% 20,652 20,000 652 
Sep-14 32.90 40 0.66 0.60% 17,970 20,000 -2,030 
Oct-14 29.72 30 0.70 0.60% 17,726 15,000 2,726 
Nov-14 30.00 30 0.67 0.60% 17,148 15,000 2,148 
Dec-14 30.00 30 0.63 0.60% 16,796 15,000 1,796 
     171,365 155,000 16,365 
Jan-15 20.00 20 0.60 0.60% 10,000 10,000 - 
Feb-15 20.00 20 0.60 0.60% 10,000 10,000 - 
Mar-15 10.00 10 0.60 0.60% 5,070 5,070 - 
Budget and projected outturn 196,435 180,070 16,365 
 

3.5 Interest earned in the last two months has been around levels forecast in the previous report 

176



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Nine months to 31 December 2014 
 

and therefore there is no change in the projected outturn for the year which is expected to be a 
surplus of approximately £16,000. 

 
3.6 In December the council took out a £5m loan from the Public Works Loan Board which resulted 

in investment balances being higher than anticipated.  As a result the council cancelled the 
notice it had given to withdraw the £5m investment with Close Brothers.  It is anticipated that 
these funds will not now be withdrawn until the end of March. 

 
 
4. The Council’s Borrowing 
 

 Short-term borrowing 
4.1 The council is continuing its policy of mainly using short-term borrowing from other local 

authorities to fund its capital programme and for short-term liquidity needs.  These short-term 
interest rates are significantly below levels available from other sources. 

 
4.2 Historically the council has always borrowed for longer periods at fixed interest rates.  Whilst 

achieving stability in the amount of its interest payments, the council currently has a large cost 
of carry when comparing its fixed interest debt to current (variable) investment rates. 

 
4.3 It is considered good practice to have an element of variable rate borrowing that removes or 

reduces this cost of carry and, to the extent that the level of short-term debt does not exceed 
the level of the council’s investments, when interest rates rise increased investment income 
provides a hedge against increased borrowing costs.  

 
4.4 The council can only borrow up to its Capital Financing Requirement, which represents the 

need to borrow for capital spend, and cannot borrow beyond this to finance the revenue 
budget. 

 
4.5 At the end of December 2014 short-term borrowing from other local authorities consisted of 

fifteen loans totalling £40 million with an average interest rate of 0.53% (including brokers 
commission of between 0.03% and 0.10%).  Loan periods ranged from 30 days to one year 
and averaged 206 days. 

 
 Long-term borrowing 
4.6 On 12th December 2014 the council borrowed £5m from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  

The loan is repayable in equal instalments of £125,000 every six months until December 2034.  
The interest rate payable is 2.70%. 

 
4.7 At the time the loan was taken out the rate was the lowest since May 2013. 
 
4.8  The current capital financing budget position is summarised below: 
  
 

Summary of Borrowing Budget Budget Forecast Savings 

 £m £m £m 

Minimum Revenue Provision 10.19 9.93 0.26 

 
Interest on existing longer-term PWLB and bank 
loans  

5.52 5.52      - 

177



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Nine months to 31 December 2014 
 

 
Variable rate borrowing  
 
Budget 
Borrowing required £68 million 
Rate 1.00% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
0.55 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0.17 

 
 
 
 
 
0.38 

Fixed rate borrowing 
 
Budget 
Provision for longer term-borrowing 

 
 
 
0.10 

 
 
 
 

0.07 
 

  
 
 

0.03 

Less capitalised interest (see 4.11 below) (0.30)   (0.30)  - 

Forecast savings compared to budget  16.06 15.39 0.67 

 
 
4.10 The reduction in the Minimum Revenue Provision required for 2014/15 is due to slippage in the 

capital spending for 2013/14, as reported in June. 
 
4.11 The council is able to capitalise interest costs relating to interest paid on borrowing used to 

fund large capital schemes that take substantial periods of time to get to the point at which the 
assets may be utilised.  Such interest, incurred at the construction or installation phase, may 
be added to the cost of the associated asset.  At can be seen from the table above, capitalised 
interest of £300,000 has been included in the 2014/15 budget for capital financing costs.   

 
 
5. Summary of Outturn Position 
 
5.1 The current net treasury position, compared to budget, is estimated to be a surplus of 

£690,000. 
 

Summary of Budget Over/(Under) Spend £m 

Treasury Management investment income receivable  (0.02) 

Interest payable on borrowing  (0.67) 

Total savings (0.69) 

 
 
5.2 The savings will also be higher/lower if capitalised interest is more/less than £300,000. 
 
 
 
 

178



1 | P a g e  
 

Savings Monitoring 2014

This report sets out performance against savings agreed by Council in February 
2014. Savings plans are monitored on a monthly basis.

The savings targets for 2014
by directorate over the 3 years

Performance against the Savings Plans in 2014

The performance against these targets has been RAG (Red, Amber, 
2014-15 76% of the £15.3m target will

This table and diagram shows the performance for the Council in total. 

 

 

Red Amber 
£000s £000s

2014-15 1,656    1,951    
2015-16 1,209    2,236    
2016-17 1,382    4,754    

4,247    8,941    

2014-2017 

This report sets out performance against savings agreed by Council in February 
2014. Savings plans are monitored on a monthly basis. 

targets for 2014-17 are £33.7m. The chart below shows the breakdown 
directorate over the 3 years. 

  

Performance against the Savings Plans in 2014-15 

against these targets has been RAG (Red, Amber, 
£15.3m target will been achieved.  

This table and diagram shows the performance for the Council in total. 

 

Green Total
£000s £000s
11,695  15,302  

5,394    8,839    
3,515    9,651    

20,604  33,792  

Appendix D 

This report sets out performance against savings agreed by Council in February 

below shows the breakdown 

 

against these targets has been RAG (Red, Amber, and Green). In 

This table and diagram shows the performance for the Council in total.  

179



2 | P a g e  
 

 

The details of the savings plans can be reviewed on the following link

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50016921/Appendix%205b_Equality%20Impact
%20of%20Budget%20Proposals.pdf

For each directorate the current savings plans have been rated
red and amber targets. 

Adults & Wellbeing 

The Savings target for 2014
this will be delivered in this financial 
bene brought forward. This compares with a forecast delivery of 44% reported in 
October.   
 

 

 

Red Amber 
£000s £000s

2014-15 1,160    600       
2015-16 616       825       
2016-17 588       845       

2,364    2,270    

The details of the savings plans can be reviewed on the following link

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50016921/Appendix%205b_Equality%20Impact
%20of%20Budget%20Proposals.pdf  

For each directorate the current savings plans have been rated, an explanation of 

et for 2014-15 was £5.5m. The latest forecast is that at least 68% of 
this will be delivered in this financial year but this is off set by savings plans for 15/16 

This compares with a forecast delivery of 44% reported in 

 

Green Total
£000s £000s
3,730    5,490    
1,994    3,435    
1,713    3,146    
7,437    12,071  

 

The details of the savings plans can be reviewed on the following link 

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50016921/Appendix%205b_Equality%20Impact

, an explanation of 

15 was £5.5m. The latest forecast is that at least 68% of 
but this is off set by savings plans for 15/16 

This compares with a forecast delivery of 44% reported in 

180



3 | P a g e  
 

 

2014-15 Savings Plan 

Red 

• Managing Demographic Pressures 
demand for services
national level. This has been particularly high in relation to nursing care due to 
the pressures within the hospital system. 
service has kept pace with the increa
unit costs, it has been
Alternative savings plans identified for 2015/16 have been brought forward to 
partially offset the impact of this within the current finan
 

Amber  

• Resource Allocation System (
under the new FACE RAS showed an expected reduction of approximately 
10% in the value of assessed need. 
work capacity on hospital discharge, high numbers of safeguarding adults and 
deprivation of liberty assessments, capacity for annual reviews of existing 
clients has been compromised. Change of circumstances reviews have been 
prioritised where most cases being reviewed / re
change in circumstance which has often resulted in a higher assessment of 
need. This has also 
Additional resources have been sourced to expedite the reassessments 

Managing Demographic Pressures – AWB has experienced a growth in 
demand for services during the current year at a faster rate than the overall 

This has been particularly high in relation to nursing care due to 
the pressures within the hospital system. Whilst effective management of the 
service has kept pace with the increase in demand and has generally reduced 

has been impossible to deliver the expected saving
Alternative savings plans identified for 2015/16 have been brought forward to 
partially offset the impact of this within the current financial year.

Resource Allocation System (FACE RAS) – Initial testing of assessments 
under the new FACE RAS showed an expected reduction of approximately 
10% in the value of assessed need. Due to having to focus significant social 

hospital discharge, high numbers of safeguarding adults and 
deprivation of liberty assessments, capacity for annual reviews of existing 

compromised. Change of circumstances reviews have been 
most cases being reviewed / reassessed have been due to a 

change in circumstance which has often resulted in a higher assessment of 
also led to only partial delivery of the expected saving. 

Additional resources have been sourced to expedite the reassessments 

 

AWB has experienced a growth in 
at a faster rate than the overall 

This has been particularly high in relation to nursing care due to 
Whilst effective management of the 

and has generally reduced 
impossible to deliver the expected saving in addition. 

Alternative savings plans identified for 2015/16 have been brought forward to 
cial year. 

Initial testing of assessments 
under the new FACE RAS showed an expected reduction of approximately 

Due to having to focus significant social 
hospital discharge, high numbers of safeguarding adults and 

deprivation of liberty assessments, capacity for annual reviews of existing 
compromised. Change of circumstances reviews have been 

assessed have been due to a 
change in circumstance which has often resulted in a higher assessment of 

led to only partial delivery of the expected saving. 
Additional resources have been sourced to expedite the reassessments 

181



4 | P a g e  
 

required and it is hoped that this will help to deliver the forecast savings in 
2015/16   

• Removal of funding for non-eligible users – the introduction of FACE RAS 
was expected to result in a number of service users no longer being eligible 
for services. The removal of non-eligible users is reliant upon re- assessments 
and there is currently a delay in delivery due to competing project priorities 
which have led to workforce capacity issues resulting in delays, those 
reassessments that have taken place indicate that a lower proportion of 
service users will prove to be non eligible than was originally expected. 

• Next stage integration – these contracts have all been awarded but will 
require strong contract management in order to ensure that the expected level 
of savings are achieved. Partial savings will definitely be realised but the 
community equipment contract, in particular, is putting full benefits realisation 
at risk. 

 

2015-16 & 2016-17 Savings Plans 

Red 

• Managing Demographic Pressures – AWB has experienced a growth in 
demand for services during 2014/15 and demographic modelling shows that 
this trend is likely to continue into future years. Alternative savings plans have 
been proposed for 2015/16 as this saving is no longer considered to be 
deliverable. 

• FACE RAS – Additional resources have been sourced to expedite the 
reassessments of service users whose needs have not changed significantly 
since the introduction of FACE RAS but who have not yet been reassessed. It 
is hoped that this together with a revised savings target for this project will 
make the savings outlined for future years achievable.   

• Removal of funding for non-eligible users – the introduction of FACE RAS 
was expected to result in a number of service users no longer being eligible 
for services. The savings targets associated with this project have been 
reduced to a more realistic level as part of the 2015/16 budget setting process 

Amber 

• Next stage integration – strong contract management will need to continue 
in future years to ensure that the expected level of saving is achieved and 
maintained.  

• High cost care packages – delivery of this saving target is now being 
managed and monitored through a regular weekly placement panel. As long 
as this remains in place and accepts robust challenge of all high cost / above 
RAS package proposals it is expected that this savings target will be 
deliverable. 

 

 

182



5 | P a g e  
 

 

Children’s Wellbeing 

The savings target for 2014

 

 

 

2014-15 Savings Plans 

Red 

• Despite an increase of 12% of the number of children in care, p
costs for Looked after Children have been
result of this increase, 
the Herefordshire Intensive Placement Support Service (HIPSS)
delivering future savings.

avings target for 2014-15 is £2.5m, 60% has been delivered. 

 

Despite an increase of 12% of the number of children in care, p
costs for Looked after Children have been maintained in year. However, as a 
result of this increase, additional savings have not been achieved. The start of 
the Herefordshire Intensive Placement Support Service (HIPSS)
delivering future savings. 

 

Despite an increase of 12% of the number of children in care, placement 
maintained in year. However, as a 

been achieved. The start of 
the Herefordshire Intensive Placement Support Service (HIPSS) will support 

183



6 | P a g e  
 

• The NQSW programme has been successful, enabling the release of agency 
staff. There has also been successful recruitment of permanent social worker 
staff. The decision to reduce caseloads for social workers together with a 
growth in cases in the Children with Disabilities service has meant that the 
number of agency staff has not reduced as fast as originally planned. A five 
point approach is being taken to identify how to accelerate a reduction in cost 
whilst maintaining manageable case loads, low turnover and better quality. 

Amber 

• 70% of the Business Support savings have been achieved. A review of the 
service has identified the need for resource to deliver an efficient service. 

• Management restructure savings have not been fully implemented, these will 
be delivered in 2015-16. 

 

2015-16 & 2016-17 Savings Plans 

Amber  

• The CHIPP Programme has reshaped the strategies to deliver the savings in 
2015-16 and future years. 

• Savings delivered through the Children in Need and Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub restructures relies on appointing permanent social workers 
rather than agency staff. 

• The care strategy and adoption strategy both place reliance on finding carers 
who are able to provide places. Additionally identifying children suitable for 
the HIPSS approach will enable the savings to be delivered. 

Red 

• The savings plans for Social Impact bonds have not been scoped.  

 

Economy, Communities & Corporate 

The Savings target for 2014-15 is £7.3m, 88% has been delivered. 

 

 

Red Amber Green Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s

2014-15 -        852       6,460    7,312    
2015-16 590       1,230    1,952    3,772    
2016-17 278       3,733    258       4,269    

868       5,815    8,670    15,353  

184



7 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

2014-15 Savings Plans 

There are no savings plans currently rated RED and only 1

Amber 

• There are currently pressures on the Public Rea
to grass cutting. Whilst this is being met from the corporate contingency 
budget and in year underspends, this will need to be mitigated in future years.

• There are currently pressures on 
Services which are being
fully delivering the savings plan.

2015-16 Savings Plans 

Red 

• This risk mainly relates to the saving due from the Council Tax reductions 
scheme and is subject to C

• There is also risk around the achievement of Home to School transport saving 
based on increasing parent/carer contributions 
has not yet been agreed. 

Amber 

There are no savings plans currently rated RED and only 12% rated AMBER

There are currently pressures on the Public Realm contract budget in 
to grass cutting. Whilst this is being met from the corporate contingency 
budget and in year underspends, this will need to be mitigated in future years.
There are currently pressures on maintenance budgets within

which are being managed within Directorate budgets but put risk on 
fully delivering the savings plan.  

This risk mainly relates to the saving due from the Council Tax reductions 
scheme and is subject to Council decision in December 2014.

s also risk around the achievement of Home to School transport saving 
based on increasing parent/carer contributions for discretionary
has not yet been agreed.  

 

% rated AMBER 

m contract budget in relation 
to grass cutting. Whilst this is being met from the corporate contingency 
budget and in year underspends, this will need to be mitigated in future years. 

within Property 
managed within Directorate budgets but put risk on 

This risk mainly relates to the saving due from the Council Tax reductions 
ember 2014. 

s also risk around the achievement of Home to School transport saving 
for discretionary riders. This 

185



8 | P a g e  
 

• Whilst Car parking income levels have improved and are likely to contribute 
£300k towards the savings target for 15/16 of £600k, further increases to 
parking charges are not yet agreed. There is also risk on the on-street parking 
project. 

• Whilst progress has been made on identifying a Community Interest Company 
to manage the Queenswood and Bodenham Lakes site, this has not yet been 
agreed. 

• There is a plan to deliver £500k savings over two years within the 
Transportation team currently £150k is delivered against the £250k target for 
2015/16. . 

2016-17 Savings Plans 

Red 

• This risk mainly relates to the saving due from the Council Tax reductions 
scheme and is subject to Council decision in December 2015. 

Amber 

• The risk in 2016/17 mainly relates to savings on borrowing cost as a result of 
achieving £60m capital receipts form sale of Council’s smallholding and other 
surplus properties. This plan is currently being developed and is likely to lead 
to re-profiling of the saving over a longer period which has been included in 
the draft medium term budget plan. 

 

   

186



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, Head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 

Meeting: Audit and Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 19 March 2015 

Title of report: Energy from Waste (EfW) loan update 

Report by: Head of corporate finance 
. 

 

Alternative options 

1 None, the loan arrangement was contractually agreed in May 2014, no breaches 
have taken place during this reporting period. This report provides an update on the 
arrangement to the Audit and Governance Committee in its role as the waste loan 
Governance Committee. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To brief the Audit and Governance Committee on the status of the Energy from Waste 
(EfW) loan arrangement commenced on execution of the waste PFI contract variation in 
May 2014, following approval to proceed with the variation by Cabinet in December 2013. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) The Audit and Governance Committee note and monitor the current position in 

regards to the Energy from Waste (EfW) loan arrangement as required under 
the additions to the Committees terms of reference. 

AGENDA ITEM 14

187



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, Head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 Following the establishment of a loan arrangement with Mercia Waste Management 
Limited (Mercia) regular updates will be reported to this Committee. This is the first of 
regular updates and will include;- 

• Progress updates from financial advisors (Deloitte) and lenders technical 
advisors (Fichtner Consulting Engineers). 

• The current risk register (Appendix A). 

Key considerations 

Background 

3 Following the approval to provide financing of the construction of an Energy from 
Waste (EfW) plant this committee is to have oversight of the loan actions with Mercia 
Waste Management Ltd (Mercia). This committee is responsible for reviewing and 
recommending decisions that may be required in relation to the loan facility as 
advised by external financial and legal advisors on behalf of the council’s statutory 
officers. Critical issues will be escalated to Council. The day to day management of 
the loan will be provided by agreement of the Section 151 Officers of both authorities.  

4 Appendix B details the additions to the Committees terms of reference. No decisions 
or courses of action are being requested, this report is to update the Committee on 
the loan, the risk mitigation and granting of waivers actioned to date. 

Key Features 

5 Both councils are funding the EfW plant through the use of Prudential Borrowing. 
Drawdowns of funding from Mercia will continue over a 33 month construction period, 
between 2014 and 2017, before loan repayments fall due. Repayments are forecast 
to commence when construction completes in February 2017. 

6 The total loan facility is for £163.5m, with Hereford providing 24.2% of the loan value, 
£40m. The loan facility is split between two tranches being an interest only loan 
facility and a repayable loan value. The interest only principal loan value is equivalent 
to the written down value of the plant when it is returned to the councils in 2023. The 
plant has an economic life of 25 years, it is returned to the council after 6 years of 
operation therefore the written down value is equal to the remaining 19 year life of the 
plant. The loan tranches are as follows;- 

• £9m repayment loan and 

• £31m interest only (bullet) loan  

7 Total loan interest and fees chargeable to Mercia are fixed and are representative of 
commercial bank charges. These total £69m (£17m for Herefordshire) during the loan 
period. These charges are repayable before the PFI contract ends in 2023 and are 
recharged to the councils by Mercia through the unitary charge.  

8 Herefordshire will obtain loan finance in line with its Treasury Management Strategy. 

188



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, Head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

This will include short term borrowings and longer term finance from the Public Works 
Loan Board where interest rates are aligned to long term gilt prices. Commercial 
banks rates are based on the London Inter Bank Offer Rate (LIBOR). The differential 
between the long term gilt price and LIBOR rates are typically 3% therefore the cost 
of debt incurred will be less than the cost charged to Mercia resulting in an estimated 
surplus of approximately £4.6m for Herefordshire. This surplus has been reflected in 
council budgets approved by Council in February. 

9 The outstanding loan balance in 2023 reflects the expected net book value of the 
plant at that date. There are strict handover and regular testing arrangements in place 
that escalate when nearing the end of the contract protecting the return condition of 
the plant.  

10 The remaining loan principal balance of £31m will be repaid after the end of the PFI 
contract period (2023) until the end of the plants useful life (2042).  

Waivers and Consents 

11 One administrative waiver has been granted to date for an extension of time for 
Mercia to file the financial close financial model with the elected custodian. 

Updates 

12 The latest progress update from the financial advisors show that Mercia have met all 
Senior Term Loan Facility Agreement (STLFA) requirements during this reporting 
period. Cover ratios and cash flow test requirements that ensure Mercia have equity 
and cash balances sufficient to cover loan repayments have been complied with. 

13 Fitchner Consulting Engineers are the technical advisors to the lenders during the 
construction phase of the plant. No significant issues have arisen during the period 
and the construction completion date is not deemed to be at risk. 

14 This committee is tasked with reviewing the risks as a result of the funding provided 
by the council to Mercia. This includes ensuring the risks are considered reasonable 
and appropriate. Attached, Appendix A, is a risk register detailing the unmitigated and 
mitigated risks arising as a result of the council being lender to Mercia. All risks are 
typical of a long term senior funder to waste projects and are aligned to best banking 
practice.     

Community impact 

15 There is no additional community impact as a result of this progress update report.  
The loan arrangement will contribute to the following council corporate objectives:  

• Managing our finances effectively to secure value for money and deliver a 
balanced budget 

• Making best use of the resources available to us in order to meet the council’s 
priorities (includes money, buildings, IT, information). 

Equality duty 

16 This update and its recommendations do not have an impact on Equality or Human 
Rights.  

189



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, Head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

Financial implications 

17 The loan arrangement is progressing to plan with the financial implications being 
reflected in the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy 
approved by Council in February 2015. 

18 All costs incurred by advisors are recharged to Mercia. 

Legal implications 

19 The council received specialist legal advice from Ashursts, solicitors, before agreeing 
to enter the loan arrangement. No specific legal implications arise from this update 
report.  

Risk management 

20 The councils have undertaken an assessment of risk in its role as lender working with 
legal advisors (Ashurts), finance advisors (Deloitte) and technical advisors (Fitchner) 
to understand the basis on which commercial banks reserve elements of their margin 
against risks. The review considered: 

• Counterparty risk 

• Security package 

• Key income generation assumptions in the financial model 

• Specific project risks 

• Interest and foreign exchange rate risk 

21 The councils negotiated a security package that has left minimal risk that costs would 
be borne by the councils should issues occur during the construction phase. The loan 
arrangement security package mirrors that expected in a commercial bank 
arrangement. Advisors completed a risk fall away analysis and in recognition of this 
during the construction phase Herefordshire will retain 50% of its loan surplus in its 
waste disposal reserve should any construction period risk materialise. This reserve 
balance is included in the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy approved by 
Council in February. 

22 Risks are retained where they resided in the 1998 contract and any new risks have 
been transferred to Mercia and its supply chain. There are actions that can be taken if 
a default situation were to arise, for example taking shares or assets in Mercia in lieu 
of loan repayment. No indications of default are currently present. 

23 Existing compensation on termination contract clauses ensure that the lender is 
repaid the majority (90%) of any outstanding debt balance if any termination event 
should occur during the PFI contract period. 

24 Attached at Appendix A is the risk register detailing the controls in place safeguarding 
the council’s position in the lending arrangement.    

190



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, Head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

Consultees 

25 Similar updates are reported to Worcester County Council’s Waste Credit 
Governance Committee.  

Appendices 

Appendix A Risk Register 

Appendix B  Additions to Audit and Governance Committee terms of reference 

Background papers 

None identified. 

 

 
 
 

191



192



W
as

te
 L

o
an

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A

R
is

k 
R

ef
er

en
ce

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 r

is
k

G
ro

ss
 

Im
pa

ct
G

ro
ss

 
P

ro
ba

bi
lit

y
G

ro
ss

 R
is

k 
S

co
re

 
R

is
k 

co
nt

ro
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
A

ct
io

ns
R

es
id

ua
l 

Im
pa

ct
R

es
id

ua
l 

P
ro

ba
bi

lit
y

R
es

id
ua

l 
R

is
k 

S
co

re
 

A
ss

ig
ne

d 
to

 (
R

is
k 

O
w

ne
rs

)

a

D
ef

au
lt 

of
 lo

an
 r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 b

y 
bo

rr
ow

er
 to

 le
nd

er
s 

du
e 

to
 

S
P

V
 (

M
er

ci
a)

 o
r 

H
Z

I f
al

lin
g 

in
to

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n.

C
rit

ic
al

M
ed

iu
m

15
R

is
k 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
pa

ck
ag

e 
ne

go
tia

te
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

 fa
ll 

aw
ay

 a
na

ly
si

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 M
er

ci
a,

 it
s 

S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
H

Z
I w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 e
nt

er
 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e 

to
 p

ut
 

re
pa

ym
en

t a
t r

is
k 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ph

as
e.

 T
he

 m
ax

im
um

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

lu
cl

at
ed

 a
nd

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
re

se
rv

es
. A

ll 
pr

es
s 

ar
tic

le
s 

ar
e 

sc
an

ne
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 fo
r 

in
di

ca
tio

ns
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 s

tr
en

gt
h 

is
su

es
 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

un
te

rp
ar

ty
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

V
er

y 
lo

w
6

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 o
f 

ea
ch

 C
ou

nc
il 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 A
sh

ur
st

 a
s 

ad
vi

so
rs

 in
 

ca
se

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
t d

ef
au

lt 
an

d 
D

el
oi

tte
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

M
er

ci
a'

s 
ac

tu
al

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

 te
st

s 
an

d 
co

ve
r 

ra
tio

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 M
er

ci
a.

 

b
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 
of

 E
F

W
 is

 d
el

ay
ed

 a
nd

 d
el

ay
s 

re
pa

ym
en

t o
f l

oa
n 

to
 le

nd
er

s.

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

M
ed

iu
m

11
R

is
k 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d

U
nd

er
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 te

rm
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 

M
er

ci
a,

 M
er

ci
a 

ta
ke

 a
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l r
is

k 
on

 
E

fW
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

de
la

y 
an

d 
re

pa
ym

en
t o

f 
lo

an
 w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 a
ro

un
d 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

17
, a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

LF
LA

 a
nd

 
ag

re
ed

 fi
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 m

od
el

. 
R

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 ti

ed
 to

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

, r
at

he
r 

th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

da
te

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

as
 le

nd
er

 h
as

 
th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 c
al

l t
he

 lo
an

 in
to

 d
ef

au
lt 

if 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
a 

lo
ng

 
st

op
 d

at
e.

 T
he

 le
nd

er
s 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
dv

is
or

 
ha

s 
co

nf
irm

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
ta

ke
ov

er
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

V
er

y 
lo

w
6

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 o
f 

ea
ch

 C
ou

nc
il 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 A
sh

ur
st

 a
s 

ad
vi

so
rs

 in
 

ca
se

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
t d

ef
au

lt.

c

P
W

LB
 b

or
ro

w
in

g 
ra

te
s 

in
cr

ea
se

 m
or

e 
th

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

' p
ru

de
nt

ia
l 

bo
rr

ow
in

g 
m

od
el

. H
ig

he
r 

ra
te

s 
w

ou
ld

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

su
rp

lu
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
on

 th
e 

lo
an

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 M

er
ci

a.
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

Lo
w

10
R

is
k 

tr
ea

te
d

T
he

 c
os

t o
f p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

 
pr

od
uc

t t
o 

re
m

ov
e 

th
is

 r
is

k 
(a

 s
w

ap
tio

n)
 

fr
om

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t b

an
k 

w
as

 q
uo

te
d 

at
 

£2
0m

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 d
ec

id
ed

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
fo

re
ca

st
in

g 
th

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pr

ic
e 

fo
r 

its
 d

eb
t d

ra
w

 d
ow

ns
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
ho

ld
 in

 r
es

er
ve

 
m

on
ie

s 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
is

 r
is

k 
w

he
re

 
re

qu
ire

d.
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

 th
e 

ra
te

s 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
re

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

is
 

es
tim

at
e 

as
 th

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

lo
w

 g
ilt

 r
at

e 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

V
er

y 
lo

w
6

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 T

re
as

ur
y 

an
d 

F
in

an
ci

ng
 T

ea
m

s.

19
-M

ar
-1

5

193



d

Lo
an

 d
ra

w
do

w
ns

 a
re

 s
lo

w
er

 
th

an
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

S
T

F
LA

. 
D

el
ay

ed
 d

ra
w

do
w

ns
 w

ou
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 r

ed
uc

ed
 in

te
re

st
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 r

ed
uc

ed
 s

ur
pl

us
 if

 
P

W
LB

 lo
an

 r
at

es
 in

cr
ea

se
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 d
ra

w
 

da
te

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l. 

N
eg

lig
ib

le
M

ed
iu

m
4

R
is

k 
tr

ea
te

d

T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 p
la

n 
to

 b
or

ro
w

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

its
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y.
 

T
he

re
fo

re
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 w

ou
ld

 r
ec

ei
ve

 
re

du
ce

d 
in

te
re

st
 r

ec
ei

pt
s 

bu
t l

es
s 

in
te

re
st

 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 p
ay

ab
le

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 a
re

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ar

ke
t g

ilt
 r

at
es

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
ha

ve
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

to
 b

or
ro

w
 fr

om
 P

W
LB

 u
p 

to
 a

 y
ea

r 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
f e

xp
ec

te
d 

dr
aw

do
w

n 
re

qu
es

ts
. R

eg
ul

ar
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

re
po

rt
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
an

 
dr

aw
do

w
ns

 a
re

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

pl
an

.

N
eg

ili
bl

e
V

er
y 

lo
w

2

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 T

re
as

ur
y 

an
d 

F
in

an
ci

ng
 T

ea
m

s.

e

D
ra

w
do

w
n 

re
qu

es
ts

 fr
om

 
M

er
ci

a 
ar

e 
no

t a
ct

io
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 o
r 

no
t a

ct
io

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

ed
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

d.

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

Lo
w

10
R

is
k 

tr
ea

te
d

T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 tr
ea

su
ry

 te
am

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 b
rie

fe
d 

on
 th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
fu

lfi
l d

ra
w

do
w

n 
re

qu
es

ts
, c

he
ck

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 ti
m

el
in

e 
by

 
th

e 
S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ffi
ce

r 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

te
am

s.
D

ra
w

do
w

ns
 to

 d
at

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ac
tio

ne
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

.

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

V
er

y 
lo

w
6

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 T

re
as

ur
y 

an
d 

F
in

an
ci

ng
 T

ea
m

s.

f

M
er

ci
a 

lo
an

 p
rin

ci
pa

l a
nd

 / 
or

 
in

te
re

st
 r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 b

el
ow

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
va

lu
es

 a
s 

pe
r 

th
e 

ra
te

s 
ag

re
ed

 in
 th

e 
S

T
F

LA
 .

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

V
er

y 
Lo

w
6

R
is

k 
tr

ea
te

d

T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 tr
ea

su
ry

 te
am

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

sp
re

ad
sh

ee
t d

et
ai

lin
g 

dr
aw

do
w

ns
 to

 d
at

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 fu

tu
re

 p
rin

ci
pa

l a
nd

 
in

te
re

st
 p

ay
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
is

 r
ec

on
ci

le
d 

to
 

M
er

ci
a'

s 
re

pa
ym

en
t s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

be
 m

at
ch

ed
 to

 p
rin

ci
pa

l a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 
re

pa
ym

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 M

er
ci

a 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

po
st

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pe

rio
d.

 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l

A
lm

os
t 

im
po

ss
ib

le
5

T
he

 r
is

k 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 th
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 T

re
as

ur
y 

an
d 

F
in

an
ci

ng
 T

ea
m

s.

K
ey

S
co

re 1-
7

Lo
w

8-
18

M
ed

iu
m

19
-2

4
H

ig
h

S
co

ri
n

g
 M

at
ri

x
V

er
y 

H
ig

h
9

19
21

21
H

ig
h

8
12

20
23

M
ed

iu
m

4
11

15
24

Lo
w

3
10

14
18

V
er

y 
Lo

w
2

6
13

17
A

lm
os

t i
m

po
ss

ib
le

1
5

7
16

N
eg

lig
ib

le
S

ub
st

an
tia

l
C

rit
ic

al
E

xt
re

m
e

Im
p

ac
t

Likelihood

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

ris
k:

 n
ee

d 
pe

rio
di

c 
re

vi
ew

, 
lo

w
 c

os
t c

on
tr

ol
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

ou
gh

t 
if 

po
ss

ib
le

A
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

ris
k:

 c
lo

se
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

co
st

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
co

nt
ro

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

so
ug

ht
U

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

ris
k:

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

on
tr

ol
 / 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d

R
is

k 
ju

d
g

em
en

t

194



Appendix B 

Additions to the Audit & Governance Committee Terms of Reference 

 

(a) To review, in conjunction with external advisers advising the council as lender, the 
risks being borne as a result of the funding provided by the council to Mercia Waste 
Management Ltd and consider whether the risks being borne by the council, as lender, 
are reasonable and appropriate having regard to the risks typically assumed by long 
term senior funders to waste projects in the United Kingdom and best banking 
practice;  

(b) To monitor the administration of the loan to the waste project in line with best banking 
practice having regard to any such external advice, including the terms of any waivers 
or amendments which may be required or are desirable; 

(c) To consider what steps should be taken to protect the interests of the council as lender 
in the event of a default or breach of covenant by Mercia Waste Management Ltd, and 
make recommendations as appropriate to Full Council, the  council's statutory officers 
or Cabinet as appropriate to ensure the appropriate enforcement of  security and 
litigation in relation to the loan to Mercia Waste Management Ltd;   

(d) To consider and recommend appropriate courses of action to  protect the position of 
the council as lender to the waste project; 

(e) To make recommendations as appropriate to Council with regard to its Budget and 
Policy Framework and the loan to the waste project;    

(f) Generally to take such other steps in relation to the loan within the scope of these 
terms of reference as the committee considers to be appropriate. 

 

195



196



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 19 March 2015 

Title of report: Future work programme for A&G Committee 

Report by: Governance Manager 
 

Alternative options 

This is a draft programme to be discussed and finalised by the committee. There are no 
alternative options as regards whether or not to have a work programme as the committee 
will require such a programme in order to set out its objectives for the coming year.  

However, following discussion, adjustments to timescales and content may be required.  

Reasons for recommendations 

1 The work programme is recommended as the committee is required to define and 
make known its work for the coming year. This will ensure that matters pertaining to 
audit and governance are tracked and progressed in order to provide sound 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To agree the future work programme for the Audit and Governance Committee for 2015-16. 
 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
subject to any amendments made by the committee, the work programme for 
2015-16 for the Audit and Governance Committee, be agreed. 

AGENDA ITEM 15

197



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

governance for the council.  

Key considerations 

2 A number of items considered by the committee in the current year are ongoing and 
updates are carried forward into the new work programme to ensure early 
completion. These are: transparency code; Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) 
investigation; review of the constitution; and whistleblowing policy.  

3 A report providing assurance as to how the council is meeting the requirements of the 
transparency code is currently under development and will be presented to the first 
meeting of the committee. 

4 Following consideration of the PIDA report provided by Grant Thornton, and the 
action plan in response to the report, the committee had established an informal 
working group to scope and research work on governance structures, systems and 
procedures relating to procurement and projects, to include matters such as avoiding 
over reliance on any individual and incorporating ‘what if’ challenges. Although the 
working group held an initial meeting in December this work has not progressed as 
swiftly as would have been wished because of the need to resource recent additional 
overview and scrutiny committee activity and other urgent legal priorities. The 
information requested by the working group will be presented to the new committee to 
inform its future work planning.  

5 Technical amendments to the contracts and financial procedure rules within the 
constitution are scheduled elsewhere on the committee agenda today. Following the 
motion passed by Council in December a cross party working group has met to begin 
the work of identifying areas for improvement. This work will inform further 
identification of possible improvements which will be brought to the committee for 
consideration in the new municipal year developing recommendations to Council as 
appropriate. 

6 The council’s whistleblowing policy and procedure has been under review and 
revised documentation is to be presented to the committee, following consultation 
with staff representatives, for approval in order to effect implementation. This will 
ensure that employees and stakeholders have a clear reporting mechanism for any 
concerns relating to suspected malpractice or wrongdoing and will support the 
recommendations arising from the PIDA investigation outlined above.  

7 The routine business of the committee has been reflected as far as is known in the 
draft programme, including the regular reporting from internal and external auditors.  

8 It was identified that the staff survey results will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee and this has been identified within the programme.  

9 The work programme recognises that there may need to be a response to the 2016 
Tipping Point report by Grant Thornton during the year.  

Community impact 

10 The work of the committee supports the council in demonstrating its values, and in 
particular the commitment to being open, transparent and accountable. 

198



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

Equality duty 

11 This report does not impact on this area.  

Financial implications 

12 There are no financial implications.  

Legal implications 

13 There are no legal implications.   

Risk management 

14 The draft programme can be adjusted in year to respond as necessary to risks as 
they are identified; the committee also provides assurance that risk management 
processes are robust and effective. 

Consultees 

15 Internal and external auditors.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – Draft Work Programme 2015-16 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

199



200



  APPENDIX A 

 

Audit & Governance Work Programme 2015-16 
Meeting Items Comment 
July 2015 • PIDA Update 

• Whistleblowing Policy 
• Transparency Code 
• Governance Improvement Working 

Group update 
• Draft Annual Governance Statement 

including update on action plan 
• Internal Audit Report on Commercial 

Properties 
• Fraud, Bribery and Anti-Corruption 

Policy  
• External Audit Annual Fees Letter 

2015-16 

 

September 2015 • Signing of Accounts 
• Community Governance Review 
• Biannual forecast of revenue and 

capital outturn 
• External audit findings report 2014-15 

 

November 2015 • Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 
• Annual Audit letter (Grant Thornton) 

 

January 2016 • Staff Survey Report 
 

 

March 2016 • Internal Audit Plan update 
• External Audit update 
• Future work programme 2016-17 
• Biannual forecast of revenue and 

capital outturn 
 

 

Unallocated • Implications of the Grant Thornton 
2016 tipping point report ref: 

      Min no 39  (b)if the Chief Financial   
Officer becomes concerned about the 
Council’s financial resilience in the 
light of the findings of the  “2016 
tipping point report” by Grant 
Thornton a report will be made to the 
Committee. 

 

 
 
 
 

201



202


	Agenda
	Public Information and fire info
	4 Minutes
	5 External Audit Update
	6 External Audit Plan 2014-15
	7 Informing the Audit Risk 2014-15
	8 Internal Audit Plan Update (SWAP)
	Appendix A - Progress Report
	Appendix B - 2014-15 Plan Status
	Appendix C - Audit Framework Definitions

	9 Internal Audit Charter 2015-16 (SWAP)
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Charter 2015-16

	10 Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 (SWAP)
	APPENDIX A Annual Audit Plan 2015-16
	APPENDIX B Annual Audit Plan 2015-16

	11 Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy
	APPENDIX A Anti Fraud Bribery and Corruption Policy

	12 Contracts and Financial Procedures Rules
	APPENDIX B - Financial Procedure Rules
	APPENDIX A - Contracts Procedure Rules

	13 Budget Monitoring Report
	Appendix A - Revenue Forecast
	Appendix B - Capital Forecast
	Appendix C - Treasury Forecast
	Appendix D - Performance of Savings Plans

	14 Energy from Waste Loan Update
	APPENDIX A Lenders risk register
	APPENDIX B Additions to Committee Terms of Reference

	15 Future Work Programme
	APPENDIX A - A&G Work Programme 2015-16


